
 

 

      

AGENDA 

TOWN OF RICO BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

2 Commercial Street– Rico Town Hall  

November 16th, 2022 

7:00 PM 
Topic: Board of Trustees 

Time: Nov 16, 2022 07:00 PM Mountain Time (US and Canada) 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89542273693?pwd=dE9tYWlWVFUyUnRPdVAwREZqMW1mQT09 

 

Meeting ID: 895 4227 3693 

Passcode: 169423 

One tap mobile 

+17193594580,,89542273693#,,,,*169423# US 

+16699006833,,89542273693#,,,,*169423# US (San Jose) 

 

Dial by your location 

        +1 719 359 4580 US 

        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 

        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

 

Meeting ID: 895 4227 3693 

Passcode: 169423 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kqEQjFd7P 

 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

CONSENT AGENDA 

• Payment of bills  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

 

• Swearing in of the new member of the Rico Board of Trustees 

1



 

 

• Consideration of a liquor license transfer, Boulder City Mixology LLC, applicant. 

• Consideration of second reading of Ordinance No. 2022-11 an Ordinance of the Town of Rico, 

Colorado adopting the year 2023 town budget; appropriating sums of money; and setting and 

certifying town mill levies. 

• Public hearing: preliminary plat of the Dolores River Trail Development, located on portions of 

the Hillside 1, 2 and Yankee Boy, Rebecca and Gordon Mortensen, applicants 

 

STAFF REPORTS 

• Clerk’s Report  

• Manager’s Report 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS  

• Voluntary lead soils clean up (“VCUP”) agreement status 

• Ordinance No. 2022-12 an Ordinance of the Town of Rico, amending the Rico Land Use Code 

Fee Schedule, and adopting the UBC 97 table no. 1-a – building permit fees   

• Updating town building codes  

• Moratorium on Subdivision, PUD, and multifamily development applications.  

• Rico Public Library rent proposal 

 

Executive Session 
• North Argentine Access §24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S., Conferences with an attorney for the public 

entity for the purposes of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions 

• Town owned commercial space §24-6-402(4)(e), C.R.S. Determination of positions relative to 

matters that may be subject to negotiations, development of strategy for negotiations and 

instruction of negotiators. 

 

 

ADJOURN 

2



Town of Rico Memorandum 

Date: November 10th, 2022 

TO: Town of Rico Board of Trustees 

From: Chauncey McCarthy 

 
Swearing in of the new member of the Rico Board of Trustees 

Thank you to outgoing Board member Linda Yellowman for her service and congratulations on the new 
role of County Commissioner. 

Congratulations to Joe Dillsworth for his reappointment to the Rico Board of Trustees. 

 
Consideration of a liquor license transfer, Boulder City Mixology LLC, applicant. 
 
Boulder City Mixology LLC has purchased the Enterprise Bar and Grill. During last months Board of 
Trustees meeting the board approved a temporary transfer of the Enterprise Bar and Grill, Metropole 
LLC, license.  The state has completed their review process and the board must now decide to approve the 
license at the local level. 
 
Staff recommended motion: 

• I move to approve the liquor license transfer, Boulder City Mixology LLC, applicant. 
 
Consideration of second reading of Ordinance No. 2022-11 an Ordinance of the Town of Rico, 
Colorado adopting the year 2023 town budget; appropriating sums of money; and setting and 
certifying town mill levies. 
 
Included in the packet is the proposed 2023 budget and Ordinance No. 2022-11 an Ordinance of the Town 
of Rico, Colorado adopting the year 2023 town budget; appropriating sums of money; and setting and 
certifying town mill levies. The board reviewed the budget during the October 3rd special meeting and 
approved it with no modifications during the October 19 regular meeting. The ordinance and budget as 
presented in this packet omits the final certification of valuation by the Dolores County Assessor. (The 
assessor believes that the valuation should not change from the august numbers) The updated valuation 
should be completed on November 15 and revised budget and ordinance will be provided at the meeting 
on November 16, 2022.  
 
Staff recommended motion: 

• I move to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2022-11 an Ordinance of the 
Town of Rico, Colorado adopting the year 2023 town budget; appropriating sums of 
money; and setting and certifying town mill levies. 

 
Public hearing: preliminary plat of the Dolores River Trail Development, located on portions of the 
Hillside 1, 2 and Yankee Boy, Rebecca and Gordon Mortensen, applicants   
 
During the last month’s planning meeting the commission continued the hearing of the Dolores River 
Trail subdivision to allow for a site walk and additional time for Mountain Civil Engineering to provide a 
response to comments submitted by the National Forest and Town of Rico’s contract engineer, Alpine 
Land Consulting. A site walk was conducted on October 26, 2022. Mountain Civil Engineering submitted 

3



revised plans and a memo addressing the comments provided by the Nation Forest and Alpine Land 
Consulting on November 2, 2022. The planning commission conducted a public hearing on November 9, 
2022 and recommended approval of the preliminary plat with conditions. The draft minutes are included 
in the packet.  

Also included in the packet are the revised preliminary plat submittals from the applicant including 
comments from the applicant’s engineer. A revised plat has not been included. Additional items included 
in this packet are a memo from the Town Planner, two engineering review memo provided by Alpine 
Land Consulting, along with comments from the National Forest Service.  

The proposed improvements boarder delineated wetlands in which the applicant will need to obtain a 
disturbance permit per section 820 of the Rico Land Use Code. The applicant has submitted the necessary 
documentation for this permit but due to noticing requirements the hearing will happen during the 
December meeting.  

The proposed plans and right-of-way were reviewed by public works and concerns were voiced regarding 
the road width and snow storage. The proposed variance for a 20-foot road will create issue when plowing 
if the loader were to meet oncoming traffic. In addition to that, there are concerns related to snow storage. 
The current plans do not depict locations to store snow and future land and homeowners may not be 
amendable to the idea of storing snow on their property. If the access to the subdivision is conveyed to the 
town as a right-of-way these concerns need to be addressed. If the access is not conveyed to the town the 
grade and width would be compliant to the driveway standards in the RLUC section 498.  (This would 
trigger the need for an owners/maintenance association.) 

The Rico Fire Protection District reviewed and approved the proposed hydrant placement and turn around 
areas during the conceptual phase. These locations and items have not been modified since. 

Motions to be considered: 

I move to approve the preliminary plat of the Dolores River Trail Subdivision located on portions of the 
Hillside 1, 2 and Yankee Boy, Rebecca and Gordon Mortensen, applicants with the following findings: 

• The application meets the intent of preliminary review of the subdivision pursuant to 
LUC Section 532 

• The application meets the Preliminary Subdivision Review Standards found at Section 
538.3 

With the following conditions: 

I move to continue the review of the preliminary plat of the Dolores River Trail Subdivision located on 
portions of the Hillside 1, 2 and Yankee Boy, Rebecca and Gordon Mortensen, applicants with the 
following findings: 

 
Voluntary lead soils clean up (“VCUP”) agreement status 
 
Mayor Pieterse to lead a discussion on the status of the Voluntary lead soils clean up (“VCUP”) 
agreement.  
 
 
 

4



Ordinance No. 2022-12 an Ordinance of the Town of Rico, amending the Rico Land Use Code Fee 
Schedule, and adopting the UBC 97 table no. 1-a – building permit fees   
 
Included in this packet is draft Ordinance No. 2022-12 which would amend the Land Use Code fee 
schedule and adopt the UBC 97 table no. 1-a – building permit fees. Currently there is a building permit 
fee listed in appendix A of the Rico Land Use Code; it only addresses new construction and does not 
contemplate additional fees for plan review or other expenses. Ordinance 2016-01 adopted the 2006 IBC, 
IRC and other international codes related to safety. Upon adoption of this ordinance the town created two 
fee schedules based upon the 2006 residential and commercial building code. These fee schedules became 
effective May 18, 2016. The May 18, 2016 minutes show no approval of an updated fee schedule just that 
Mr. Lapp and Mr. England were working together to update the permit and application to align with the 
newly adopted 2006 Code (Appendix L). After additional research it was determined that the math in 
which the current fee structure was extrapolate, based upon appendix L, converts permit fee based on 
valuation into a permit fee based upon square footage. The proposed ordinance would shift the town’s fee 
schedule to a valuation driven one. It would also allow for the building official to determine valuation 
based upon the most recent ICC building valuation data.  
 
The board requested that permit fees for 2500 SQFT house be included in the packet. They are as follows: 
 
Current fee schedule: 
 Base Permit $1722.95 
 Plan review $ 516.89 
 Mechanical permit $172.30 
 Processing fee $20 
 TOTAL: $1915.25 
 
Feb 2021 ICC BVD (130.58 price per sqft) fee: 
 Base permit: $2261.87 
 Plan review: $1470.22 
 TOTAL: $3732.09 
 
Aug 2022 ICC BVD (166.08 price per sqft) fee: 
 Base permit: $2758.87 
 Plan review: $1793.27 
 TOTAL: $4552.14 
 
The Town has contracted SafeBuilt to preform plan and code review at 100% of what the town currently 
collects for plan review. This arrangement is a break even for them and potentially a loss if plans require 
multiple rounds of review. If the town transitions to the UBC 97 table, the plan review fee would be great 
enough to cover the plan review cost and would all the town to retain a percentage of the plan review fee 
to offset the town’s administrative costs.  
 
Updating town building codes  
 
Updating the town building codes were discussed at last month’s meeting and the board wanted to have a 
more in depth discuss. Updating the building code is a large undertaking and a committee could help in 
this process. There are also code compliance companies who assist in the code adoption process. The 
town could consider engaging one of these firms if the board determines that an updated code is in the 
best interest of the residents of the town.  Colorado Energy Office provides no-cost technical assistance to 
jurisdictions to support the adoption of new energy codes and code enforcement. The International Code 
Council provides a matrix which compares the 2006 code against the 2009/2012/2015/2018 codes. This is 

5



a large document which has not been provided in the packet, if interested please follow the link to their 
site: https://codes.iccsafe.org/content/IBCCOMPARISON0618/comparison-between-2006-ibc-2009-ibc-
2012-ibc-2015-ibc-and-2018-ibc  
 
Included in this packet is a list of current codes adopted by counties and municipalities within the state of 
Colorado.  
 
Moratorium on Subdivision, PUD, and multifamily development applications.  
 
Rico’s access to water is limited and as subdivision and PUD applications are submitted and potentially 
approved it will continually take away from the town’s ability to service all historically plated lots within 
town limits. Included in this packet is a memo from Harris engineering dated June 30, 2016 that explains 
the issues related to our water supply.  
 
Town is currently working with the water court to decree an alternative point of diversion but have 
encountered some resistance from the state engineer. We need to prove the current wellsite is a headgate 
well to move forward with the alternative point of diversion. This will require additional engineering and 
the potential outcome may not be in favor of the town.  
 
A moratorium for a period of 6 months would allow the town the necessary time to strategize and 
implement a plan in which the town could potentially collect impact fees to reactive Silver Creek. This 
time frame may also be long enough that filing in water court has been resolved.    
 
Rico Public Library rent proposal 
 
The Board requested at last month’s meeting that staff reviews the expenses required to operate the 
Courthouse. This list below can be used to better understand what percentage of these expenses are 
related the library and will help determine a yearly lease rate. These operational costs are depicted below: 
 
 

Expense  Yearly Cost 
Propane $5,675  
Electric $1,402  
CIRSA $3,698.68  

 $10,776  
 
There are many ways of determining the share of the yearly expenses which the board should discuss. The 
library square footage covers roughly 1/3 of the first floor of the building.  The basement level provides 
no added value to either the town or the library. The second story is used mostly for meetings and storage 
by the town but has supported some library events over the past year. The daily hours for the library have 
fluctuated significantly over the years and using that as a metric to determine cost sharing of utilities 
would not provide much value.  
 
 

6



1028 
 

 
RICO TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
Date: October 19, 2022 
 
Call to order 
Mayor Nicole Pieterse called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. 
 
Trustees Present:   Mayor Nicole Pieterse 
   Mayor Pro Tem Patrick Fallon 
   Trustee Benn Vernadakis 
   Trustee Linda Yellowman  
   Trustee Christopher Condon (Arrived 7:03PM) 
   Trustee Joe Croke  
Trustees Absent: 
   Trustee Joe Dillsworth  
                                              
Staff Present.   Chauncey McCarthy, Anna Wolf 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
 
Motion 
To approve the agenda. 
 Moved by Trustee Linda Yellowman, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
Approval of the Minutes 
The date on the October 3, 2022 meeting is incorrect. The September 21st meeting Petrolern was 
misspelled. Rock Laubster Liquor was also misspelled. The VCUP section has typos. 
 
Motion 
To approve the minutes with the above changes. 
 Moved by Trustee Benn Vernadakis, seconded by Trustee Linda Yellowman. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0. 
 
Consent Agenda 
Payment of the Bills 
 
Motion 
To approve the minutes with the above changes. 
 Moved by Trustee Linda Yellowman, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Patrick Fallon. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0. 
 
Public Comment: 
Linda Yellowman gave an update on her campaign for county commissioner. 
 
Action Items  

7



1029 
 

Consideration of a temporary liquor license request/transfer, Boulder City Mixology LLC, 
applicant.  
The Town Clerk Anna Wolf gave a summary regarding the temporary license request. 
Applicant Stu Weitzman expressed his intentions with the Enterprise Bar and Grill. 
 
Motion 
To approve a temporary liquor license request/transfer, Boulder City Mixology LLC, applicant. 
 Moved by Trustee Joe Croke, seconded by Trustee Christopher Condon. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0. 
 
Public hearing: preliminary plat of the Dolores River Trail Development, located on portions of the 
Hillside 1, 2, and Yankee Boy, Rebecca and Gordon Mortensen, applicants. 
Trustee Benn Vernadakis recuses himself due to conflict of interest. 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gave a summary of the Planning Commission meeting. He 
added that a site walk thru will happen Wednesday October 26, 2022 from 5:00PM. 
 
Public Comment: 
Skip Zeller impressed upon the Board to make sure they understand that this could set a 
precedence for future applicants. 
Mayor Nicole Pieterse asked Skip Zeller to make comment to the Planning Commission as well. 
 
Motion 
To continue the review of the preliminary plat of the Dolores River Trail Subdivision until 
November 16th. 
 Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Patrick Fallon, seconded by Mayor Nicole Pieterse. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0 
 
Consideration of first reading of Ordinance No. 2022-11 an Ordinance of the Town of Rico, 
Colorado adopting the year 2023 town budget; appropriating sums of money; and setting and 
certifying town mill levies. 
Town Manager gave a summary of ordinance 2022-11 and the October 3rd meeting discussion. 
He added that the Rico Center potential funding has been added to the budget per the Board’s 
request. The format of the budget has been changed to be more streamlined. 
Board Discussion: 
Trustee Chris Condon asked clarifying questions regarding budget items. 
Trustee Linda Yellowman inquired regarding the Plexiglas that will be added to the lower level 
windows and whether the Library will need to pay for their own. 
Chauncey McCarthy responded that the Town will be paying for all Plexiglas as it is improving the 
building which belongs to the Town.  
Trustee Chris Condon asked if there has been a lease made out for the Library.  
Chauncey McCarthy expressed that it hasn’t. 
Trustee Chris Condon requested the Board revisit this in November. 
 
Public Comment: 
Allyn Svoboda would like the Board to consider repealing the Sewer Mill Levy next year on the 
election as the proposed sewer system will only benefit the commercial core. 
 
Motion 

8



1030 
 

To approve the first reading of Town of Rico Ordinance No. 2022-11 adopting the year 2023 town 
budget; appropriating sums of money; and setting and certifying town mill levies. 
 Moved by Mayor Nicole Pieterse, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0 
 
Staff Report 
Clerk’s Report 
Election: 
The Rico Municipal Election will be help November 1, 2022 in Person at the Court House. Polls 
will be open 7:00AM to 7:00PM. All residence will receive a mail in ballot from the County with the 
county, State and Federal questions that will be due back via mail or in the Drop box outside of 
the Town Hall by 7:00 PM November 8, 2022. 
 
Manager’s Report  
Emails will migrate to Google Work Suit starting in the next few weeks. This transition will be more 
secure 
 
A new microphone setup has been ordered to make the audio for zoom better during the 
meetings. 
 
The Middle water tank was emptied and Riley engineering is confident that the tank can be 
restored. The repairs would be made next summer after the 4th of July. 
 
The Storm water RFQ is out. There are multiple interests in the project. 
 
Winter parking ordinance will be a discussion item. This will alleviate issues and some liability off 
the Town. 
 
Discussion Items 
VCUP Status Update 
Mayor Nicole Pieterse gave a summary on the public forum that was held.  The Board will be 
presented with the document for revision by the end of the first quarter of next year. 
 
Town building codes and fee schedule 
The Board discussed the advantages of staying with the current building code.  The Board agreed 
to have staff and legal draft an ordinance for next month’s meeting according to the fee table 
presented to update the fee schedule to ensure the Town can cover all costs.  
 
Quarterly Review 
Town manager gave a summary of the 3rd Quarter. 
 
Town Shop Project Update 
The Town Manager Gave an update on the Town Shop progress including test pits, the burn pile 
being burnt, and vehicular access to the river being blocked by machinery. A gate bill be installed 
so pedestrian access will still be possible to the river from the Town Shop. 
 
Motion 
To adjourn 
 Moved by Trustee Benn Vernadakis, seconded by Trustee Linda Yellowman. 
 

9



1031 
 

Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:51 PM. 
 
 
 ___________________                                                                         ________________                                                       
        Anna Wolf                 Nicole Pieterse 
       Rico Town Clerk                                                                                          Mayor 

10



DR 8404 ( 12/29/21 ) 
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 

Liquor Enforcement Division 
(303) 205-2300 

Colorado Liquor 
Retail License Application 

0 New License 0 New-Concurrent � Transfer of Ownership 0 State Property Only 

• All answers must be printed in black ink or typewritten
• Applicant must check the appropriate box(es)
• Applicant should obtain a copy of the Colorado Liquor and Beer Code: SBG.Colorado.gov/Uquor

1. Applicant is applying as a/an 0 Individual 181 Limited Liability Company O Association or Other 

D Master file 

0 Corporation D Partnership (includes Limited Liability and Husband and Wife Partnerships) 
2. Applicant If an LLC, name of LLC; if partnership, at least 2 partner's names; U corporation, name of corporation

BOULDER CITY MIXOLOGY, LLC 
2a. Trade Name of Estabfrshment (DBA) I State Sales Tax Number 

ENTERPRISE BAR AND GRILL 
3. Address of Premises (specify exact location of premises, include suite/unit nurmers) 

3 N GLASGOW AVENUE 
City County State 

RICO DOLORES co 

4. Mailing Address (Number and Street) City or Town State 
3 N GLASGOW AVENUE RICO co 

5. Email Address
STU@BCMIXOLOGY.COM 

6. If the premises currently has a liquor or beer license, you must answer the following questions
Present Trade Name of Establishment (OBA) 

ENTERPRISE BAR AND GRILL 
I 
Present State License Number I Present Class of License 

03-08195 Hotel & Restaurant 
Section A Nonrefundable Appffcatfon Fees• Section B (Cont.) 

D Application Fee for New Ucense ....••....••..........•••..••.•..•••...•.... $1, 100.00 □ Liquor--Ucensed Drugstora (County) -··············· 
D Application Fee for New License w/Cona.m!nt Review ····-··---S1,200.00 0 Lodging & Esma 11 El ll- l&E (Cily) 
� Application Fee forTransfer ...................................... ............. $1,100.00 0 Lodging & Euleftait11ell-L&E (Coonly) ..... 
Section B Uquor Ucensa Fees" 0 Manager Registration - H & R 

D Manager Registration -Tavern 

FEIN Number 

Business Telephone 
(970) 967-5555

ZIPCode 
81332 

ZIP Code 
81332 

Present Expiration Date 
September 2023 
Uquor License Fees• 

................. $312.50 
$500.00 

·----·SS00.00
............ $75.00 

$75.00 0 Add Optional Pn!nises lo H & R-S100.00 X Total 
0 Manager Regisbatic:a1- Lodging & Esdei laiiilE!lll $75.00 

0 Add Related Faciily to Resort Complex$75.00 X Total 
0 Add Sklewalk Service Area..--··-·····---·· .................................... -----···· $75.00 
□ Arts Lia!nse (City)
D Arts License (County) ---·-··-·-··-··-
0 Beer and W,ne License (City). _____________________
□ Beer and Wm License (Ccu,ly) 
□ Brew Pub License (City) ...... _____ 
□ Brew Pub License (County)
□ Campus Liquor CaT-pex (Cily) 

□ Campus Liquor Qin1)lex (County) 

$308.75 
•--d $308.75 

$351.25 
$436.25 
$7f,O.OO 

$750.00 
$500.00 
$500.00 

0 Campus Liquor Complex (Stale) ..................................................... -.. $500.00 
□ Club License (City) $308.75 
□ Club License (Cwnty) $308.75 
0 DistiKe,y Pub License (City) ................................................................. $750.00 
□ Distillery Pub License (County) ....... ·---· S7f,O.OO 
I!) Hotel and Restauart License (City) $500.00 

0 Hotel and Restaurant License (County) ................. ,-........................ $500,00 
D Hotel and Restaurant License w/ooe opt premises (Clty)---·----$600.00 
0 Hotel and Restaurant License wlone opt pnmses (Coonly)--$600.00 
D Uquor--Ucensed Drugstae (City) $227.50 

0 Manager Registration- Campus Liquor Conl)lex ............................... $75.00 
□ Optional Prenises License (City) $500.00 
D Optional Premises License (Ccu,ty) $500.00 
0 Racetrack License (City) ..... -··- . ............... $500.00 
□ Racetrack Ucense (County) ............................ . ....... $500.00 
□ Resort CaT-pex License (Cly! $500.00 
□ Resort Conl)lex License (County) ········----·----········--···--··--$500·00 
□ Related Facility-� liquor Cm1J1ex (City) ...... -...................... $160.00 
0 Related Facility- canpus UquarQin1)1ex (C<uty) $160.00 
D Related Facility-canpus liquor Qin1)lex (Stile\ $160.00 
D Retail Gaming Tavern� (City) ---·-···--········-······$500,00 
0 Retai Gc■nng Tavern License (Comly) $500.00 
D Retail Liquor 51cre Uca ISi! ,lldciliol a (Cily) .. $227.50 
0 Retail Liquor Store Ucense-Addilion (County). .. ........... $312.50 
D Retail Liquor Store (City) $227.50 
□ Retail liquor 5lcre (Comly) .... $312.50 
D Tavem License (City) ..... -............. . ................. $500.00 
D Tavern License (County) .... $500.00 
D Vinlners Restuart License Caty) $750.00 
0 V.nlnefs Restaurant License (County) ................................................. $750.00 

* Note that the Division will not accept cash

Questions? Visit: SBG.Colorado.gov/Liquorfor more information 

Do not write in this space - For Department of Revenue use only 
Liability lnfonnation 

License Account Number ILiability Date I License Issued Through (Expiration Date) 

1;� 
1 

11



12



13



14



15



DR 8495 (D7/23/19) 
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 
Liquor Enron:ement Division 

Tax Check Authorization, Waiver, 

and Request to Release Information 

I, STUART BRYAN WEITZMAN am signing this Tax Check Authorization, waiver and Request to Release 
Information (hereinafter •waive�) on behalf of BOULDER CITY MIXOLOGY. LLC (the •Applicant/Licensee•) 
to permit the Colorado Department of Revenue and any other state or local taxing authority to release information and 
documentation that may otherwise be confidential, as provided below. If I am signing this Waiver for someone other than 
myself, including on behalf of a business entity, I certify that I have the authority to execute this Waiver on behalf of the 
Applicant/Licensee. 

The Executive Director of the Colorado Department of Revenue is the State Licensing Authority, and oversees the 
Colorado Liquor Enforcement Division as his or her agents, clerks, and employees. The information and documentation 
obtained pursuant to this Waiver may be used in connection with the Applicant/Licensee's liquor license application 
and ongoing licensure by the state and local licensing authorities. The Colorado Liquor Code, section 44-3-101. et seq. 
("Liquor Code"), and the Colorado Liquor Rules, 1 CCR 203-2 {"Liquor Rules•), require compliance with certain tax 
obligations, and set forth the investigative, disciplinary and licensure actions the state and local licensing authorities may 
take for violations of the Liquor Code and Liquor Rules, including failure to meet tax reporting and payment obligations. 

The Waiver is made pursuant to section 39-21-113(4), C.R.S., and any other law, regulation, resolution or ordinance 
concerning the confidentiality of tax information, or any document. report or return filed in connection with state or local 
taxes. This waiver shall be valid until the expiration or revocation of a license, or until both the state and local licensing 
authorities take final action to approve or deny any application(s) for the renewal of the license, whichever is tater. 
Applicant/Licensee agrees to execute a new waiver for each subsequent licensing period in connection with the renewal 
of any license, if requested. 

By signing below, Applicant/licensee requests that the Colorado Department of Revenue and any other state or local 
taxing authority or agency in the possession of tax documents or information, release information and documentation to 
the Colorado Liquor Enforcement Division, and is duly authorized employees, to act as the Applicant's/Licensee's duly 
authorized representative under section 39-21-113(4), C.R.S., solely to allow the state and local licensing authorities, and 
their duly authorized employees, to investigate compliance with the Liquor Code and Liquor Rules. Applicant/Licensee 
authorizes the state and local licensing authorities, their duly authorized employees, and their legal representatives, to 
use the information and documentation obtained using this waiver in any administrative or judicial action regarding the 
application or license. 

Name (Individual/Business) 
STUART BRYAN WETTZMAN/BOULDER CITY MIXOLOGY, LLC !

Social Security Number/Tax · tion Number

Address 
15060 COUNTY ROAD 28 

City 
DOLORES 

'State 

co 81 323 
Home Phone Number 

206-295-9084
I 
Business/Work Phone Number 

Printed name of person signing on behalf of the Applicant/licensee 
__.- _,,., STUART BRYAN WEITZMAN 

Applicant." · • · re (Sig�uthotizing the cflSdosure of a>nfidential tax infonnation) 
�-/__ 

., 

Privacy Act Statement 

I 
Date signed 

09/13/2022 

Providing your Social Security Number is voluntary and no right, benefit or privilege provided by law will be denied as a 
result of refusal to disclose it § 7 of Privacy Act, 5 uses § 552a (note). 

16



Stuart Weitzman 

Boulder City Mixology, LLC 

523 Oakwood Court 
Henderson, NV 89002 

September 26, 2022 

Anna Wolf 

Town of Rico 

P.O. Box9 

2 Commercial St 

Rico, Colorado 81332 

RE: Town of Rico Liquor License/ The Enterprise Bar and Grill 

Ms. Wolf, 

Enclosed you will find all documents requested regarding the transfer of the liquor license from 

Metropole, LLC to Boulder City Mixology, LLC. 

I have included unsigned copies of both the lease for the Dey Building (where the Enterprise Bar and 

Grill resides) and the Purchase and Sale Agreement. Both of these items will be submitted to you when 

final terms agreed to. 

I stated on the application that I AM a Colorado resident, however I will not be in Colorado until October 

10 th
, 2022. I am currently residing in Henderson, NV until that time. My intention is to move to the 

following address on that date: 

15060 County Road 28.3 

Dolores, CO 81323 

1 will submit my fingerprints to 1dentToGo when instructed, per section IV of the application. 

Please let me know if there is anything else you may need going forward. I do sincerely appreciate your 

help. 

Thank ;, 

Stu · man 

Member, Boulder City Mixology, LLC 

17



18



DR 8404-1 (D3/20/19) 
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 
Liquor Enforcement Division 
(303) 205-2300 

Individual History Record 
To be completed by the following persons, as applicable: sole proprietors; general partners regardless of percentage ownership, and 
limited partners owning 10% or more of the partnership; all principal officers of a corporation, all directors of a corporation, and any 
stockholder of a corporation owning 10% or more of the outstanding stock; managing members or officers of a limited liability company, 
and members owning 10% or more of the company; and any intended registered manager of Hotel and Restaurant, Tavern and 
Lodging and Entertainment class of retail license 

Notice: This individual history record requires information that is necessary for the licensing investigation or inquiry_ AJI questions 
must be answered in their entirety or the license application may be delayed or denied. If a question is not applicable, please indicate 
so by ¥NIA". Any deliberate misrepresentation or material omission may jeopardize the license application. (Please attach a 
separate sheet if necessary to enable you to answer questions completely) 
1. Name of Business Home Phone Number 

I 
CeOular Nuni>er 

BOULDER CITY MIXOLOGY, LLC 
2. Your FuH Name (last, first, middle} 3. List any other names you have used

WEITZMAN, STUART BRYAN 
4. Mailing address (if different from residence) Email Address 

523 OAKWOOD COURT, HENDERSON NV 89002 STU@BCMIXOLOGY.COM 

5. List current residence address. Include any previous addresses within the last five years. (Attach separate sheet if necessary)
Street and Number City, State, Zip From To 

Current 
SEE ATTACHED 

Previous 

6. List all employment within the last five years. Include any self-employment (Attach separate sheet if necessary)
Name of Employer or Business Address {Street, Number, City, State., Zip) Position Held From To 

SEE ATTACHED 

7. List the name(s) of relatives working in or holding a financial interest in the Colorado alcohol beverage industry.
Name of Relative Relationship to You Position Held Name of Licensee 

8. Have you ever applied for, held, or had an interest in a Colorado Liquor or Beer License, or loaned money,
□Yes �Nofurniture, fixtures, equipment or inventory to any licensee? (If yes, answer in detail.)

9. Have you ever received a violation notice, suspension, or revocation for a liquor law violation, or have you
□Yes 18JNoapplied for or been denied a liquor or beer license anywhere in the United States? (If yes, explain in detail)

19



DR 8404•1 (03/20119) 

10. Have you ever been convicted of a crime or received a suspended sentence, deferred sentence, or forteited
□Yes IRJNobail for any offense in criminal or military court or do you have any charges pending? (If yes, explain in detail.) 

11. Are you currently under probation (supervised or unsupervised), parole, or completing the requirements of a
□Yes l2sl Nodeferred sentence? (If yes, explain in detail.)

12. Have you ever had any professional license suspended, revoked, or denied? (If yes, explain in detail.) □Yes �No
Personal and Financial Information 

Unless otherwise provided by law, the personal information required in question #13 will be treated as confidential. The personal 
information �uired in ouestion #13 is solP.lv for identification oumoses. 
13a. Date of Birth I b. Social SeaJrity Nwnber c. Place of Birth

I �Yes 0No01/11/69 LOS ANGELES, CA d. U.S. Citizen 
e, If Naturalized., state where f. When g. Name of District Court

h. Naturalization Certificate Number i. Date of certificalion j. If an Aien, Give Alien's Registration Card

I. Height Im. Weight In. Hair Color
5'9" 210 BRN

a. Eye Color
BRN IP· 

Gend�r 
I

 Nunberl k. Permanent Residence Card Number

q. Do you have a a.inent Driver's �07 If so, gi'o'e number and state. 
 �Yes 0No • State NV 

14. Financial Information.
a. Total purchase price or investment being made by the applying entity, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, other.

$ 90.000
b. List the total amount of the personal investment , made by the person listed on question #2, in this business including any

notes, loans, cash, services or equipment. operating capital, stock purchases or fees paid. $
• If corporate investment only please skip to and complete section (d)

•• Section b should reflect the total of sections c and e
c. Provide details of the personal investment described in 14b. You must account fur all of the sources of this investment

(Attach a separate sheet if needed)
Type: Cash, Services or Equipment Account Type Bank Name Amount 

d. Provide details of the corporate investment described in 14 (a). You must account for aH of the sources of this investment (Attach a
separate sheet if needed)

Type: Cash, Services or Equipment Loans Account Type Bank Name Amount 

CASH NA NA NA 90,000 

e. Loan lnfonnation (Attach copies of all notes or loans)
Name of Lender Address Term Security Amount 

Oath of Applicant 
I declare unA�r �n<>ltu of oeriurv that this annlication and all attachments are true. a>rrec and comnlete to the best of mv knowledae. 
Aul '- I Print Signature 

t,J � I I 2./11 p. J /h tlo.J -,!&cll / ;tt.c,1ldl19fri� /;y ,,.,-
�·r _/ 

J 

¼v �, 
I 

20



Town of Rico 
2023 Fiscal Year Budget 

21



TOWN OF RICO ORDINANCE NO. 2022-11 
ADOPTING THE YEAR 2023 TOWN BUDGET; APPROPRIATING SUMS OF 

MONEY; AND SETTING AND CERTIFYING TOWN MILL LEVIES 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees designated Chauncey, Rico Town Manager to 
prepare and submit a proposed budget to the Governing Body; and 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted on the 3rd day of October, the 19th day of 
October and the 16th day of November 2022 in accordance with the law; 
 

WHEREAS, the Rico Town Board finds that the adoption of the budget is essential to 
the provision of basic and necessary services and finds that this ordinance is necessary for the 
preservation of the health, safety and general welfare of the Rico community; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Rico has reviewed and considered the Final 2023 Budget in 
accordance with the Local Government Budget Law on the 16th day of November, 2022; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed budget has made provisions therein for revenues in an amount 
equal to or greater than the total proposed described below; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the November xxth, 2022 valuation for the Town of Rico as certified by the 

County Assessor is $_______ and, 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF RICO 
ORDAINS: 

 
SECTION 1. BUDGETED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

The following sums are hereby appropriated for the revenue of each fund, for the purposes 
stated. The budgeted revenues and expenditures for each fund are as follows: 
 

General Fund Revenues:  
Reserve Balance 864,743.00 
Non Property Tax Revenues 530,005.00 
Property Tax revenues 77,580.00 
Grant/Other Revenues 8,300.00 

Total General Fund: 1,480,628.00 
General Fund Expenditures:  614,090.00 

  
Street Fund Revenues:  

Reserve Balance 133,658.00 
Non Property Tax Revenue 64,740.00 
Property Tax Revenue 11,775.00 
Grant/Other 0.00 

Total Street Fund: 210,173.00 
Street Fund Expenditures: 87,500.00 

22



  
Parks Trails and Open Space Revenue:  

Reserve Balance 82,071.00 
Non Property Tax Revenues 26,995.00 
Grants/Other Revenues 36,000.00  
Total Parks, Trails and Open Space Fund: 145,066.00 

Parks, Trails and Open Space 
Expenditures:  86,000.00 

  
  

Water Enterprise Fund Revenues:  
Reserve Balance 205,346.00 
Non Property Tax Revenues 235,020.00 
Grants/Other Revenues  

Total Water Enterprise Fund: 440,366.00 
Water Fund Expenditures: 151,500.00 

  
Sewer Fund Revenues  

Reserve Balance 235,415.00 
Non Property Tax Revenue 1,100.00 
Property Tax Revenues 25,983.00 
Grants/Other Revenues 0.00 

  
Total Sewer Fund:  262,498.00 

Sewer Fund Expenditures: 67,550.00 
  

 
 

SECTION 2. ADOPTION OF BUDGET 
The Budget as submitted, amended, and hereinabove summarized by fund hereby is approved 
and adopted as the Final Budget of the Town of Rico for the year 2023. The Budget shall be 
signed by the Mayor and made part of the public records of the Town. 
 

SECTION 3. CERTIFICATION OF MILL LEVIES 
That for the purpose of meeting all general operating expenses of the Town of Rico during the 
2023 budget year there is hereby levied a tax of 13.020 mills upon each dollar of the total 
valuation for the assessment of all taxable property within the Town for the year 2022. 
 
That for the purpose of meeting all Street Fund expenses of the Town of Rico during the 2023 
budget year there is hereby levied a tax of 1.785 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation for 
assessment of all taxable property within the Town for year 2022. 
 
That for the purpose of meeting all Sewer Fund expenses of the Town of Rico during the 2023 
budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 3.939 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation for 
assessment of all taxable property within the Town for year 2022. 
 

23



SECTION 3. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final adoption. 
 
This budget document was presented on the 3rd day of October 2022.  This Ordinance was 
introduced, read, approved, and adopted on the 19th day of October 2022 and considered for a 
second reading on the 16th day of November 2022. 
 

THIS ORDINANCE WAS, FOLLOWING PUBLIC NOTICE, INTRODUCED, READ, 
AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY 
THIS 19TH DAY OF OCTOBER 2022. 

TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO 
 

___________________________________ 
Nicole Pieterse, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Anna Wolf, Town Clerk 
 

THIS ORDINANCE WAS, FOLLOWING PUBLIC NOTICE, INTRODUCED, READ 
ON SECOND READING, PASSED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY TO BE 
EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY THIS 16TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2022. 

 
 

TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
ATTEST: Nicole Pieterse, Mayor 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Anna Wolf, Town Clerk 
 

Effective Date: November 16, 2022 

 

24



Town of Rico Budget Summary 

       Date: September 29, 2022 

TO:          Town of Rico Board of Trustees 

FROM:          Chauncey McCarthy, Town Manager 

SUBJECT:    Town of Rico Budget Summary 

Consideration of the 2023 Budget 
State Statute requires that an annual budget must be presented to a municipality’s 

governing body no later than October 15th.   Included in the budget details are notes describing 
the method in which assumptions were made regarding revenues and expenses.  The following is 
a summary of each fund.   

General Fund Revenues: 
2022 sales tax revenues have been doing very well and is on track to exceed $225,000. 

Due to the potential changes of our nation’s economy over the next fiscal year, revenues where 
budgeted lower for 2023 then what 2022 has been projected to finish out as.  

Property tax is based on the Town’s assessed valuation.  2022 assessed valuation was 
$86,101.09.  As of August 31st, the Town has received $79,566.39. Due to changes in state law, 
the percentage used to calculate assessed valuation has been lowered which has created small 
impact. Properties being reassessed next year should offset this impact. Development this year 
proceeded at a similar pace as last year. Revenues within these categories were budgeted to match 
past years. If people develop the lots sold within the last year, building revenues will surpass the 
budget.  

Other revenues include licenses, lodging and specific ownership tax, and fines.  These 
revenues are harder to forecast. Fines and forfeits have grown over the last year and our marshal 
department has focused on increasing tickets to offset labor and fuel cost.  

General Fund Expenses - Employees: 
Last year 78% of expenses are in employee costs; This percentage (79%) has grown due 

to budgeted raises. Positions have been budgeted to receive an 8% (CPI) cost of living raise. Full 
time Maintenance position will receive a greater increase to ensure the town is compliant to the 
minimum salary requirement as required for an exempt position.  

The following is a summary of the staffing expenses that are reflected in this budget: 

Town Manager.  Full time, $79,000 per year with benefits that include insurance for one person 
and PERA retirement benefits at a 14.75% match with a total cost including payroll taxes of 
$105,983.06. This expense is distributed as follows: General Fund 40%, Water Fund 30%, 
Sanitation fund 20%, and Street Fund at 10%.   

Maintenance 1.  Full time, $50,000 per year with benefits that include insurance for one person 
and PERA retirement benefits at a 14.75% match with a total cost including payroll taxes of 
$70,367.56.  This expense is distributed between the Water Fund 60% and the Street Fund 40%.  

 1

25



Town Clerk/Administrative Assistant.  Full time (32 HR/WK), $46,650 per year with benefits 
that include insurance for one person, partial coverage for a spouse, and PERA retirement 
benefits at a 14.75% match with a total cost including payroll taxes of $72,312.55. This position 
is funded by the General Fund 50% and the Water Fund 50%.   

POST Administrator.  This position has been removed since the current town manager has taken 
over this roll 

POST Groomer.  Part Time, no benefits, $32.50 per hour.  The amount spent on this activity is 
dependent entirely on the weather.  There is $7,000 budgeted for this activity based on last year’s 
expense.   

POST Maintenance – Ice Rick and Park.  Part Time, no benefits, $32.50 per hour.  This position 
is also variable.  There is $7,000 budgeted for this position. Due to forecasted weather patterns 
for the 2023 winter season and the location of the park, the Ice Rink will not be setup this year.  

Maintenance 2.  Part Time, no benefits, $32.50 per hour.  There is $35,000 budgeted for this 
position based on last year’s expense. This position is funded by the Water Fund, 50% and the 
Street Fund, 50%. (Funds are transferred based upon actual hours worked within each 
department). Ideally, the town will not need to expend the entirety of what has been appropriated. 
This position includes plowing snow, summer maintenance of roads, and assisting with the water 
system maintenance.  

Water Technician.  Part Time, no benefits, $45.00 per hour.  This position is that of Rico’s water 
system’s Responsible Operator.  Having a Responsible Operator is a requirement of the Colorado 
Department of Public Health and Environment.  This activity is highly specialized and requires 
years of training and testing to become certified.  This position is funded entirely by the Water 
Fund.   

Town Marshal.   Part Time, no benefits, $35.00 per hour.  The Town currently employees one 
Marshal but has hired for the additional marshal. They will start within the next couple months. 
This position is funded through the General Fund. In 2022 the Marshal wage was offset by fines 
on traffic violations.   

General Fund Expenses - Subcontractors:  
Currently the Town employs several contractors 

Municipal Court Judge.  The Town has a long-standing arrangement with John Kelly for this 
duty.  This arrangement will remain unchanged in the upcoming year.   

Town Attorney.  The Rico Home Charter requires that Rico have a Town Attorney.  Karp, Neu, 
Hanlon is the appointed Town Attorney, but Marti Whitmore is currently being used by the Town 
for water matters. Tom Bloomfield is used by the Town for matters involving the VCUP.  His 
costs are passed along to and paid for by ARCO.  There is $30,000 budgeted for regular Town 
Attorney fees.  This money comes from the General Fund. Marti Whitmore’s fees come out of 
that water fund.  There is 100,000 budgeted for the ongoing VCUP negotiations. This account is a 
pass-thru account and should create no actual expense for the town. 

Town Planner.  This position is offset by development application and has been budgeted based 
upon the 2022 projected year end. Current Town Manager handles smaller land use permit 

 2

26



applications (variances, special use permits) Larger development applications that are reviewed 
by the planner are treated as a pass thru.  

Auditor.  The Town of Rico signed a letter of engagement with Atlas CPA for the 2021 – 2023 
Audits.  The cost of the 2022 audit will be $12,600   

Building Inspector.  Gregg Phillips became a certified inspector during 2022 and has been the 
town’s primary building inspector. In 2022 he volunteered his time when providing this service to 
give back to his community. This year there is $6,000 budgeted for building inspections. Permit 
fees offset the inspector’s wage.   

General Fund Expenses - Other:  
The other 21% of the General Fund expenses are dedicated to administrative related expenses 
including insurance, utilities and supplies as well as other things that are included in the budget 
details attached to this summary. These expense estimates are based on last year’s cost.  

Water Fund Revenues: 
Revenues from this year were based on minimum yearly rates for both active commercial and 
residential accounts. The budgeted revenue is very conservative, and Town should expend to 
exceed this number.   

Water Fund Expenses: 
The expense budget is based on last year’s expenses since there are no significant changes.  The 
2021 fund ending balance was budgeted to be 234,474, due to miscalculations the fund, closed at 
$23,168. Major projects related to the town’s water system have been tabled until next year due to 
the need to grow the account balance. If a large number of taps are sold or funds are available via 
a grant to replace the town’s third water tank the budget will need to be amended.  

Street Fund Revenues: 
Street Fund revenues come from sales and use taxes, property taxes, franchise tax (SMPA), 
highway user’s tax (State), lodging tax, excise tax, and the County Road and Bridge 
Reapportionment.     

Mineral Leasing and Severance Tax have been inconsistent and historically shrinking. 2022 was a 
strong year with 26,000 deposited between the two revenue categories but 2021 saw only 10,000 
in revenue.   

Street Fund Expenses: 
Cost estimates for the Street Fund were based on last year’s expenses. The John Deere Loader 
will be purchased outright before the end of 2022, dramatically reducing total expenditures within 
this fund. With that said, Street Fund expenses continue to outpace revenue but at a slower rate 
then the past few years. The Board should consider a ballot measure in 2023 asking votes to 
increase the mills associated with this fund.  

Sanitation Fund Revenues: 
Sanitation fund revenues come from a 3.939 mill levy.  The income estimate in this budget is 
based on the August valuation.   

 3

27



Sanitation Fund Expenses: 
Payroll transfers have been budgeted to grow compared to last year. This is related to the recent 
funds appropriated by the Federal Government and the amount of time the Town Manager will 
have to allocate towards this project. Also included in this budget is $50,000 for miscellaneous 
engineering and legal which will be needed as town pursues a sanitation district.    

Parks, Open Space and Trails Fund Revenues: 
This fund is supported by sales and use tax, lodging tax, and excise tax from building permits.  

Parks, Open Space and Trails Fund Expenses: 
The budgeted expenses for day-to-day operations are based on last year’s expenses since there are 
no significant changes. $20,000 from this fund have been appropriated to be used as a potential 
grant match for the FMP 

Conservation Trust Fund  
$40,000 from this fund have been appropriated to be used as a potential grant match for the FMP. 

Additional Considerations: 
Dependent on the timeline of the new public works facility and potential DOLA grant there will 
need to be a budget amendment in 2023 to address potential increase in both revenue and 
expenditure in all town funds   

 4

28



2021 2022 2022 2022 2023

Audit  Budget
Original vs 
Projected

Projected Year 
End Budget Proposed Budget Notes

Operating Revenues
Property Tax* 77,777.00 86,101.09 -5,101.09 81,000.00 85,885.00 1
Delinquent Taxes & Interest 303.00 200.00 4,650.00 4,850.00 1,000.00
Lodging Tax - 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 No new rentals

Sales & Use Tax 178,840.00 175,000.00 65,000.00 240,000.00 220,000.00
2022 - 8 month average 20,000 
2023 - based upon 18,333 average

Specific Ownership Tax 4,507.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,500.00 Based on prior year audit
Cigarette Tax - 190.00 -10.00 180.00 180.00 Based on 2022 collection

Motor Vehicle Tax 1,772.00 1,500.00 -1,100.00 400.00 0.00
Motor Vehicle sales tax goes into 
S/U 

Total Operating Revenues 263,199.00 270,991.09 63,438.91 334,430.00 315,560.00

Intergovernmental Revenue
Mineral Leasing 13,077.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.00 0.00 Moved to street fund
Severance Tax 385.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Moved to street fund
Building Permits - All licenses 
and permits are grouped 
together in audit 18,487.00 5,000.00 1,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 Based on 2022 construction
Septic Permit - 375.00 825.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 Based on 2022 construction
Development Applications - 20,000.00 -18,500.00 1,500.00 4,000.00

Business Licenses - 200.00 525.00 725.00 725.00
Based on 2022 licenses (no new 
businesses)

Dog Licenses  (licenses & 
permits together on audit) - 100.00 50.00 150.00 150.00 Based on 2022
Total Intergovernmental 
Revenues & Fees 31,949.00 30,675.00 -21,100.00 9,575.00 12,075.00

Miscellaneous Revenues

Interest 728.00 475.00 75.00 550.00 550.00 Based on 2022 projected year end. 

Fines & Forfeits 11,791.00 10,000.00 3,000.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 Based on 2022 projected year end. 

Rent - in miscellaneous in audit - 5,400.00 -600.00 4,800.00 4,800.00
May change if main street building 
is sold

SMPA dividend - in 
miscellaneous in audit - 400.00 170.00 570.00 400.00

Rico Center - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 No GF grant request
Miscellaneous Revenues 
(lumped together in audit 59,199.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CVRF (COVID relief fund) - in 
miscellaneous in audit - 29,000.00 30.00 29,030.00 0.00
Total Miscellaneous 71,718.00 45,275.00 2,675.00 47,950.00 18,750.00

Total Revenues before Payroll 
Transfers 366,866.00 346,941.09 45,013.91 391,955.00 346,385.00

Transfers
Payroll Transfer 158,176.00 128,649.38 7,350.62 136,000.00 156,700.00
Attorney pass through - 75,000.00 159,000.00 234,000.00 100,000.00 Net 0 on budget
Contract Labor Transfers - 8,000.00 -8,000.00 0.00 0.00
Total Payroll Transfers to / 
From Other Funds 158,176.00 211,649.38 158,350.62 370,000.00 256,700.00

Total Operating Revenues and 
Transfers 525,042.00 558,590.47 203,364.53 761,955.00 603,092.11

Special Projects Revenues 55,684.00 23,400.00 -10,600.00 12,800.00 12,800.00

Total Revenues 580,726.00 581,990.47 192,764.53 774,755.00 615,885.00

Expenses - Total 527,898.00 864,990.04 -17,590.04 847,400.00 614,090.00
Fund Balance Ending 937,388.00 654,388.43 864,743.00 866,538.00

Notes:

2022 Aug AV
Property Taxes, 

2022 Mill Levy
Assessed Valuation (AV) 6,596,552.00 85,887.11 13.020 

General Fund Revenues

1. A levy of 13.020 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation for assessment of taxable property in the Town of Rico.

General Fund Revenues

Page 2

 5

29



2021 2022 2022 2022 2023

Audit  Budget
Original vs 
Projected

Projected Year 
End Budget

Proposed 
Budget

Operating Expenses
Salaries & Wages

Town Administrator / Manager 40,940.00 70,000.00 1,000.00 71,000.00 79,000.00 Cost of living increase (CPI)

Maintenance 1 36,570.00 37,044.89 3,455.11 40,500.00 50,000.00
Increase to stay compliant with 
exempt wage minimums

Town Clerk / Admin Assistant 33,723.00 43,000.00 -2,000.00 41,000.00 46,650.00 Cost of living increase (CPI)
Park & Recreation 
Administrator - combined with 
all POST programs in audit - 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.00 0.00

Position not needed due to 
town manager in role

Park & Recreation groomer - 
combined with all POST 
programs in audit - 7,000.00 -500.00 6,500.00 7,000.00 Based on last year
Park & Recreation ice rink & 
park - combined with all POST 
programs in audit - 8,900.00 -6,900.00 2,000.00 7,000.00        No rink for 2023
Maintenance 2 - 35,000.00  -2,000.00 33,000.00 35,000.00      Based on 2022 
Water Technician 5,275.00 4,000.00 -1,500.00 2,500.00 4,000.00        Based on 2022 
Town Marshall 20,552.00 30,000.00 -14,000.00 16,000.00 20,000.00
 Subtotal - Salaries & Wages 137,060.00 239,944.89 -27,444.89 212,500.00 248,650.00

Employee Taxes and Benefits
Payroll Taxes 12,266.00 35,000.00              -20,750.00 14,250.00 20,000.00      7.6% Employer match
FAMLI - 1,200.00        .45% Employer match
Employer PERA  (employee 
benefits combined on audit) 59,307.00 32,000.00 -8,000.00 24,000.00 26,000.00 14.75% of full time wages

Employee Health Insurance - 38,000.00 -4,500.00 33,500.00 36,000.00
Small premium increase for 
2023

Employee Life Insurance 
(employee benefits combined 
on audit) - 137.00 3.00 140.00 140.00 Based on 2022
Employee Consideration  - 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
 Subtotal - Employee Taxes & 
Benefits 71,573.00 108,137.00 -33,247.00 74,890.00 86,340.00

 Subtotal - Employee Costs 208,633.00 348,081.89 -60,691.89 287,390.00 334,990.00

Other Labor
Municipal Court Judge (Part 
Time) 4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00 4,500.00 4,500.00
Town Attorney (plus 
prosecutor) 37,087.00 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00
VCUP Attorney (pass through) - 75,000.00 61,000.00 136,000.00 100,000.00 Net 0 on budget
Town Planner - 20,000.00 -15,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Auditor 6,357.00 12,000.00 200.00 12,200.00 6,300.00 Split between water
Building Inspector - not on 
audit - 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00

Accounting Services (Contract) - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 Subtotal - Other Labor 47,944.00 146,500.00 41,200.00 187,700.00 150,800.00

 Total Employee & Other 
Labor  256,577.00 494,581.89 -19,491.89 475,090.00 485,790.00

Other Administrative 
Expenses 223,399.00 93,250.40 5,259.60 98,510.00 118,000.00

Special Projects Expenses 47,868.00 277,157.75 -3,357.75 273,800.00 10,300.00

 Total General Fund Expenses 527,898.00 864,990.04 -17,590.04 847,400.00 614,090.00

General Fund Employee & 
Contract Labor Expenses

Notes

General Fund - Employees Contractors
Page 3

 6

30



2021 2022 2022 2022 2023

Audit Budget
Original vs 
Projected

Projected Year 
End Budget Proposed Budget

Administrative Costs
Insurance (CIRSA) 4,169.00 5,200.00 2,210.00 7,410.00 6,000.00 Based on renewal price

IT/Website - Domain 
Maintenance - under 
miscellaneous in audit - 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.00 1,000.00

Domain hosting is free, 
additional website/email 
software is needed

Advertisements/Agenda - in 
supplies in audit - 2,000.00 -1,500.00 500.00 1,000.00

Supplies 15,769.00 12,000.00 -2,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Based on 2022 projected 
year end

Dues & Fees - in miscellaneous 
in audit - 3,000.00 -1,000.00 2,000.00 3,000.00

Region 9 EDD and 
SWCOG combining 

Travel/Conference/ Training 
Expenses - in miscellaneous in 
audit - 7,500.00 -2,500.00 5,000.00 7,500.00

CML conference for 
board members. 

Miscellaneous 191,252.00 2,000.00 -1,800.00 200.00 0.00
 Subtotal - Administrative 
Costs  211,190.00 33,700.00 -8,590.00 25,110.00 28,500.00

Utilities
Electric - 2,200.00 -700.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 Conservative estimate
Propane - 5,000.00 500.00 5,500.00 5,500.00

Telephone & Internet - 6,000.00 -1,900.00 4,100.00 4,500.00
Cancelled unused 
accounts in 2022

Utilities-Other (all included in 
audit) 12,209.00 1,000.00 200.00 1,200.00 1,200.00

Based on 2022 projected 
year end 

 Subtotal - Utilities   12,209.00 14,200.00 -1,900.00 12,300.00 13,200.00

Town Vehicle Costs
Fuel (not separated on audit) - 3,500.00 -1,300.00 2,200.00 3,000.00
Repair & Maintenance - 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 15,000 Marshal truck needed
  Subtotal - Vehicle Costs  0.00 3,500.00 -300.00 3,200.00 18,000.00

Other 
Facilities Maintenance - all 
lumped into special projects on 
Audit - 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00
Elections - 3,000.00 -2,000.00 1,000.00 2,000.00
July 4th Expenses - 2,500.00 -950.00 1,550.00 2,000.00

Town Cleanup Day - 6,000.00 -1,150.00 4,850.00 2,000.00

Town Cleanup day to be 
changed to an event 
focused on cleaning 
outdoor spaces

Treasurer Fees - 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 Based on 2022

Lodging Tax Transfer - - - - 900.00

Transfers from General 
Fund to POST and Street 
Funds 20%

Sales & Use Tax Transfer - 25,350.40 22,649.60 48,000.00 44,000.00

Transfers from General 
Fund to POST and Street 
Funds 20%

Traffic Fine-Surcharge - 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.00 0.00
  Subtotal - Other  0.00 41,850.40 16,049.60 57,900.00 58,300.00

 Total Other Administrative 
Expenses 223,399.00 93,250.40 5,259.60 98,510.00 118,000.00

General Fund Other 
Administrative Expenses

Notes

General Fund Other Costs
Page 4

 7

31



2021 2022 2022 2022 2023

Audit Budget
Original vs 
Amended

Projected Year 
End Budget

Proposed 
Budget

Excise Tax - 2,000.00 2,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 1
Total Capital Improvement 
Revenues 0.00 2,000.00 2,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00

Special Projects / Grants 
Revenues
DOLA Planning Grant - 25,000.00 
Rico Center Cemetery Pass 
through - 3,400.00 4,900.00 8,300.00 8,300.00

Based on 2022 (pass-
thru)

Rico Center - River Corridor - 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.00 0.00

Rico Center - LUC Amendments - 15,000.00 -15,000.00 0.00 0.00
Rico Center - Facilities 
improvements - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Rico Center - Food Bank & Rico 
Cares - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
All lumped together on Audit 55,684.00
Total Special Projects / Grants 
Revenues 55,684.00 21,400.00 -13,100.00 8,300.00 8,300.00

Total Capital & Special 
Projects Revenues 55,684.00 23,400.00 -10,600.00 12,800.00 12,800.00

Capital Improvements 
Expenses
Facility Improvements (all 
special projects together in 
audit) 47,868.00 135,000.00 0.00 135,000.00 0.00
John Deere Loader 120,000.00 0.00 120,000.00 0.00 Purchased in 2022
Total Capital Improvements 
Expenses 47,868.00 255,000.00 0.00 255,000.00 0.00

Special Projects Expenses
River Corridor - 5,000.00 5,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 Project completed
LUC Amendments & High 
Resolution Photo - 10,757.75 -10,757.75 0.00 0.00
Rico Center Cemetery Pass 
through - 3,400.00 4,900.00 8,300.00 8,300.00

Based on 2022 (pass-
thru)

Rico Cares - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Christmas Lights - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Community Meetings - 3,000.00 -2,500.00 500.00 2,000.00

Total Special Projects/ Capital 
Improvement Expenses 47,868.00 277,157.75 -3,357.75 273,800.00 10,300.00

Notes:

1. The Town has a $2.00 per square foot excise tax on all new construction.  The General Fund receives 25% of the excise tax.  All revenues received 
from the excise tax can only be used for capital improvements and purchases.

General Fund Capital 
Improvement Revenues

Notes

General Fund Capital Special Projects Page 5 8

32



2021 2022 2022 2022 2023
Water Fund Revenues

Audit  Budget
Original vs 
Projected

Projected Year 
End Budget

Proposed 
Budget

Operating Revenues
Water Revenue 174,952.00 127,500.00 22,500.00             150,000.00 135,000.00 1
Interest 76.00 50.00 24.00 74.00 70.00
Electric Reimbursement 995.00 1,492.00 -52.00                 1,440.00 1,450.00
Miscellaneous - 500.00 -500.00 - 0.00
Total Water Fund Operating 
Revenues 176,023.00 129,542.00 21,972.00             151,514.00 136,520.00

Capital Improvement 
Revenues
Water Meter Replacement & 
Relocation Grant 132,311.00 0.00 120,064.00             120,064.00 -
Water Tap - 10,000.00 27,500.00               37,500.00 98,500.00
Tank Replacement - 234,500.00 -234,500.00 -   -

Total Water Fund Capital 
Improvement Revenues 132,311.00 244,500.00 (86,936.00) 157,564.00 98,500.00

Total Water Fund Revenues 308,334.00 374,042.00 -64,964.00             309,078.00 235,020.00

Expenses - Total 318,257.00           143,250.05             126,900.00 151,500.00    
Fund Balance Ending               23,168.00 253,959.95 205,346.00 288,866.00

Notes:
1 Base on number of accounts multiplied by monthly minimum rate: 20 Commercial ($68/Month), 250 residential ($38/Month)

Notes

Water Fund Revenues
 9

33



2021 2022 2022 2022 2023 Notes

Audit Budget
Original vs 
Amended

Projected Year 
End Budget Proposed Budget

Operating Expenses
Payroll Transfer 103,737.00 82,500.00 0.00 82,500.00 93,000.00 
Employee Benefits Life 31.00 50.00 -50.00 0.00 0.00 
Auditor - 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.00 6,300.00 Split between general
Accountant - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Attorney - 2,000.00 2,000.00 4,000.00 2,500.00 
 Subtotal - Employee and 
Other Labor Costs 103,768.00           90,550.00 - 4,050.00               86,500.00             101,800.00 

 Other Costs 
Insurance 4,612.00 7,000.00 -500.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 Based on renewal price
Repairs & Maintenance - 7,500.00 -4,000.00 3,500.00 7,500.00 
Supplies 31,489.00 5,000.00 1,300.00 6,300.00 5,000.00 
Water Samples 2,158.00 2,500.00 -500.00 2,000.00 2,500.00 
Electric 5,069.00 5,500.00 -500.00 5,000.00 5,500.00 
Propane 3,000.00 5,000.00 -1,000.00 4,000.00 5,000.00 
Utilities - other 1,578.00 2,000.00 -500.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 
Dolores Water Conservation 
District 2,700.00 2,700.05 -0.05 2,700.00 2,700.00 
Miscellaneous 28.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 
Water Fund Operating 
Expenses 50,634.00 37,700.05 -               5,700.05 32,000.00 37,200.00 

Total Water Fund Operating 
Expenses 154,402.00 128,250.05 -9,750.05 118,500.00 139,000.00

Capital Improvement 
Expenses
Water Meter Replacement & 
relocation 163,855.00 0.00 0.00 -   -
Water Tap & Installation - 7,500.00 -7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 
Preliminary maintenance 
facility planning - 5,000.00 -1,600.00 3,400.00 0.00 
Water Tank replacement - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Water Engineering Service - 2,500.00 2,500.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 
Total Water Capital 
Improvement Expenses 163,855.00 15,000.00 -               6,600.00 8,400.00 12,500.00

Total Water Fund Expenses 318,257.00 143,250.05 -             16,350.05 126,900.00 151,500.00

Water Fund Expenses

Water Fund Expenses Page 8 10

34



2021 2022 2022 2022 2023

Audit Budget
Original vs 
Projected

Projected Year 
End Budget Proposed Budget

Operating Revenues
Property Tax 10,704.00 11,804.18 -895.96 10,908.22 11,775.00 1
Sales & Use Tax 24,949.00 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 22,000.00 2
Specific Ownership Tax 618.00 500.00 100.00 600.00 500.00
Delinquent Tax & Interest - 15.00 505.00 520.00 250.00
Franchise Tax 6,227.00 7,300.00 200.00 7,500.00 7,000.00
Highway Users Tax 18,396.00 12,800.00 2,200.00 15,000.00 13,000.00

County R&B Reapportionment 11,814.00 11,800.00 1,250.00 13,050.00 12,000.00
Lodging Tax - - - - 450.00 3
Interest 44.00 30.00 15.00 45.00 40.00
Miscellaneous - 500.00 9,500.00 10,000.00 0.00
Mineral Leasing - - - 20,000.00 5,000.00 4
Severance Tax - - - 6,000.00 0.00 4
Rico Center Grant - Plowing 20,000.00 33,000.00 0.00 33,000.00 0.00

Total Street Fund Operating 
Revenues 92,752.00 97,749.18 38,874.04 136,623.22 72,015.00

Capital Improvement 
Revenues
Excise Tax 1,806.00 1,800.00 1,300.00 3,100.00 4,500.00 5
Total Street Fund Capital 
Improvement Revenues 1,806.00 1,800.00 1,300.00 3,100.00 4,500.00

Total Street Fund Revenues 94,558.00 99,549.18 40,174.04 139,723.22 76,515.00

Expenses - Total 85,968.00 108,350.00 75,280.00 87,500.00
Fund Balance Ending 69,215.00 60,414.18 133,658.22 122,673.22

Notes:

2022 Aug AV
Property Taxes, 

2022 Mill Levy
Assessed Valuation (AV) 6,596,552.00 11,774.85 1.785 

Street Fund Revenues

1. A levy of 1.785 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation for assessment of taxable property in the Town of Rico. 

5. The Town has a $2.00 per square foot excise tax on all new construction.  The Street Fund receives 25% of the excise tax.  All revenues received
from the excise tax can only be used for capital improvements and purchases.

Notes

4. Mineral leasing and severance tax has been shrinking historically. Past fiscal years funds have been deposited in the General Fund

2. Street Fund receives 10% of the total revenue collected from the Sales Tax.  The Sales Tax rate for the Town of Rico is 5%.

3. The Street Fund receives 10% of proceeds from the lodging tax, which is a 7% tax on all lodging.  Ordinance No. 2022-05.

Street Fund Revenues Page 10 11

35



2021 2022 2022 2022 2023

Audit  Budget
Original vs 
Amended

Projected Year 
End Budget Proposed Budget

Operating Expenses
Payroll Transfer 37,631.00 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 47,900.00 
Auditor - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Accounting Services - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 Subtotal - Employee and 
Other Labor Costs               37,631.00               40,000.00 - 40,000.00               47,900.00 
Contract Snow Removal 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.00 0.00 1
Equipment Rental 596.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 
Fuel 7,918.00 7,500.00 2,500.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 
Equipment Repairs & 
Maintenance 4,652.00 5,000.00 2,500.00 7,500.00 5,000.00 
Insurance 4,321.00 6,500.00 0.00 6,500.00 3,500.00 2
Supplies 3,521.00 2,500.00 -2,000.00 500.00 2,500.00 
Electric 1,383.00 2,000.00 -625.00 1,375.00 2,000.00 
Street Lights 1,128.00 1,500.00 -300.00 1,200.00 1,250.00 
Utilities - other 1,926.00 2,500.00 -635.00 1,865.00 2,500.00 
Treasurer Fees 214.00 350.00 -10.00 340.00 350.00 
Total Street Fund Operating 
Expenses 25,659.00 32,850.00 -               3,570.00 29,280.00 32,100.00 

Capital Improvement 
Expenses

Gravel Project - Various Streets - 5,000.00 -4,000.00 1,000.00 2,500.00 
Equipment Lease Loader 22,705.00 25,500.00 -25,500.00 0.00 0.00 
Preliminary maintenance 
facility planning - 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 
Water Truck - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Total Street Fund Capital 
Improvement Expenses 22,705.00 35,500.00 -29,500.00 6,000.00 7,500.00 

Total Street Fund Expenses 85,968.00 108,350.00 -33,070.00 75,280.00 87,500.00

Notes:

2. Funds were over appropriated for insurance in 2022, this has been corrected for 2023 and allows for the park and street fund to share 
insurance expenses.

Street Fund Expenses Notes

1. These funds are appropriated as a contingency but are not forecasted to be expended during 2023 fiscal year

Street Fund Expenses Page 11 12

36



2021 2022 2022 2022 2023

Audit Proposed Budget
Original vs 
Projected

Projected Year 
End Budget Proposed Budget

Operating Revenues
Property Tax 23,800.00 26,048.56 -1,978.56 24,070.00 25,983.00 1
Specific Ownership Tax 1,363.00 800.00 125.00 925 950.00 
Miscellaneous - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Delinquent Tax and Interest 105.00 105.00 1,115.00 1,220.00 150.00 

Total Sewer Fund Operating 
Revenues 25,268.00 26,953.56 -738.56 26,215.00 27,083.00 

Sewer Fund Expenses
Payroll Transfer 8,109.00 3,250.00 2,925.00 6,175.00 15,800.00 
Septic Inspection Certification 
& Training - 1,200.00 -1,200.00 0.00 1,000.00 
Treasurer Fees - 700.00 50.00 750.00 750.00 
Misc. Engineering/ legal - 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 2
Total Sewer Fund Operating 
Expenses 8,109.00 15,150.00 -8,225.00 6,925.00 67,550.00 

Fund Balance Ending             216,125.00 227,928.56             235,415.00             194,948.00 

Notes:

2022 Aug AV
Property Taxes, 

2022 Mill Levy

Assessed Valuation (AV) 6,596,522.00 25,983.70 3.939 

1. A levy of 3.939 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation for assessment of taxable property in the Town of Rico. 

2. Misc. expenditures have been appropriated for the legal and engineering to be used for the creation of a sanitation district and cover 
cost associated with the CDS the town is to receive 

Sewer Fund Notes

Sewer Fund 13

37



2021 2022 2022 2022 2023

Audit  Budget
Original vs 
Projected

Projected Year 
End Budget Proposed Budget

Operating Revenues
Sales & Use Tax 24,575.00 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 22,000.00 1
Lodging Tax 869.00 900.00 350.00 1,250.00 450.00 2
Interest 48.00 30.00 10.00 40.00 45.00 

Excise Tax 1,998.00 3,000.00 100.00 3,100.00 4,500.00 3
Miscellaneous Income 7,527.00
Total POST Fund Operating 
Revenues 35,017.00 23,930.00 460.00 24,390.00 26,995.00 

Special Project Revenues
Rico Center Grant - - - 36,000.00 
Rio Grande Southern Extension 
Grant Revenues - 125,000.00 -125,000.00 0.00 0.00 
Total POST Fund Revenues 35,017.00 148,930.00 -124,540.00 24,390.00 62,995.00 

Operating Expenses
Grooming Payroll Transfer (all 
payroll combined on Audit) 2,184.00 7,000.00 -3,000.00 4,000.00 7,000.00 
Ice Rink & Park Maintenance 
Payroll Transfer - 8,900.00 -3,900.00 5,000.00 7,000.00 
Administrator Payroll Transfer - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Repairs & Maintenance of 
Equipment (combined on 
audit) - 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,000.00 

Supplies (combined on audit) 15,791.00 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 5,000.00 
Insurance 3,245.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 2,500.00 4
Miscellaneous - 500.00 -500.00 0.00 500.00 
Total POST Fund Operating 
Expenses 21,220.00 30,400.00 -7,400.00 23,000.00 23,000.00 

Special Project Expenses
Flowers - 1,500.00 -415.00 1,085.00 1,500.00 
Carnival/Festival/Event - 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 
Grooming supplies - - - - 40,000.00 
Facility and Planning 
improvements (FPM 
Consulting) - 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 5
Rio Grande Southern Extension 
Trail - 100,000.00 -100,000.00 0.00 0.00 
POST Fund Special Project 
Expenses 0.00 123,000.00 -101,915.00 21,085.00 63,000.00

Total POST Expenses 21,220.00 153,400.00 44,085.00 86,000.00

Fund Balance Ending              101,766.00                97,296.00                82,071.00                59,066.00 

Notes:

4. Funds were over appropriated for insurance in 2022, this has been corrected for 2023 and allows for the park and street fund to share
insurance expenses.

Parks, Open Space and 
Recreation (POST Fund)

Notes

5. Funds to be appropriated for the potential grant match required for the town's parks and rec facility improvements. Size and scope of
project not yet determined by FMP consulting. 

1. The POST Fund receives 10% of the total revenue collected from the Sales Tax.  The Sales Tax rate for the Town of Rico is 5%.

2. The POST Fund receives 10% of proceeds from the lodging tax, which is a 7% tax on all lodging.  Ordinance No. 2022-05.

3. The Town has a $2.00 per square foot excise tax on all new construction.  The POST Fund receives 25% of the excise tax.  All revenues 
received from the excise tax can only be used for capital improvements and purchases.

Sch I Park Fund Page 13

 14 Park Fund 

38



2021 2022 2022 2022 2023

Audit Budget
Original vs 
Projected

Projected Year 
End Budget Proposed Budget

Operating Revenues
Lottery Proceeds 3,517.00 2,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00 2,500.00
Reimbursements - 0.00 0.00 

Total CTF Revenues 3,517.00 2,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00 2,500.00

Conservation Trust Expenses
FMP Capital Park Improvement 
Grant Match - 40,000.00 1
Projects - Rio Grande Southern 
Trail - 30,000.00 -30,000.00 0.00 0.00

Total CTF Expenses 0.00 30,000.00 -30,000.00 0.00 40,000.00

Total POST Expenses 0.00 30,000.00 0.00 40,000.00

Fund Balance Ending               40,874.00 12,874.00               43,874.00                 6,374.00 

Notes:
1) Funds to be appropriated for the potential grant match required for the town's parks and rec facility improvements. Size and scope

of project not yet determined by FMP consulting. 

 Conservation Trust Fund 
(CTF) Fund

Notes

Conservation Trust Fund
 15

39



Employee Allocation Details

Employees General Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Street Fund Parks Fund Total Allocation
2023 

Compensation Payroll Taxes FAMLI PERA
Medical per EE 

per year
Dental per EE per 

year
Vision per EE per 

year Total Health Care
Life Insurance per 

year Total
7.65% 0.45% 14.8% $9,252.00 $540.00 $76.32 Cost

Town Manager 40% 30% 20% 10% 0% 100% 79,000.00             6,043.50                355.50 11,652.50             $8,279.64 540.00 76.32 35.60 105,983.06           
Maintenance 1 0% 60% 0% 40% 0% 100% 50,000.00 3,825.00                225.00 7,375.00                $8,279.64 540.00 76.32 35.60 70,356.56             
Town Clerk/Admin Assistant 50% 50% 0% 0% 0% 100% 46,650.00 3,568.73                209.93 6,880.88                $13,811.10 1,080.00                76.32 35.60 72,312.55             
Parks & Recreation Administrator 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100% 0.00 - - - 
Part Time POST Groomer 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100% 7,000.00 535.50 31.50 7,567.00                
Part Time POST ice rink & park 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100% 7,000.00                535.50 31.50 7,567.00                
Maintenance 2 0% 50% 0% 50% 0% 100% 35,000.00             2,677.50                157.50 37,835.00             
Water Technician 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 100% 4,000.00                306.00 18.00 4,324.00                
Town Marshall 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 20,000.00 1,530.00                90.00 21,620.00             

248,650.00           19,021.73             1,118.93                25,908.38             33,490.38             2,160.00                228.96 35,879.34             106.80 330,685.17           

Contract Labor General Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Street Fund Parks Fund Total Allocation
2022 

Compensation
Municipal Court Judge 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 4,500.00
Town Attorney 90% 10% 0% 0% 0% 100% 32,500.00
VCUP Attorney 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100,000.00
Town Planner 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 5,000.00
Auditor 50% 50% 0% 0% 0% 100% 12,400.00
Accounting Services 50% 50% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0.00
Building Inspector 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 5,000.00 Total labor cost

159,400.00           490,085.17           
Transfers

Employees General Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Street Fund Parks Fund
2022 

Compensation
Town Manager 31,600 23,700 15,800 7,900 - 79,000.00 
Maintenance 1 30,000 - 25,000 - 50,000.00
Town Clerk/Admin Assistant 23,328 23,328 - - - 46,655.00
Parks & Recreation Administrator - - - - - 0.00
Part Time POST Groomer - - - - 7,000 7,000.00
Part Time POST ice rink & park - - - - 7,000 7,000.00                
Part Time Maintenance - 15,000 - 15,000 - 30,000.00 
Water Technician - - - - - 4,000.00 
Town Marshall 30,000 - - - - 30,000.00

Total Allocations 84,927.50             92,027.50             15,800.00             47,900.00             14,000.00             253,655.00 

Contract Labor General Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Street Fund Parks Fund Total Allocation
Municipal Court Judge 4,500 - - - - 4,500.00
Town Attorney 30,000 2,500 - - - 32,500.00
VCUP Attorney 100,000                 - - - - 100,000.00
Town Planner 5,000 - - - - 5,000.00
Auditor 6,200 6,200 - - - 12,400.00
Accounting Services - - - - - 0.00
Building Inspector 5,000 - - - - 5,000.00

Total Allocations 150,700.00           8,700.00                - - - 159,400.00           

Summary of Total Wages and Allocation Percentages 2023

Employee Allocation Details

 16

40



7 
 

 
PLANNING COMMISION MEETING MINUTES 

 
Date: November 9, 2022 
 
Call to order 
Michael Contillo called the meeting to order at 7:06PM. 
 
Present:   
   Chairman Mike Contillo    
   Gerrish Willis  
   Cristal Hibbard  
   Brad Fox 
   Leah Chmielewski 
Absent: 
   Andrew Romanyshyn 
   
Staff Present.   Chauncey McCarthy, Anna Wolf, Jen Stark, Wilton Anderson 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
 
Motion 
To approve the agenda. 
 Moved by Gerrish Willis, seconded by Cristal Hibbard. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
Approval of the Minutes 
Sam Patch was misspelled as well as Larry Carver’s name. 
Motion 
To approve the minutes with the above corrections. 
 Moved by Cristal Hibbard, seconded by Gerrish Willis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
Action Items 
Public hearing of the preliminary plat of the Dolores River Trail Development, located on portions 
of the Hillside 1, 2, and Yankee Boy, Rebecca and Gordon Mortensen, applicants 
Chairman Mike Contillo gives a summary of the previous public hearing as well as the site walk 
through. Town Manager brought the public comment that was in the packet to the Commission’s 
attention. Chauncey McCarthy expressed the concerns that the public works department have 
regarding the width of the road for snowplowing. They are concerned that there will not be enough 
room for the plow and a larger vehicle to pass safely. They are also concerned about snow storage 
in the area. 
Applicant Rebecca Adams explained that there are two sections to the road the one leading to 
the Forest Service road and beyond that. Originally this was going to be a private shared driveway 
however after discussion with the Town it has been proposed to dedicate it to the Town. 
Chauncey McCarthy explained that if it was Town owned the Town would take over maintenance 
both summer and winter as well as the maintenance of the Iron Draw culvert. If it is a shared 

41



8 
 

driveway a maintenance agreement will be recorded with each plat and lot. The road would be an 
easement for utilities to the town. 
Rebecca Adams expressed they are asking for the variance of 20’ and 12 degree road to disrupt 
the neighborhood less. 
Jen Stark advised that Planning Commission that they will be setting a precedence for the 
community for accepting HOA’s or growing the Town’s inventory of roads. 
Leah Chmielewski asked what the concerns and impacts these would have on the Town. 
Chauncey McCarthy explained that in the past not all agreements have been kept and with time 
the Town has taken on more than what has been agreed upon. 
Gerrish Willis voiced his concern that the trail from the new development to Piedmont could be 
gated if the development had a private road. 
Chauncey McCarthy expressed that these concerns should be addressed in the maintenance 
agreement if the road becomes a private driveway. 
Cristal Hibbard brought up the concerns in the written public comment that seemed to emphasize 
the concern over the square footage of the proposed lots due to the RPUD designation. She 
questioned if the Planning condition could make the square footage a condition of the approval. 
Rebecca Adams expressed they would like to keep the square footage to match the neighboring 
lots designation. 
Chauncey McCarthy expressed that he made the rough calculations for a house of the designated 
RPUD would have an impact of 8-10 residential houses in a 6 lot subdivision. 
Kim Perdue Attorney for the applicant cautioned to rezone the land there is a due process that is 
not up to the Planning Commission. 
Discussion was had regarding the RPUD status and the rezoning that Rebecca Adams is doing 
by splitting up the lot. 
Jen Stark commented that the Planning Commission is working under the Rico Land Use Code 
which heavily leans on the Rico Master Plan. The Master Plan leans on the quality of life in Rico, 
articulating the landscape of Rico. The Planning Commission is weighing the legitimacy of this 
Master Plan. 
Cristal brought up the fact that the hydrology report assumed a 2000sqft home. 
The applicant’s engineer commented that he could not imagine building a 4500sqft one floor home 
on these sites. 
Mice Contillo brought up the discussion item of the lots and their building sites, whether the plat 
should have to include building envelops. 
Chauncey McCarthy went over the building envelops on the plat. 
Leah Chmielewski asked if the Town could approve the plan as is with the variances and if needed 
later on correct the variances to fit the standard. 
Chauncey McCarthy explained that this is possible however the improvements would be on the 
Town’s dime. 
 
Public Comment: 
Will Lochte questioned what the Town’s plan is for the traffic on Depot Hill. 
The Town Manager commented that this is not relevant to the current application. 
 
Skip Zeller: really what’s in front of us is has the applicant met the requirements of the Rico 
Land Use code. This is not a time for personal vendettas. If the applicants meet the 
requirements you don’t have a choice but to approve it. These applicants have worked with the 
town to minimize the impact. This could have an impact on the future of the town. Let’s work 
with them folks. 
 
Joe Croke: Expressed that he has no financial interest in this project. The applicants have done 
a great job. There are still questions raised by engineering about Iron Draw and importation of 

42



9 
 

Concrete for the site. The Land Use Code relies on the Master Plan, the Master Plan is a broad 
document, and it was an image of what the writers thought the Town would look like down the 
road. The PUD’s were put there due to a lack of planning with the hope that future Planning 
Commissions would take them on. To have the Planning Commission take them on as 
individual zoning applications. They were put there as open zoning areas as you go. The 
development application process is how we should go forward in the future. The most impacted 
area of this development is the Iron Draw. 
 
Lauri Adams: Expressed that she is a low impact kind of person. She is concerned about the 
disruption to the land. After the site walk through she questions what the benefit to the town is for 
this development to happen. This is precedence setting for future applications. While she respects 
private property she also believes there needs to be thoughts on the community rights as well. 
She emphasized the question of what is the benefit to the Town. 
 
Planning Commission discussion: 
Gerrish Willis: Concerns about the public access to the trail and dedicated land. There is also a 
concern for the snow storage in the development. Consideration of designated snow storage on 
the plat. Concerns about the precedence that accepting these road variances will set. Why not 
require them to meet the standards in the Land Use Code. 
Brad Fox commented that the variances seem to benefit the Town, but agrees to the added snow 
storage to the plat. 
Discussion between Mike Contillo and Brad Fox regarding the standard and the observation that 
not many roads in town meet the Standard. When to start enforcing the standard. 
Rebecca Adams mentioned that in some places the road could be widened to the 24’ width. 
 
Motion 
To recommend to the Board of Trustees to approve the preliminary plat, moving forward with it 
platted as a Town road with the conditions that snow storage areas are taken into consideration. 
            Moved by Cristal Hibbard, seconded by Brad Fox. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 4-1 
 
Motion 
To adjourn the meeting. 
 Moved by Cristal Hibbard, seconded by Gerrish Willis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:38 pm. 
 
 
 ___________________                                                                         ________________                                                       
        Anna Wolf                   Mike Contillo 
       Rico Town Clerk                                                                                       Chairman 

43



DOLORES RIVER SUBDIVISION  
 
To: Town Of Rico 
From: Rebecca and Gordon Mortensen 
Date: 10/2/2022 
RE: Public Hearing on Subdivision Application, Dolores River Subdivision 
Preliminary Plat Submittal 
Cover Letter 
 

To whom it may concern, 

 
In the attached packet you will find our Preliminary plat for the Dolores River Subdivision, application 
materials, and engineering studies that we have been diligently working on over the past 2 years. We also 
wanted to share some background on the application and why we feel this subdivision will offer a needed 
and positive development opportunity for the Town of Rico.  
 
When Gordon and I purchased this property in early 2020, we knew it was, like much of the Rico area, 
complex in terms of both history and platting.  The land was and still is currently being used for recreation by 
the public, local residential access and through access for an existing residential parcel that already has plans 
to be built on in the next 12 months.  
 
The entirety of our property exists within town boundaries and based on the current master plan, is all zoned 
residential PUD, making the initial intention for the area: residential development. Rather than half acre 
parcels throughout the entire property, we believe this plan is much more suited to the needs and desires of 
the Rico community. 
 
It also allows us to address the issues with access roads, town ownership over right of ways, neighbors’ 
driveways and yards, and public recreation.  
 
As we all know, Rico is unique in the sense that it was created and platted around mining claims and without 
regard to building feasibility, public access or recreation. We know this is a larger issue that the town is 
currently facing as it revisits the new zoning and master plan. Moving forward that differentiation between 
the best areas for development is critical, as well as permanently putting in place critical public access.  
 
We believe this plan creates the most holistic use and ensures lasting public access while creating thoughtful 
residential development.  
  
We look forward to meeting and reviewing our materials.  

 

All our best, 

Rebecca and Gordon Mortensen 

744



1 DRT Preliminary Plat Review memo  
 

TOWN OF RICO 
DOLORES COUNTY, COLORADO 

INCORPORATED OCTOBER 11, 1879 
2 North Commercial Street 

Post Office Box 9 
Rico, Colorado 81332 
Office # 970.967.2861 

Fax # 970.967.2862 
www.townofrico.colorado.gov 

 
 
 
 
To: Rico Planning Commission  
From: Town Staff 
RE: Dolores River Trails Subdivision Initial Application for Preliminary Plat Review 
 
The Rico Town staff has received the Dolores River Trails subdivision for Preliminary 
Plat Review.  
For General Information: (not applicable to the current Preliminary Plat review): 
According to the RLUC section 270 et al; 
-RUPD is for single-Family, duplex, triplex, accessory dwelling use, and home 
occupation. 
Design regulations:  

 
 
Review:  
Preliminary Plat Approval Section 530 et al; 
 
532. OVERVIEW OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL PROCEDURES The 
Preliminary Plat Approval process is the second stage of the subdivision approval 
process. The Preliminary Plat Approval process is intended to review and approve 
technical drawings, surveys, and engineering plans in relation to Town standards and 
existing Town utilities, facilities, and other services. Approval at the Preliminary Plat 
stage generally approves the technical aspects of the proposed subdivision. After the 
Conceptual Plan is approved and a complete Preliminary Plat Approval application is 
submitted to the Town copies of the Preliminary Plat Approval application shall be 
forwarded to all appropriate agencies for their review and comment and the Town 
Manager and/or Planner shall schedule a date for official receipt and review of the 
Preliminary Plat on the next available Planning Commission agenda. The Applicant must 
supply all required information and meet all required review standards for approval of the 
Preliminary Plat. Required information includes: revised reports from the Conceptual 

845

http://www.townofrico.colorado.gov/


2 DRT Preliminary Plat Review memo  
 

Plan stage if any changes were made or required when the Conceptual Plan was 
approved, a Preliminary Plat and any other required materials. 
 
 Staff Comments: There were changes that occurred after Conceptual Plan 

approval. These changes were initiated by the applicant after a meeting with staff 
in preparation for Preliminary Plat review. Some of these changes include plat 
notes that denote zoning and use, naming of streets, reconfiguration of open 
space dedication, inclusion of building envelopes, and plat notes denoting 
easements. These will be pointed out by either the applicant or staff or jointly as 
the applicant moves through public hearing review.  

 
534. PRELIMINARY PLAT, MAPS AND OTHER REQUIRED MATERIALS  
 
534.1. Required Materials and Copies: The Applicant shall submit copies of the 
Preliminary Plat and Improvements Survey of a scale sufficient to be clearly legible and 
useful for review purposes, and copies of other required materials according to the 
following schedule: 
 A. One mounted Preliminary Plat and one copy of other required materials for public 
presentation and inspection.  
B. Eleven (11)copies of the Preliminary Plat and other required materials [ seven copies 
for Planning Commission members, one copy for Town Planning Staff, one copy for 
Town Attorney, one copy for Town Engineer, one copy for Town Clerk.]  
C. Three copies of the Improvement Survey and Engineering Plans, if any improvements 
are proposed [one copy for Town Engineer, one copy for Town Clerk, one copy for Town 
Planning Staff]. 
 D. Additional copies of the Preliminary Plat, Improvements Survey, Engineering Plans, 
and other required materials as determined at the Conceptual Plan Approval stage for the 
purpose of obtaining necessary or appropriate review and comment from other Rico Land 
Use Code ARTICLE V - SUBDIVISIONS AND REPLATS June 15th 2011 Page V-9 
agencies.  
 
According to subdivision Preliminary Plat Review procedures RLUC 534 et al., the 
applicant is required to have the following: 
 
534.2 Preliminary Plat Requirements: The accuracy of location of alignments, 
boundaries, and monuments on the Preliminary Plat shall be certified by a registered land 
surveyor licensed to do such work in the State of Colorado. All plats and maps shall 
indicate true north line, name of subdivision, name of applicant, USGA township, range, 
section and quarter section, block and lot number. A work-man like execution of the plan 
shall be made in every detail. This includes 534.2 A-G. Please note that poorly drawn or 
illegible plan shall be a sufficient cause for its rejection under the RLUC. 
 
 Staff Comment: this requirement has been met. Applicant improved this 

requirement by adding Block, street layout and designation of zoning and use. 
 
534.3. Improvements Survey and Engineering Plans: The Applicant shall submit an 
Improvements Survey and any Engineering Plans if any improvements are proposed, or 
engineering plans are required for review of proposed mitigation, as determined at the 
Conceptual Plan Approval stage.  This includes 534.3 A & B 
 

946



3 DRT Preliminary Plat Review memo  
 

 Staff Comment: this requirement has been met. Applicant improved this 
requirement by adding existing easements from previously recorded plat notes of 
prior plats pertaining to portions affecting this application. Thorough review and 
a report will be provided prior to public hearing by a Town Engineer. 

 
534.4. Other Materials: The Applicant shall submit other materials associated with the 
Preliminary Plat Approval application including sections of 538.1 A-C. 
 
 Staff Comment: this requirement has been met until further review by outside 

entities upon request of The Town of Rico for any anticipated or discovered 
concerns. The map has been revised after coordination with Town staff including 
road dedication, open space dedication and lot sizes/ numbers with Hazard 
Constraints. 

 
 
538.  PRELIMINARY PLAT REVIEW: As a reminder here is the newly adopted 

process for Preliminary Plat Review Ord. 2022-06 
 
538.1. Planning Commission Review and Board of Trustees Approval: The Rico 

Planning Commission shall review the Preliminary Plat and all supporting 
documents and information at a public hearing and shall review all comments 
taken at the public hearing and all comments taken from other reviewing 
agencies. The Planning Commission Board shall recommend that the Board of 
Trustees approve, approve with conditions, or deny the Preliminary Plat 
Application based upon compliance with standards in this Section and other 
applicable laws of the Town of Rico, State of Colorado, or United States of 
America. The Planning Commission may continue its review decision if mutually 
agreed upon by the Applicant and the Planning Commission, or if in the judgment 
of the Planning Commission and Town Staff the issues presented in the 
Preliminary Plat require additional time for review. After the Planning 
Commission issues its recommendation on the Preliminary Plat application, the 
Board of Trustees shall review the application at a regularly scheduled Board of 
Trustees meeting within the next forty-five (45) days. The Board of Trustees shall 
hold a public hearing on the application and shall approve, approve with 
conditions, or deny the Preliminary Plat application based upon compliance with 
standards in this Section and other applicable laws of the Town of Rico, State of 
Colorado, or United States of America. 

 
538.3.  Standards: This paragraph sets forth the standards for Preliminary Plat Review. 

The Planning Commission and Board of Trustees shall cite specific standards 
when recommending or imposing conditions on approval, or denying, a 
Preliminary Plat Approval application. 

A.  The Preliminary Plat shall conform in all major respects to the Conceptual Plan as 
previously reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission and shall address 
any conditions imposed at the Conceptual Plan stage. 

1047



4 DRT Preliminary Plat Review memo  
 

B.  The Preliminary Plat and other engineering related materials, including proposed 
mitigation plans, are reviewed and approved, or approved with reasonable 
modifications, by the Town Engineer; 

C.  The Preliminary Plat shall meet the Minimum Subdivision Standards for 
subdivision design in Section 550, including standards for landscape preservation 
(550.1), lots (550.2), and streets (552.1). 

D.  All comments from other reviewing agencies have been reviewed by appropriate 
Town Staff, Planning Commission, and the Board of Trustees and all comments 
are addressed and resolved by the Planning Commission and the Board of 
Trustees. 

 
 
 

1148



TITLE CERTIFICATE

__________ _____________________ does hereby certify that he, she, or it has examined the Title to all

lands shown upon this plat and that Title to such lands is vested in

________________________________________________, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances,

except as follows:

__________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________.

Dated this ______ day of _______________, A.D., 2022.

______________________________________

 Authorized Representative

O:NERS CERTIFICATE :

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS That Rebecca Adams and Gordon Mortensen  being the sole owner of the following described land:

Hillside Lode and Hillside No 2 Patented Mining Claim 23559, Mineral Survey No. 7994, in the Rico Mining District AKA the Pioneer Mining District;LESS AND EXCEPT that

portion thereof deeded in that certain Quit Claim Deed recorded June 24, 2011 in Book 399 at page 140;and Home Lode Patented Mining Claim 25545, Mineral Survey No.

8031, in the Rico Mining District AKA the Pioneer Mining District;LESS AND EXCEPT that portion thereof deeded in that certain Quit Claim Deed recorded June24, 2011 in Book

399 at page 140; and LESS AND EXCEPT that portion thereof deeded in that certain Quit Claim Deed recorded June24, 2011 in Book 399 at page 138; and LESS AND

EXCEPT that portion thereof deeded in that certain Quit Claim Deed recorded June 24, 2011 in Book 399 at page 136; and LESS AND EXCEPT that portion thereof deeded in

that certain Quit Claim Deed recorded June 24, 2011 in Book 399 at page 134; and Sam Patch Patented Mining Claim 25545, Mineral Survey No. 8031, in the Rico Mining

District AKA the Pioneer Mining District; LESS AND EXCEPT Lots 1, 2 and 3, Sam Patch Subdivision, according to the final plat thereof recorded in the office of the Clerk and

Recorder, January 3, 2005 at Reception No. 148253 is Plat Book 2 at page 144; and Yanky Boy Patented Mining Claim 21107, Mineral Survey No. 6969, in the Rico Mining

District AKA the Pioneer Mining District; all in the County of Dolores, State of Colorado.

 Located in  NE 1/4 Section 35, T40N, R11W, N.M.P.M.,The Town of Rico, Dolores County, Colorado. does hereby cause the same to be laid out, platted and

subdivided into lots as shown on this plat under the name and style of  DOLORES RIVER SUBDIVISION LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 35, T40N,

R11W, N.M.P.M., TOWN OF RICO, DOLORES COUNTY, COLORADO.

Owner:

By:_________________________________________________________    Date:_____________________

Rebecca Adams Owner

State of  _______________ )

                                             )ss.

County of ______________ )

Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this _____ day of ________________, 2022, by ___________________________________________________.

Witness my hand and official seal.

_________________________________________________ My commission expires: ________________

Notary Public

TREAS8RERS CERTIFICATE:

According to the records of the County of Dolores Treasurer there are no liens against this subdivision or any part thereof for

unpaid state, county municipal or local taxes or special assessments due and payable.

Dated this:__________________day of_____________________2022

-----------------------------------------------

JanIe  Stiasny

Dolores County Treasurer

RECORDER
S CERTIFICATE:

This Plat was filed for record in office of the Dolores County Clerk and

Recorder on this_________day of __________. 2022, at

Plat Book Number__________, Page Number_________,

Reception Number___________,

Time____________.

______________________________________________

Dolores County Clerk

APPROVAL BY T+E TO:N OF RICO� COLORADO:

This Plat titled DOLORES RIVER SUBDIVISION LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 35, T40N,

R11W, N.M.P.M., TOWN OF RICO, DOLORES COUNTY, COLORADO., is authorized and approved for filing

this _______________day of

 _________________________________,2022

 By:_____________________________________________

Mayor, Nicole Pieterse

Attest:_____________________________

           Town Clerk, Anna Wolf

APPROVAL BY T+E PLANNIN* AND =ONIN* COMMISSION TO:N OF
RICO� COLORADO:
The Planning and Zoning Commission of Rico, Colorado did hereby authorize and approve this This Plat titled DOLORES RIVER

SUBDIVISION LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 35, T40N, R11W, N.M.P.M., TOWN OF RICO, DOLORES

COUNTY, COLORADO.

at the meeting held on

this _______________day of _________________________________,2022

 By:_____________________________________________

      Chair Person, _______________________

RICO TOWN SITE

AREA

VICINITY MAP

N

NTS

S8RVEYOR
S CERTIFICATE :

I Thomas Clark, do hereby certify that I am a Licensed Professional Land Surveyor licensed under the laws of the State of Colorado; that this plat is a true, correct and

complete Plat of Dolores River Subdivision, Located in The Town of Rico, Section 36, T40N, R11W, N.M.P.M., Dolores County, Colorado

.

 as laid out, platted,

dedicated and shown hereon; that such plat was made from an accurate survey of said property by me and/or under my responsible supervision, and correctly shows

the location and dimensions of the lots, easements, streets and roads of said subdivision as the same are staked upon the ground in compliance with applicable

regulations governing the subdivision of land.

In Witness whereof, I have set my hand and seal this _____ day of _______________, A.D., 2022.

___________________________________

Thomas A. Clark                       PLS 38014

S8RVEYORS NOTES:

1. Easement research and property description provided by ALPINE TITLE - TELLURIDE, File Number 2930CEA effective  on February 12, 2021, 8:00 am

2. BASIS OF BEARINGS: Bearings for this survey are based on found monuments, at the centerline intersection of Glasgow Ave. and Mantz Ave. and the centerline

intersection if Glasgow Ave and King Street,  that bearing being N 02° 06' 00" W, the historic and accepted bearing for the Town of Rico.

3. Lineal units represented on this map are in U.S. Survey Feet or a decimal portion thereof.

4. This survey is valid only if a printed or electronic copy has a seal and signature of the surveyor noted within the statement above.

5. NOTICE: According to Colorado law you must commence any legal action based upon defect in this survey within three years after you first discover such defect. In

no event may any action based upon any deficit in this survey be commenced more then ten years from the date of the certification shown hereon.

6. Approval of this plan may create a vested right pursuant to Article 68 of Title 24 C.R.S. as amended.

7. Total area of property within this subdivision is 6.090 Acres.

8. Construction of any improvements that may encroach on to adjoining property, not owned by the developer, shall require a temporary construction easement or an

encroachment easement between the parties.

.

6

5

22

1

4

KING STREET

ELLIOT  STREET

CAMPBELL  STREET

MANTZ  AVENUE

13

14

G
LA

SG
O

W
  A

V
EN

U
E

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L 

ST
R

EE
T

SI
LV

ER
  S

TR
EE

T

25

16

15

16

17

7

G
A

R
FI

EL
D

  S
TR

EE
T

28

12

25

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

21

22

23

21

22

23

24

25

26

20

19

18

17

16

15

8

26

8R

H
A

N
C

O
C

K
 S

TR
EE

T

10R

12R

18

SODA STREET

9

23

24

R
IV

ER
 S

TR
EE

T

29

30

21

20

40

1

10

13

2

3

4

5

20

1

10

11

28

27

38

33

21

21

20

40

1

25

26

22

1 2 3

4

40

40

40

21

21

40

21

19

20

27

29

27 R
IV

ER
 S

TR
EE

T

24

21

36

34

33

32

31

20

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

1

8

7

6

5

PI
ED

M
ON

T 
ST

RE
ET

8

9

3

3

COR 36 RICO TS

PI
CK

ER
 S

TR
EE

T

EDER STREET

34

35

37

36

TOMPSON

TRACT

MERRITT

28

29

30

19

18

37

20

19

18

20

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

16

15

20

PROPERTY ACCEPTANCE:

Tract A is to be joined with and become a part of Lots 18,19 and 20, Block36, Town of Rico Colorado and is hereby accepted by

Thomas Clark

By:_________________________________________________________    Date:_____________________
Thomas Clark Owner

State of  _______________ )
                                             )ss.
County of ______________ )

Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this _____ day of ________________, 2022, by
___________________________________________________.
Witness my hand and official seal.

__________ ______________________________________ My commission expires: ________________
Notary Public

Tract B is to be joined with and become a part of Lots 15,16 and 17, Block36, Town of Rico Colorado and is hereby accepted by

 Larry Carver and Jill Carver

By:_________________________________________________________    Date:_____________________
Larry carver Owner

State of  _______________ )
                                             )ss.
County of ______________ )

Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this _____ day of ________________, 2022, by
___________________________________________________.
Witness my hand and official seal.

__________ ______________________________________ My commission expires: ________________
Notary Public

By:_________________________________________________________    Date:_____________________
Jill Carver Owner

State of  _______________ )
                                             )ss.
County of ______________ )

Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this _____ day of ________________, 2022, by
___________________________________________________.
Witness my hand and official seal.

__________ ______________________________________ My commission expires: ________________
Notary Public

Tract C is to be joined with and become a part of Lots 12,13 and 14, Block36, Town of Rico Colorado and is hereby accepted by

Larry Carver and Jill Carver

By:_________________________________________________________    Date:_____________________
Larry carver Owner

State of  _______________ )
                                             )ss.
County of ______________ )

Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this _____ day of ________________, 2022, by
___________________________________________________.
Witness my hand and official seal.

__________ ______________________________________ My commission expires: ________________
Notary Public

Tract D is to be joined with and become a part of Lots 5,6, 7, 8, 9, 10  and 11, Block36, Town of Rico Colorado and is hereby accepted by

Skip Zeller

By:_________________________________________________________    Date:_____________________
Skip Zeller Owner

State of  _______________ )
                                             )ss.
County of ______________ )

Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this _____ day of ________________, 2022, by
___________________________________________________.
Witness my hand and official seal.

__________ ______________________________________ My commission expires: ________________
Notary Public

SUBJECT
AREA

EASEMENTS ACCEPTED AND APPROVED BY :

______________________________                       ______________________________

Town of Rico Public Works                                       Rico Telephone

______________________________                       ______________________________

San Miguel Power

______________________________

PLAT  NOTES:

1. Maximum Floor Area. The properties depicted on the plat are classified as Residential Planned Unit Development as defined in the Town of Rico Official Zoning

Map. Residential structure(s) shall be limited to a total maximum floor area of 4,500 square feet as defined in the Rico Land Use Code. This maximum floor area

limitation shall be a restrictive covenant that shall run with and burden the land for the benefit of the owners of Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6, Dolores River Subdivision and

for the benefit of the Town of Rico.

2. Building Envelopes. There are hereby established “Building Envelopes” on portions of Lots 1, 2, and 6 within the Dolores River Subdivision, as depicted and labeled

on this plat. Building envelopes for Lots 3, 4, and 5, which are not depicted or labeled, comprise the entirety of those lots less the setbacks required by the Town of

Rico Land Use Code. Subject to the applicable provisions of the Town of Rico Land Use Code, other Town ordinances, and applicable state law, the construction of

improvements, structures, and buildings of any kind outside the Building Envelopes is prohibited, except that construction of landscaping and fences shall be allowed

outside the Building Envelopes.

3. Forest Service Road: Owner shall dedicate to the Town a twenty (20)-foot wide non-exclusive easement for recreational, vehicular, public, and utility access, and

other road rights-of-way purposes as shown on the plat, for connection to the existing Engle Cabin/Burnett forest service road. Owner is prohibited from gating or

restricting public access over the easement. Owner reserves the right to relocate the twenty (20)-foot wide non-exclusive easement, subject to the Town road building

application process and other applicable laws.

.

DATE:_3/3/2022

DRAWN_BY
TC

CHECKED_BY

JOB#_21013

SHEET-1-OF-2

PO BOX 754 OPHIR, COLORADO 81435 (970) 708-9694

ALL POINTS LAND SURVEY L.L.C.
PRELIMINARY PLAT OF DOLORES RIVER SUBDIVISION LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF

SECTION 35, T40N, R11W, N.M.P.M., TOWN OF RICO, DOLORES COUNTY, COLORADO.

JCC

1249



N

SAM PATCH
SUBDIVISION

SHAMROCK

B
L
O

C
K

 3
6
 T

O
W

N
 O

F
 R

IC
O

EDER
 STREET

BLOCK 34 TOWN
OF RICO

YANKY BOY  MS. 6969

HIL
L 

SID
E 2

  M
S. 7

994

SAM PATCH
MS. 8031

HIL
L 

SID
E  M

S. 7
994

HOM
E

M
S. 8

031

TRACT H

T
R

A
C

T
 A

T
R

A
C

T
 B

TRACT D

4
0
' R

.O
.W

.

2

5

'
 

W

I

D

E

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

L
O

T
S

 1
8
-2

0
C

L
A

R
K

L
O

T
S

 1
5
-1

7
C

A
R

V
E

R
L
O

T
S

 1
2
-1

4
C

A
R

V
E

R

L
O

T
S

 5
-1

1
Z

E
L
L
E

R

MERRITT

4

0

'
 
R

I
G

H

T

 
O

F

 
W

A

Y

 
T

O

 
B

E

 
C

R

E

A

T

E

D

 
B

Y

 
T

H

I
S

 
P

L

A

T

2

0

'
 

R

O

A

D

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

RECEPTION No.141962

T
R

A
C

T
 C

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
G

R
A

V
E

L
 
R

O
A

D

LOT 2 BUILDING

ENVELOPE

LOT 1

BUILDING

ENVELOPE

OPEN SPACE

             LOT 6

BUILDING ENVELOPE

LOT 1
.504 ACRES

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6
1.474 ACRES

TRACT F

0.108 ACRES

0
.0

5
7
 A

C
R

E
S

LINE TABLE

LINE # BEARING DISTANCE

CURVE TABLE

CURVE # ARC LENGTH RADIUS DELTA ANGLE CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

0
.0

3
9
 A

C
R

E
S

0
.0

5
6
 A

C
R

E
S

CURVE TABLE

CURVE # ARC LENGTH RADIUS DELTA ANGLE CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

LINE TABLE

LINE # BEARING DISTANCE

LINE TABLE

LINE # BEARING DISTANCE

LOT 1   SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOT

LOT 2   SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOT

LOT 3   SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOT

LOT 4   SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOT

LOT 5   SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOT

LOT 6   SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOT

DSS LLC

ADAMS / MORTENSEN

ADAMS / MORTENSEN

ADAMS / MORTENSEN

ADAMS / MORTENSEN

KYLE
ADAMS / MORTENSEN

TOTAL ACREAGE FOR
DOLORES RIVER SUBDIVISION = 6.036 ACRES

∆

1

2

'
 
B

U

I
L

D

I
N

G

 
S

E

T

 
B

A

C

K

1

2

'
 
B

U

I
L

D

I
N

G

 
S

E

T

 
B

A

C

K

1

2

'
 
B

U

I
L

D

I
N

G

 
S

E

T

 
B

A

C

K

D
O

L
O

R
E

S
 

R
I

V
E

R
 

T
R

A
I

L

7
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
T

 B
A

C
K

7
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
T

 B
A

C
K

7

'
 
B

U

I
L

D

I
N

G

 
S

E

T

 
B

A

C

K

7

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

S

E

T

 

B

A

C

K

0.502 ACRES

0.541 ACRES

1.238 ACRES

0.229 ACRES

CURVE TABLE

CURVE # ARC LENGTH RADIUS DELTA ANGLE CHORD BEARING CHORD LENGTH

0.510 ACRES

1

2

'
 
B

U

I
L

D

I
N

G

S

E

T

 
B

A

C

K

7

'
 
B

U

I
L

D

I
N

G

 
S

E

T

 
B

A

C

K

7
'
 
B

U

I
L
D

I
N

G

 
S

E

T
 
B

A

C

K

7
'
 
B

U
I
L
D

I
N

G
 
S

E
T

 
B

A
C

K

7
'
 
B

U
I
L
D

I
N

G
 
S

E
T

 
B

A
C

K

∆

2.607 ACRES

PO BOX 754 OPHIR, COLORADO

 81435 (970) 708-9694

ALL POINTS LAND SURVEY L.L.C.

JCC

DATE:9/23/2016

DRAWN_BY
TC

CHECKED_BY

JOB#_21013

SHEET-2-OF-2

PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR DOLORES RIVER SUBDIVISION

 LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 35, T40N, R11W, N.M.P.M.,

  TOWN OF RICO, DOLORES COUNTY, COLORADO.

1350

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 50'



Alpinelandconsulting.com 

Memorandum 

1451



1552



1653



10-07-22

1754



712 Eagle Pass
Durango, CO 81301
970-946-3175

1 | P a g e

To: Town of Rico
From:  Mountain Civil Consulting, LLC
Date: 11/1/22
RE: Comment – Response Letter – Town Engineer

Dolores River Trail Subdivision
Preliminary Plat

This letter is being provided to address agency review comments from the Town of Rico dated 10/07/22.

The Agency Review comments are included as an appendix to this letter.

Comments:

1. The improvements at the southern property boundary have been modified to be within the

existing Ute Trail and proposed ROW.

2. During the conceptual plan review phase it was established that the access road would be

considered Town ROW moving forward into the Preliminary Plat phase.

3. See plat, the open space dedication includes Tract F and the Access Easement over the

“Piedmont Road” which is used as a community trail.

4. No action required.

5. The road crown grade will be constructed per Town standards to provide adequate drainage in

winter conditions.

6. A variance request for 40’ ROW width has been added.

7. Drainage Easements have been added to allow for maintenance of the Iron Draw Culvert.

8. The road design has been modified.  Drainage design has been modified to include conveyance

of runoff in ROW. A note to convey runoff within the ROW has been added.

9. The Iron Draw Culvert design has been revised.  The channel slope shall be 4:1 max.

10. Road design has been modified to avoid any disturbance to the wetland. A wetland disturbance

permit will be processed with the town as road construction is within the wetland buffer zone.

11. Applicant has submitted the wetland delineation report to the Town.

12. Drainage report will be stamped as prepared by a CO PE.

13. General Information section has been modified as requested.

14. Plans will be signed/sealed by CO PE.

1855



712 Eagle Pass
Durango, CO 81301
970-946-3175

2 | P a g e

15. See response to comment #2 above.

16. Space has been added.

17. Note has been updated.  Franchise utility (electric) design information has been removed from

the plans.  SMP shall submit design drawings as required.

18. Updated

19. Updated

20. See response to comment # 5 above.

21. See response to comment #2 above.

22. Angle has been added, intersection is at 64 degree skew with Ute Trail ROW.

23. See response to comment #1 above.

24. Updated.

25. Slope labels have been added as requested. Generally all road cut and fill slopes are 2:1 and

within Town code for height of cut.

26. Wetland Buffer information has been added.

27. An alternative hammerhead turnaround is proposed meeting requirements of 2006 IFC Figure

D103.1 Dead End Fire Apparatus Access Road Turnaround.

28. Proposed grading slope labels have been added.

29. Updated.

30. Profile scales added

31. Radii labels added.

32. Station equations added.

33. Vertical curves added.

34. Profile scales added.

35. Legend added.

36. Station equation added.

37. See response to comment # 9 above, culvert design has been revised.

38. 2:1 max slopes proposed for all road cuts meeting Town Road Design standards.

39. Retaining walls are not proposed.

40. Road crown shall be 6” per Town code.

1956



712 Eagle Pass
Durango, CO 81301
970-946-3175

3 | P a g e

Sincerely,

Andrew Rapiejko, PE

Mountain Civil Consulting, LLC

Attachments:

1. Dolores River Subdivision Review comments by Alpine Land Consulting dated 10/07/22

2057



Alpinelandconsulting.com 

Memorandum 

58



59



11-07-22

60



2161



712 Eagle Pass
Durango, CO 81301
970-946-3175

1 | P a g e

To: Town of Rico
From:  Mountain Civil Consulting, LLC
Date: 11/1/22
RE: Comment – Response Letter – USFS

Dolores River Trail Subdivision
Preliminary Plat

This letter is being provided to address agency review comments from the Town of Rico dated 10/04/22.

The Agency Review comments are included as an appendix to this letter.

Response to Comments:

1. The proposed easement width has been increased to 30’ which contains all road construction

including cut/fill work.

2. The design of the new road conveys drainage tributary to the FR 422 road corridor to the

proposed Iron Draw culvert.

3. The road

4. The road design has been revised per USFS suggestion of an in-slope condition.  In general the

alignment and grade of the proposed road has been revised and improved upon.

5. This roadside ditch will convey runoff to the Iron Draw culvert rather than to Lot 1 and the

existing subdivision to the south and east.  This is proposed to be finished with native material.

Upon further site inspection the native material holds up will in borrow ditches.

6. Typical section for FR 422 has been added to sheet C400, including note on lift of fill material.

All road work shall be constructed per Town of Rico or CDOT Standard Specifications for Road

and Bridge Construction, including placing of embankment material.

Sincerely,

Andrew Rapiejko, PE

Mountain Civil Consulting, LLC

2262



712 Eagle Pass
Durango, CO 81301
970-946-3175

2 | P a g e

Attachments:

1. Review comments by USFS dated 10/04/22

2363



 

712 Eagle Pass 
Durango, CO 81301 

To: Town of Rico  
From:  Mountain Civil Consulting, LLC 
Date: 11/1/2022 
RE: Dolores River Subdivision 
 Preliminary Plat Submittal 
 Drainage Report 
    
This letter is being provided to describe the impact of the Dolores River Subdivision to the drainage 

patterns and describe mitigation measures to address additional onsite runoff and the conveyance of 

offsite runoff. 

General Information: 

The Project is located at the end of Eder St. in Rico, CO.  The project involves the development of a 6-lot 

subdivision which encompasses 6 acres of land.  The improvements include a new access road, a private 

driveway, and utility construction.  The Iron Draw drainage bisects the project.  There are identified 

wetlands, debris fans, and avalanche hazards located within the subdivision boundary.  These features 

will generally be avoided and/or mitigated. 

Site Conditions: 

The site is assumed to be native forest in the historic condition, consisting of typical pine and aspen 

forest in the area.  There are rough dirt roads which provide access to Forest Road 422 and the Dolores 

River Trail path along the hillside, and to a single-family lot at the north end of the subdivision.  Portions 

of the subdivision have been used by residents for the driveways and access along the southeast edge. 

See Appendix 1 C100 -. Site Plan for proposed improvements.   

Offsite Flows: 

The Project is generally located along a bench on the west side of the Dolores River.  The Dolores River 

Floodplain is located outside of the subdivision boundary. The Floodplain was interpreted from the 

Town of Rico Floodplain Hazard Map.  The Iron Draw drainage bisects the site which is the major offsite 

runoff to manage. The Iron Draw drainage is slope varies between 3:1 and 6:1 across the project site. 

Average runoff appears to be between 0.5 cfs and 2 cfs.  Applying the USGS Analysis of the Magnitude 

and Frequency of Floods in Colorado hydrologic calculation methods, the Iron Draw drainage runoff was 

calculated as follows:  

Q2 = 58 CFS 

Q10 = 72 CFS 

11//1/22

2464



 

712 Eagle Pass 
Durango, CO 81301 

Q100 = 89 CFS 

There is little to no impact from other offsite flow entering the site from the west.  There are no defined 

drainages other than Iron Draw. 

Iron Draw Debris Fan: 

The Iron Draw debris fan, as identiifed in the Town of Rico Geologic Hazard Map is located within the 

proposed subdivision boundary.  The proposed access road and driveway, Lots 1, and Lot 2 are located 

within the mapped debris fan.  The following information was taken from the Hazard Assesment of 

Debris Fans at Rico, Co (Wilbur). 

 

To mitigate the flood hazard associated with this debris fan the following mitigation measures will be 

constructed. 

 Swales, Berms, and roadside ditches to control and convey runoff from Iron Draw west of the 
project site to the proposed Iron Draw Culvert. 

 Construct Iron Draw Culvert to convey runoff at a concentrated location at the Iron Draw 
drainage road crossing including minor channel improvements. 

 Protect all swales, berms, ditches, and the culvert with rip rap outlet protection. 
 

Onsite Flows: 

The native soil is classified as Hourglass-Bucklon-Wander Complex (Hydrologic Soil Group C) in the lower 

bench areas and Frisco-Horsethief Complex (Hydrologic Soil Group B) on the upper hillside areas.  To be 

conservative the site soils are assumed as Type C. The site generally slopes from the W to the E and is 

tributary to the Dolores River.  Iron Draw bisects the site and is a small mountain stream with a tributary 

2565



 

712 Eagle Pass 
Durango, CO 81301 

drainage area of approximately 0.79 square miles or 506 acres. Historic grade range between 2% -20% 

on the lower bench and are 20% or greater above this area to the east.  The project area is generally 

undeveloped with the exception of the gravel roads and east side of the adjacent neighborhood, where 

the private land has been used by the residents for parking and driveways.  See Appendix 1 – Site Plan 

and Appendix 2 C200 – Grading and Drainage plan for site improvement and overall drainage 

information.   

Existing: 

Existing Land Use is summarized in the table below.  This represents the conditions of the site in the 

existing condition with the gravel roads and adjacent neighborhood site development.  The existing 

drainage was divided into 4 basins as described below: 

E1 – This includes the area generally between the existing gravel road and Forest Road 422, south of 

Iron Draw.  Runoff is generally tributary to the roadside ditch along the west side of the gravel road. 

E2 – This includes the area east of the gravel road up to the property line, and south of Iron Draw.  This 

includes gravel drives as developed by the adjacent residents to the east. Runoff is generally tributary to 

the east property line.  There is not a defined drainageway and runoff sheet flows to the east. 

E3 – This includes the Iron Draw drainage area, both north and south of the creek.  Runoff is tributary to 

Iron Draw and the creek. 

E4 – This includes the undeveloped land north of Iron Draw and the gravel driveway to the neighbor’s 

lot. Runoff is generally tributary to the east property line.  There is not a defined drainageway and runoff 

sheet flows to the east. 

 

See Appendix 3 – DR01 -Drainage Map Existing for an illustration of the existing site. 

 

Existing hydrologic calculations are summarized in the table below.  The SCS-TR55 method was used, 

detailed calcs are included in the Appendix. Autodesk Storm and Sanitary Analysis Software was used to 

calculate hydrology in the existing and proposed condition. 

2666



 

712 Eagle Pass 
Durango, CO 81301 

 

Proposed: 

Proposed Land Use is summarized in the table below.  This represents the conditions when fully 

developed with the subdivision infrastructure and residences.  It was assumed that each residential lot 

would include a 2,000-sf building site (footprint), a paved driveway, and a deck.  Infrastructure 

construction generally includes the gravel road and driveway, drainage, and utility improvements.  The 

proposed drainage was divided into 7 basins as described below: 

P1 – This includes the area between the gravel road and Forest Road 422 and south of Iron Draw, which 

is Lot 1.  Runoff is tributary to the roadside ditch along the west side of the gravel road. 

P2 – This includes the area east of the new gravel road up to the property line, and south of Iron Draw.  

This includes gravel drives as developed by the adjacent residents to the east. Runoff is generally 

tributary to the east property line.  There is not a defined drainageway and runoff sheet flows to the 

east. 

P3 – This includes the Iron Draw drainage area and new gravel road and box culvert improvements. 

Runoff is tributary to Iron Draw and the creek. 

P4 – This includes the area north of Iron Draw and east of the gravel driveway, which is generally lot 2. 

Runoff is tributary to the east property line and is sheet flow, there is no defined drainage within this 

basin. 

P5 – This includes the area north of Iron Draw, west of the gravel driveway, and east of the existing trail. 

This includes Lots 3, 4, and 5.  Runoff is tributary to the roadside ditch along the west side of the gravel 

driveway along Lots 3, 4, and 5.  A culvert will collect and discharge runoff under the driveway to the 

east. 

P6 – This basin includes the gravel driveway through the neighbor’s property and runoff sheet flows to 

the west. 

P7 – This basin generally includes Lot 7 and runoff is tributary to the east property line and is sheet flow, 

there is no defined drainage within this basin. 

EXISTING CONDITIONS
BASIN DP AREA % IMP CN 2 YR 10 YR 100 YR

E1 E1 0.71         7.9% 57.80 0.05 0.42 1.39
E2 E2 0.48         15.5% 64.20 0.22 0.64 1.45
E3 E3 0.52         2.9% 43.40 0.00 0.00 0.35
E4 E4 4.74         3.6% 46.10 0.00 0.02 4.05

TOTAL 6.45 4.9% 48.51 0.27 1.08 7.24

PEAK FLOW, Q (cfs)

2767



 

712 Eagle Pass 
Durango, CO 81301 

 

See Appendix 4 – DR02 -Drainage Map Proposed for an illustration of the proposed site. 

 

Imperviousness for each type of land use was developed from the table below. 

 

Proposed hydrologic calculations are summarized in the table below.  The SCS-TR55 method was used, 

detailed hydrologic calcs are included in the Appendix. Autodesk Storm and Sanitary Analysis Software 

was used to calculate hydrology in the existing and proposed condition. See Appendix 4 – Drainage Map 

Proposed for an illustration of the proposed site. 

 

In the proposed condition site runoff is increased slightly from the existing condition for the 10-yr and 

100-yr storms, while runoff from the 2-yr event is relatively unchanged.  The majority of the runoff from 

the project will sheet flow to the east directly to the Dolores River corridor. 

Drainage Improvements: 

Proposed drainage improvements include the following items: 

 Roadside Ditch along the west side of the gravel road and driveway, both north and south of Iron 
Draw.  

Proposed Land Use
ID Area (sf) Area (ac) Native Veg. (sf) Building (sf) Gravel (sf) Pavement (sf) Deck (sf) % IMP CN
P1 32,114     0.74         21,899                2,000             8,015            200                   200             18.3% 59.96
P2 19,695     0.45         11,695                -                 8,000            -                    -              17.4% 59.4
P3 22,821     0.52         20,639                -                 2,182            -                    -              5.6% 44.8
P4 53,013     1.22         46,583                2,000             4,230            200                   200             9.1% 49.7
P5 76,213     1.75         67,013                6,000             2,600            600                   600             11.9% 50.2
P6 11,448     0.26         7,533                  -                 3,915            -                    -              15.0% 57.5
P7 65,542     1.50         63,142                2,000             200               200                   200             5.4% 46.3

TOTAL 280,846   6.45         238,504              12,000          29,142         1,200                1,200         10.6% 50.8

%IMP Native Veg Building Gravel Pavement Deck
2% 100% 40.0% 100.0% 10.0%

PROPOSED CONDITIONS
BASIN DP AREA % IMP CN 2 YR 10 YR 100 YR

P1 P1 0.74         18.3% 59.96 0.11 0.54 1.70
P2 P2 0.45         17.4% 59.40 0.07 0.38 1.09
P3 P3 0.52         5.6% 44.84 0.00 0.00 0.44
P4 P4 1.22         9.1% 49.71 0.00 0.12 1.41
P5 P5 1.75         11.9% 50.15 0.00 0.21 2.11
P6 P6 0.26         15.0% 57.50 0.03 0.21 0.65
P7 P7 1.50         5.4% 46.25 0.00 0.007 1.06

TOTAL 6.45 10.6% 50.80 0.21 1.47 8.46

PEAK FLOW, Q (cfs)

2868



 

712 Eagle Pass 
Durango, CO 81301 

 Roadside Ditch along the west side of Forest Road 422.   

 The native material supports borrow ditch construction without rip rap in grades less than 10% 
upon site inspection.  Additional rip rap shall not be required where road grades are less than 
10%. 

 Construct Iron Draw Culvert with rip rap inlet and outlet protection where the gravel road crosses 
the Iron Draw drainage.  This includes channel grading improvements to convey runoff from the 
Iron Draw drainage to the Culvert.  The proposed channel grade is 4:1 which is consistent with the 
native conditions of the stable Iron Draw stream through the project.  

 18” Dia. culverts with inlet and outlet protection beneath the road at the low points at the north 
end of the driveway. 

The calculated increase in runoff from the existing condition to the proposed condition is minimal, and 

due to limited to no impact to adjacent properties and the proximity to the Dolores River floodplain, 

stormwater detention is not proposed.   

The site generally provides for water quality measure by routing runoff through unpaved and landscaped 

areas prior to discharge to the Dolores River. 

  

2969



 

712 Eagle Pass 
Durango, CO 81301 

Appendix: 

1. C100 – Site Plan 

2. C200 – Grading, Drainage, and Erosion Control Plan 

3. DR01 – Drainage Map Existing 

4. DR02 – Drainage Map Proposed 

5. Atlas 14 Rainfall Data - Rico 

6. Hydrologic Calcs – SCS Tr-55 –Existing, and Proposed 

7. Iron Draw hydrologic calculations 

8. Hydraulic Calcs – Roadside Ditch, Culverts, Iron Draw Channel 

9. NRCS Soil Report 

10. FEMA Floodplain Map 

3070



S
A

M
 P

A
T

C
H

S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

BLOCK 36 TOWN OF RICO

ED
ER

 STREET

B
L
O

C
K

 3
4
 T

O
W

N
O

F
 R

IC
O

Y
A

N
K

Y
 B

O
Y

  M
S

. 6
9
6
9

H
IL

L
 S

ID
E
 2

  M
S
. 7

9
9
4

S
A
M

 P
A
T
C

H
M

S
. 8

0
3

1

H
IL

L
 S

ID
E
  M

S
. 7

9
9
4

H
O
M

E

M
S
. 8

0
3
1

T
R

A
C

T
 H

TRACT A TRACT B

T
R

A
C

T
 D

TRACT C

L
O

T
 1

L
O

T
 2

L
O

T
 3

L
O

T
 4

L
O

T
 5

L
O

T
 6

T
R

A
C

T
 F

712 EAGLE PASS
DURANGO, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

 

FO
R 

RE
VI

EW
 O

NL
Y

NO
T 

FO
R

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

D
O

LO
R

E
S

 R
IV

E
R

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T

S
IT

E
 A

N
D

 O
V

E
R

A
LL

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 P

LA
N

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

R
IC

O
, C

O

C100

2021-002

11/1/22

ABR
ABR

2 10

3171

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL: 504735100524 ZONE: RPUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF RIC0 ZONE PUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PICKER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOLORES RIVER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE R

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE R

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE PUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREST  ROAD 422

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6 BLDG ENVELOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 BLDG ENVELOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 BLDG ENVELOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW CULVERT  AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS  SEE SHEET C300

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EXISTING  WATER MAIN (LOCATION APPROXIMATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REALIGN AND IMPROVE FOREST ROAD 422 (BURNETT ROAD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS AND  UTILITY SERVICES TO ADJACENT PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SERVICE TO EACH LOT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY ACCESS TURNAROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' ROW W/ 20' WIDTH GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' ACCESS, UTILITY, AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECONFIGURE ACCESS TO GRAVEL PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER MAIN (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' ROW W/ 20' WIDTH GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDEN EDGE  TO PROVIDE 20' ROAD  WIDTH  WITHIN ROW (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
26' WIDTH GRAVEL ROAD 10' EITHER SIDE OF HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDEN EDGE  TO PROVIDE 20' ROAD  WIDTH (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ROAD TO BE ABANDONED AND RESTORED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ROAD TO BE ABANDONED AND RESTORED

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' ROW W/ 20' WIDTH GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
26' WIDTH GRAVEL ROAD 10' EITHER SIDE OF HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE AND GATE TO BE REMOVED WITHIN ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTE TRAIL ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ROAD TO BE ABANDONED AND RESTORED

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
g:\my drive\mountain civil_current projects\2021-002 dolores river subdivision\cad\plansheets\prelim plat\c100 - site and utility plan.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. THE PARCEL IS ZONED RPUD. ALL IMPROVEMENTS SHALL MEET TOWN OF RICO LAND USE THE PARCEL IS ZONED RPUD. ALL IMPROVEMENTS SHALL MEET TOWN OF RICO LAND USE CODE. 2. EXISTING CONDITION SURVEY INFORMATION PROVIDED BY ALL POINTS LAND SURVEY LLC. EXISTING CONDITION SURVEY INFORMATION PROVIDED BY ALL POINTS LAND SURVEY LLC. SEE PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR LOT DIMENSIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. 3. AVALANCHE AND GEOLOGIC HAZARD INFORMATION SHOWN WAS INTERPOLATED FROM AVALANCHE AND GEOLOGIC HAZARD INFORMATION SHOWN WAS INTERPOLATED FROM TOWN OF RICO MAPS. 4. WETLANDS ARE SHOWN PER AQUATIC RESOURCES DELINEATION MAP BY SME DATED WETLANDS ARE SHOWN PER AQUATIC RESOURCES DELINEATION MAP BY SME DATED 5/7/21. 5. OFF STREET PARKING SHALL BE PROVIDED WITHIN EACH LOT. OFF STREET PARKING SHALL BE PROVIDED WITHIN EACH LOT. 6. WATER SERVICE SHALL BE EXTENDED TO PROVIDE SERVICE FROM THE TOWN OF RICO WATER SERVICE SHALL BE EXTENDED TO PROVIDE SERVICE FROM THE TOWN OF RICO WATER SYSTEM. WATER TAPS FOR EACH LOT SHALL BE OBTAINED WITH BUILDING PERMIT SUBMITTAL AND ARE SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY. 7. ONSITE WASTEWATER SYSTEM DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF ONSITE WASTEWATER SYSTEM DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF EACH LOT AND ONSITE WASTEWATER DESIGN APPROVAL SHALL BE COMPLETED AS REQUIRED BY TOWN OF RICO, DOLORES COUNTY HEALTH DEPT., AND THE STATE OF COLORADO. 8. FRANCHISE UTILITY DESIGN AND INSTALLATION (ELECTRIC, GAS, TELECOM) SHALL BE FRANCHISE UTILITY DESIGN AND INSTALLATION (ELECTRIC, GAS, TELECOM) SHALL BE PROVIDED BY UTILITY OWNER. 9. LOTS WITHOUT DEFINED BUILDING ENVELOPE ARE DEVELOPABLE PER APPLICABLE TOWN LOTS WITHOUT DEFINED BUILDING ENVELOPE ARE DEVELOPABLE PER APPLICABLE TOWN REQUIREMENTS.



S
A

M
 P

A
T

C
H

S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N S

H
A

M
R

O
C

K

BLOCK 36 TOWN OF RICO

ED
ER

 STREET

B
L
O

C
K

 3
4
 T

O
W

N
O

F
 R

IC
O

Y
A

N
K

Y
 B

O
Y

  M
S

. 6
9
6
9

H
IL

L
 S

ID
E
 2

  M
S
. 7

9
9
4

S
A
M

 P
A
T
C

H

H
IL

L
 S

ID
E
  M

S
. 7

9
9
4

H
O
M

E

M
S
. 8

0
3
1

T
R

A
C

T
 H

TRACT A TRACT B

T
R

A
C

T
 D

TRACT C

L
O

T
 1

L
O

T
 2

L
O

T
 3

L
O

T
 4

L
O

T
 5

L
O

T
 6

T
R

A
C

T
 F

S
A

M
 P

A
T

C
H

S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

BLOCK 36 TOWN OF RICO

ED
ER

 STREET

ELEVATIO
N

 PO
IN

T

H
O
M

E

M
S
. 8

0
3
1

712 EAGLE PASS
DURANGO, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

 

FO
R 

RE
VI

EW
 O

NL
Y

NO
T 

FO
R

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

D
O

LO
R

E
S

 R
IV

E
R

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 P
LA

N
T

O
W

N
 O

F 
R

IC
O

, C
O

C300

2021-002

11/1/22

ABR
ABR

6 10

3272

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF RIC0 ZONE PUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW  CULVERT SEE INSET THIS SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EXISTING  WATER MAIN (LOCATION APPROXIMATE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEATHER  GRADE TO TIE INTO EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY ACCESS TURNAROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE R

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE R

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE PUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" DIA. CULVERT W/ TYPE VL RIP RAP INLET AND OUTLET PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2:1 FILL  SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW DRAINAGE NATURAL SLOPE VARIES BETWEEN 3:1 AND 5;1

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' ACCESS EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL STRAW WATTLE ALONG DOWNHILL EDGE OF EMBANKMENT. INSTALL RECP AND NATIVE SEED ON ALL CUT/FILL SLOPES GREATER THAN 3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2:1 CUT  SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW  RUNOFF CALCULATIONS QAVG: 0.2-2 CFS Q2: 58 CFS Q10: 72 CFS Q100: 89 CFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP RAP LINED CHANNEL TYPE VH RIP RAP 4:1 CHANNEL SLOPE 2:1 SIDE SLOPES

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADSIDE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADSIDE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL STRAW WATTLE ALONG DOWNHILL EDGE OF EMBANKMENT. INSTALL RECP AND NATIVE SEED ON ALL CUT/FILL SLOPES GREATER THAN 3;1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE TEMPORARY DIVERSION FOR CULVERT INSTALLATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" DIA. CULVERT W/ TYPE VL RIP RAP INLET AND OUTLET PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT DISTURB WETLANDS IN THIS AREA WITH  ROAD CONSTRUCTION SEE NOTES THIS SHEET FOR CONSTRUCTION WITHIN WETLAND BUFFER AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' WETLAND BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' WETLAND BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2:1 FILL  SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2:1 FILL  SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2:1 CUT  SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
OP

AutoCAD SHX Text
OP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE VH  RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:1  CHANNEL SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) 30 LF 29" X 45" HERCP @ 8.0%

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE VH  RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEADWALL EL: 60.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' GRAVEL  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRADE @ CULVERT CL VARIES BETWEEN 3:1 AND 5:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV: 56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV: 54.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEADWALL EL: 58.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:1 CHANNEL SLOPE (MATCH EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EXISTING GRADE EL: 8766

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) 30 LF  29" X 45" HERCP @ 8.0%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:1 SLOPE TYPE VH RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEADWALL EL: 60.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGIN CHANNEL  AND RIP RAP ST: 0+6.0 EL: 8765

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV:  56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV:  54.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINGWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:1 SLOPE TYPE VH RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2:1 SIDE  SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2:1 SIDE  SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEADWALL EL: 58.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL ROAD STA:  4+70.06 =  CL CULVERT ALIGN STA: 50+3.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
g:\my drive\mountain civil_current projects\2021-002 dolores river subdivision\cad\plansheets\prelim plat\c300 - grading and drainage plan.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW CULVERT PLAN VIEW (1" =10') 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW CULVERT PROFILE VIEW (1" =10') 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL SYMBOL LEGEND SILT/SEDIMENT FENCE STRAW WATTLE PERMANENT SEEDING ROLLED EROSION CONTROL PRODUCT CULVERT INLET PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN NOTES: : 1. TOTAL AREA OF DISTURBANCE IS 45,000 SF OR 1.031 ACRES. TOTAL AREA OF DISTURBANCE IS 45,000 SF OR 1.031 ACRES. 2. CONTRACTOR OR OWNER SHALL OBTAIN ALL REQUIRED EXCAVATION AND CONTRACTOR OR OWNER SHALL OBTAIN ALL REQUIRED EXCAVATION AND CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PERMITS PRIOR TO COMPLETING WORK. 3. CONTRACTOR SHALL DEVELOP A SWMP AND SHALL ADJUST LOCATION AND CONTRACTOR SHALL DEVELOP A SWMP AND SHALL ADJUST LOCATION AND SCOPE OF BMPS AS REQUIRED FOR PHASING. 4. CONTRACTOR MAY USE ADDITIONAL BMPS NOT SHOWN IN THIS PLAN TO CONTRACTOR MAY USE ADDITIONAL BMPS NOT SHOWN IN THIS PLAN TO CONTROL CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY STORMWATER RUNOFF, SEE MILE HIGH FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT VOLUME 3, CHAPTER 7 OR CDOT EROSION CONTROL MANUAL FOR ADDITIONAL ACCEPTABLE BMPS. 5. FUEL AND CHEMICAL STORAGE SHALL NOT BE STORED ON SITE.  IF THEY FUEL AND CHEMICAL STORAGE SHALL NOT BE STORED ON SITE.  IF THEY ARE STORED ON SITE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE CONTAINMENT AND SPILL PREVENTION AND RESPONSE PLAN. 6. GENERAL SCOPE OF BMP INSTALLATION IS DESCRIBED BELOW: GENERAL SCOPE OF BMP INSTALLATION IS DESCRIBED BELOW: 6.1. INSTALL SILT FENCE OR STRAW WATTLE ALONG DOWNHILL EDGE OF INSTALL SILT FENCE OR STRAW WATTLE ALONG DOWNHILL EDGE OF DISTURBED AREAS. 6.2. PROVIDE GOOD HOUSEKEEPING PRACTICES DURING CONSTRUCTION PROVIDE GOOD HOUSEKEEPING PRACTICES DURING CONSTRUCTION INCLUDING PORTABLE TOILET FACILITIES AND TRASH/WASTE COLLECTION FACILITY. 6.3. PROVIDE STREET SWEEPING OR HAND CLEANING IF SEDIMENT IS TRACKED PROVIDE STREET SWEEPING OR HAND CLEANING IF SEDIMENT IS TRACKED INTO PAVED ST. 6.4. PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION WATER TO LIMIT DUST DURING OVERLOT PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION WATER TO LIMIT DUST DURING OVERLOT GRADING OPERATIONS. 6.5. DISTURBED AREAS NOT RECEIVING FINAL SITE OR LANDSCAPE DISTURBED AREAS NOT RECEIVING FINAL SITE OR LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS SHALL REQUIRE PERMANENT SEEDING AND MULCHING.  ALL SEED SHALL BE CERTIFIED WEED FREE.  6.13. INSTALL ROLLED EROSION BLANKET AND SEED/MULCH ON ALL SLOPES INSTALL ROLLED EROSION BLANKET AND SEED/MULCH ON ALL SLOPES 3:1 OR GREATER. 6.14. REMOVE BMPS UPON FINAL SITE IMPROVEMENT INSTALLATION AND 70% REMOVE BMPS UPON FINAL SITE IMPROVEMENT INSTALLATION AND 70% VEGETATION OF SITE FROM LANDSCAPE AND SEEDING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZ. SCALE: 1" = 10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT. SCALE: 1" = 3.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND BUFFER CONSTRUCTION PLAN NOTES: : 1. GRADING WITHIN THE WETLAND BUFFER AREA SHALL BE LIMITED TO ROAD GRADING WITHIN THE WETLAND BUFFER AREA SHALL BE LIMITED TO ROAD AND UTILITY CONSTRUCTION. 2. ALL AREAS OUTSIDE OF PROPOSED ROAD SURFACE SHALL BE REVEGETATED ALL AREAS OUTSIDE OF PROPOSED ROAD SURFACE SHALL BE REVEGETATED WITH NATIVE SEED. USE WESTERN SEED HIGH ALTITUDE MEADOW MIX OR APPROVED EQUAL FOR REVEGETATION IN BUFFER ZONES. 3. THE WETLAND AREA SHALL BE DELINEATED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION WITH THE WETLAND AREA SHALL BE DELINEATED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION WITH FLAGGING BY THE SURVEYOR.  CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL SEDIMENT LOGS OR STRAW WATTLES ALONG OUTSIDE EDGE OF PROPOSED GRADING AND UTILITY WORK, DISTURBANCE SHALL NOT ENCROACH BEYOND THIS LOCATION.



S
A

M
 P

A
T

C
H

S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

BLOCK 36 TOWN OF RICO

ED
ER

 STREET

ELEVATIO
N

 PO
IN

T

H
O
M

E

M
S
. 8

0
3
1

TRACT H

712 EAGLE PASS
DURANGO, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

 

FO
R 

RE
VI

EW
 O

NL
Y

NO
T 

FO
R

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

D
O

LO
R

E
S

 R
IV

E
R

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 M

A
P

 - 
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
T

O
W

N
 O

F 
R

IC
O

, C
O

DR01

2021-002

6/29/22

ABR
ABR

3373

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF RIC0 ZONE PUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PICKER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOLORES RIVER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE R

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE R

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE PUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREST  ROAD 422

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
57.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
E1

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW RUNOFF  CALCULATIONS QAVG: 0.2-2 CFS Q2: 25.4 CFS Q10: 68.6 CFS Q100: 154 CFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT H (MERRITT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DOLORES RIVER SUBDIVISION  BOUNDARY SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
E2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
64.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
E2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
E3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
43.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E3

AutoCAD SHX Text
E4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN E2 SHEET FLOW DISCHARGE  ALONG WEST BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN E4 SHEET FLOW DISCHARGE  ALONG WEST BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN E4 SHEET FLOW DISCHARGE  ALONG WEST BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA OUTSIDE OF PLAT BOUNDARY INCLUDED IN ANALYSIS TO BE CONSISTENT WITH PROPOSED SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOLORES RIVER FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
g:\my drive\mountain civil_current projects\2021-002 dolores river subdivision\cad\plansheets\prelim plat\dr01- drainage map - existing.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE BASIN LABEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE BASIN DESIGN POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN AREA (AC.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUNOFF  CURVE NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

arapi
Text Box



S
A

M
 P

A
T

C
H

S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N S

H
A

M
R

O
C

K

BLOCK 36 TOWN OF RICO

ED
ER

 STREET

B
L
O

C
K

 3
4
 T

O
W

N
O

F
 R

IC
O

Y
A

N
K

Y
 B

O
Y

  M
S

. 6
9
6
9

H
IL

L
 S

ID
E
 2

  M
S
. 7

9
9
4

S
A
M

 P
A
T
C

H

H
IL

L
 S

ID
E
  M

S
. 7

9
9
4

H
O
M

E

M
S
. 8

0
3
1

T
R

A
C

T
 H

TRACT A TRACT B

T
R

A
C

T
 D

TRACT C

L
O

T
 1

L
O

T
 2

L
O

T
 3

L
O

T
 4

L
O

T
 5

L
O

T
 6

T
R

A
C

T
 F

BLOCK 36 TOWN OF RICO

ED
ER

 STREET

ELEVATIO
N

 PO
IN

T

H
O
M

E

M
S
. 8

0
3
1

TRACT H

712 EAGLE PASS
DURANGO, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

 

FO
R 

RE
VI

EW
 O

NL
Y

NO
T 

FO
R

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

D
O

LO
R

E
S

 R
IV

E
R

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 M

A
P

 - 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
T

O
W

N
 O

F 
R

IC
O

, C
O

DR02

2021-002

6/30/22

ABR
ABR

3474

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL: 504735100524 ZONE: RPUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF RIC0 ZONE PUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PICKER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOLORES RIVER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW  CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADSIDE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE R

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE PUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" DIA. CULVERT W/ TYPE M RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREST  ROAD 422

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
P1

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW RUNOFF  CALCULATIONS QAVG: 0.2-2 CFS Q2: 58 CFS Q10: 72 CFS Q100: 89 CFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADSIDE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
59.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
P1

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW CHANNEL IMPROVEMENTS 4:1 CHANNEL SLOPE 2:1 SIDE SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON DRAW DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADSIDE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADSIDE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
59.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
P2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
44.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
P3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
P4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
P6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
P7

AutoCAD SHX Text
P2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P3

AutoCAD SHX Text
P4

AutoCAD SHX Text
P5

AutoCAD SHX Text
P6

AutoCAD SHX Text
P7

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT H (MERRITT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOLORES RIVER FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" DIA. CULVERT W/ TYPE M RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
g:\my drive\mountain civil_current projects\2021-002 dolores river subdivision\cad\plansheets\prelim plat\dr01- drainage map - proposed.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE BASIN LABEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE BASIN DESIGN POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN AREA (AC.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUNOFF  CURVE NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX



3575



3676



3777



3878



Autodesk Storm and Sanitary AnalysisAutodesk Storm and Sanitary Analysis

3979



Project Description

Dolores River Subdivision - Existing.SPF

Project Options

CFS
Elevation
SCS TR-55
SCS TR-55
Kinematic Wave
YES
YES

Analysis Options

00:00:00 0:00:00
00:00:00 0:00:00
00:00:00 0:00:00
0 days
0 01:00:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
30 seconds

Number of Elements
Qty
1
4
4
0
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Rainfall Details

SN Rain Gage Data Data Source Rainfall Rain State County Return Rainfall Rainfall
ID Source ID Type Units Period Depth Distribution

(years) (inches)
1 RICO Time Series 2 YR Cumulative inches 0.00

Antecedent Dry Days ................................

File Name .................................................

Flow Units ................................................
Elevation Type ..........................................
Hydrology Method ...................................
Time of Concentration (TOC) Method .......
Link Routing Method ................................
Enable Overflow Ponding at Nodes ..........
Skip Steady State Analysis Time Periods ...

Start Analysis On ......................................
End Analysis On ........................................
Start Reporting On ...................................

        Storage Nodes ..................................

Runoff (Dry Weather) Time Step ..............
Runoff (Wet Weather) Time Step .............
Reporting Time Step .................................
Routing Time Step ....................................

Rain Gages ...............................................
Subbasins..................................................
Nodes........................................................
        Junctions ..........................................
        Outfalls ............................................
        Flow Diversions ................................
        Inlets ................................................

        Outlets .............................................
Pollutants .................................................
Land Uses .................................................

Links..........................................................
        Channels ..........................................
        Pipes ................................................
        Pumps ..............................................
        Orifices .............................................
        Weirs ................................................

4080



Subbasin Summary

SN Subbasin Area Peak Rate Weighted Total Total Total Peak Time of
ID Factor Curve Rainfall Runoff Runoff Runoff Concentration

Number Volume
(ac) (in) (in) (ac-in) (cfs) (days hh:mm:ss)

1 E1 0.71 484.00 57.80 1.77 0.01 0.01 0.05        0  00:11:39
2 E2 0.48 484.00 64.20 1.77 0.07 0.03 0.22        0  00:08:56
3 E3 0.52 484.00 43.40 1.77 0.00 0.00 0.00        0  00:06:43
4 E4 4.81 484.00 46.10 1.77 0.00 0.00 0.00        0  00:09:06

4181



Node Summary

SN Element Element Invert Ground/Rim Initial Surcharge Ponded Peak Max HGL Max Min Time of Total Total Time
ID Type Elevation (Max) Water Elevation Area Inflow Elevation Surcharge Freeboard Peak Flooded Flooded

Elevation Elevation Attained Depth Attained Flooding Volume
Attained Occurrence

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft²) (cfs) (ft) (ft) (ft) (days hh:mm) (ac-in) (min)
1 Out-E1 Outfall 8728.00 0.00 0.00
2 Out-E2 Outfall 8728.00 0.00 0.00
3 Out-E3 Outfall 8730.00 0.00 0.00
4 Out-E4 Outfall 8720.00 0.00 0.00

4282



Subbasin Hydrology

    Subbasin : E1

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.71
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 57.8
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.46 C 41
Gravel roads 0.25 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.71 57.8

          Time of Concentration

TOC Method : SCS TR-55

Sheet Flow Equation :

    Tc = (0.007 * ((n * Lf)^0.8)) / ((P^0.5) * (Sf^0.4))

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    n   = Manning's roughness
    Lf  = Flow Length (ft)
    P   = 2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (inches)
    Sf  = Slope (ft/ft)

Shallow Concentrated Flow Equation :

    V  = 16.1345 * (Sf^0.5) (unpaved surface)
    V  = 20.3282 * (Sf^0.5) (paved surface)
    V  = 15.0 * (Sf^0.5) (grassed waterway surface)
    V  = 10.0 * (Sf^0.5) (nearly bare & untilled surface)
    V  = 9.0 * (Sf^0.5) (cultivated straight rows surface)
    V  = 7.0 * (Sf^0.5) (short grass pasture surface)
    V  = 5.0 * (Sf^0.5) (woodland surface)
    V  = 2.5 * (Sf^0.5) (forest w/heavy litter surface)
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

             Where:

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)

Channel Flow Equation :

    V  = (1.49 * (R^(2/3)) * (Sf^0.5)) / n
    R  = Aq / Wp
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    R  = Hydraulic Radius (ft)
    Aq = Flow Area (ft²)
    Wp = Wetted Perimeter (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)
    n  = Manning's roughness

4383



Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.14 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 11.49 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 5.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.16 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................11.66

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 1.77
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.01
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.05
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 57.8
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:11:40 

4484



          Subbasin : E1

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

5

4.8

4.6

4.4

4.2

4

3.8

3.6

3.4

3.2

3

2.8

2.6

2.4

2.2

2

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.056

0.054

0.052

0.05

0.048

0.046

0.044

0.042

0.04

0.038

0.036

0.034

0.032

0.03

0.028

0.026

0.024

0.022

0.02

0.018

0.016

0.014

0.012

0.01

0.008

0.006

0.004

0.002

4585



    Subbasin : E2

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.48
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 64.2
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.14 C 41
Gravel roads 0.14 C 89
Sagebrush range, Fair 0.19 C 63
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.47 64.2

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 8.71 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 5 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 3.61 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.23 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................8.94

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 1.77
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.07
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.22
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 64.2
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:08:56 

4686



          Subbasin : E2

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

5.2

5

4.8

4.6

4.4

4.2

4

3.8

3.6

3.4

3.2

3

2.8

2.6

2.4

2.2

2

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.2

0.19

0.18

0.17

0.16

0.15

0.14

0.13

0.12

0.11

0.1

0.09

0.08

0.07

0.06

0.05

0.04

0.03

0.02

0.01

4787



    Subbasin : E3

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.52
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 43.4
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.49 C 41
Gravel roads 0.03 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.52 43.4

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.13 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 6.6 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 7.22 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.12 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................6.72

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 1.77
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 43.4
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:06:43 

4888



          Subbasin : E3

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

5.2

5

4.8

4.6

4.4

4.2

4

3.8

3.6

3.4

3.2

3

2.8

2.6

2.4

2.2

2

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0

0

4989



    Subbasin : E4

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 4.81
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 46.1
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 2.41 C 41
Sagebrush range, Good 2.16 C 47
Gravel roads 0.24 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 4.81 46.1

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.35 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 30 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.19 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 8.78 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 5.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.33 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................9.11

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 1.77
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 46.1
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:09:07 

5090



          Subbasin : E4

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

5.2

5

4.8

4.6

4.4

4.2

4

3.8

3.6

3.4

3.2

3

2.8

2.6

2.4

2.2

2

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0

0

5191



Project Description

Dolores River Subdivision - Existing.SPF

Project Options

CFS
Elevation
SCS TR-55
SCS TR-55
Kinematic Wave
YES
YES

Analysis Options

00:00:00 0:00:00
00:00:00 0:00:00
00:00:00 0:00:00
0 days
0 01:00:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
30 seconds

Number of Elements
Qty
1
4
4
0
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Rainfall Details

SN Rain Gage Data Data Source Rainfall Rain State County Return Rainfall Rainfall
ID Source ID Type Units Period Depth Distribution

(years) (inches)
1 RICO Time Series 10 YR Cumulative inches 0.00

Antecedent Dry Days ................................

File Name .................................................

Flow Units ................................................
Elevation Type ..........................................
Hydrology Method ...................................
Time of Concentration (TOC) Method .......
Link Routing Method ................................
Enable Overflow Ponding at Nodes ..........
Skip Steady State Analysis Time Periods ...

Start Analysis On ......................................
End Analysis On ........................................
Start Reporting On ...................................

        Storage Nodes ..................................

Runoff (Dry Weather) Time Step ..............
Runoff (Wet Weather) Time Step .............
Reporting Time Step .................................
Routing Time Step ....................................

Rain Gages ...............................................
Subbasins..................................................
Nodes........................................................
        Junctions ..........................................
        Outfalls ............................................
        Flow Diversions ................................
        Inlets ................................................

        Outlets .............................................
Pollutants .................................................
Land Uses .................................................

Links..........................................................
        Channels ..........................................
        Pipes ................................................
        Pumps ..............................................
        Orifices .............................................
        Weirs ................................................

5292



Subbasin Summary

SN Subbasin Area Peak Rate Weighted Total Total Total Peak Time of
ID Factor Curve Rainfall Runoff Runoff Runoff Concentration

Number Volume
(ac) (in) (in) (ac-in) (cfs) (days hh:mm:ss)

1 E1 0.71 484.00 57.80 2.42 0.11 0.08 0.42        0  00:11:39
2 E2 0.48 484.00 64.20 2.42 0.25 0.12 0.64        0  00:08:56
3 E3 0.52 484.00 43.40 2.42 0.00 0.00 0.00        0  00:06:43
4 E4 4.81 484.00 46.10 2.42 0.00 0.00 0.02        0  00:09:06

5393



Node Summary

SN Element Element Invert Ground/Rim Initial Surcharge Ponded Peak Max HGL Max Min Time of Total Total Time
ID Type Elevation (Max) Water Elevation Area Inflow Elevation Surcharge Freeboard Peak Flooded Flooded

Elevation Elevation Attained Depth Attained Flooding Volume
Attained Occurrence

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft²) (cfs) (ft) (ft) (ft) (days hh:mm) (ac-in) (min)
1 Out-E1 Outfall 8728.00 0.00 0.00
2 Out-E2 Outfall 8728.00 0.00 0.00
3 Out-E3 Outfall 8730.00 0.00 0.00
4 Out-E4 Outfall 8720.00 0.00 0.00

5494



Subbasin Hydrology

    Subbasin : E1

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.71
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 57.8
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.46 C 41
Gravel roads 0.25 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.71 57.8

          Time of Concentration

TOC Method : SCS TR-55

Sheet Flow Equation :

    Tc = (0.007 * ((n * Lf)^0.8)) / ((P^0.5) * (Sf^0.4))

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    n   = Manning's roughness
    Lf  = Flow Length (ft)
    P   = 2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (inches)
    Sf  = Slope (ft/ft)

Shallow Concentrated Flow Equation :

    V  = 16.1345 * (Sf^0.5) (unpaved surface)
    V  = 20.3282 * (Sf^0.5) (paved surface)
    V  = 15.0 * (Sf^0.5) (grassed waterway surface)
    V  = 10.0 * (Sf^0.5) (nearly bare & untilled surface)
    V  = 9.0 * (Sf^0.5) (cultivated straight rows surface)
    V  = 7.0 * (Sf^0.5) (short grass pasture surface)
    V  = 5.0 * (Sf^0.5) (woodland surface)
    V  = 2.5 * (Sf^0.5) (forest w/heavy litter surface)
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

             Where:

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)

Channel Flow Equation :

    V  = (1.49 * (R^(2/3)) * (Sf^0.5)) / n
    R  = Aq / Wp
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    R  = Hydraulic Radius (ft)
    Aq = Flow Area (ft²)
    Wp = Wetted Perimeter (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)
    n  = Manning's roughness

5595



Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.14 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 11.49 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 5.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.16 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................11.66

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 2.42
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.11
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.42
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 57.8
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:11:40 

5696



          Subbasin : E1

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.44

0.42

0.4

0.38

0.36

0.34

0.32

0.3

0.28

0.26

0.24

0.22

0.2

0.18

0.16

0.14

0.12

0.1

0.08

0.06

0.04

0.02

5797



    Subbasin : E2

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.48
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 64.2
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.14 C 41
Gravel roads 0.14 C 89
Sagebrush range, Fair 0.19 C 63
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.47 64.2

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 8.71 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 5 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 3.61 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.23 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................8.94

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 2.42
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.25
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.64
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 64.2
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:08:56 

5898



          Subbasin : E2

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.54

0.52

0.5

0.48

0.46

0.44

0.42

0.4

0.38

0.36

0.34

0.32

0.3

0.28

0.26

0.24

0.22

0.2

0.18

0.16

0.14

0.12

0.1

0.08

0.06

0.04

0.02

5999



    Subbasin : E3

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.52
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 43.4
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.49 C 41
Gravel roads 0.03 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.52 43.4

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.13 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 6.6 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 7.22 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.12 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................6.72

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 2.42
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 43.4
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:06:43 

60100



          Subbasin : E3

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0

0

61101



    Subbasin : E4

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 4.81
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 46.1
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 2.41 C 41
Sagebrush range, Good 2.16 C 47
Gravel roads 0.24 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 4.81 46.1

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.35 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 30 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.19 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 8.78 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 5.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.33 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................9.11

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 2.42
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.02
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 46.1
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:09:07 

62102



          Subbasin : E4

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.022

0.021

0.02

0.019

0.018

0.017

0.016

0.015

0.014

0.013

0.012

0.011

0.01

0.009

0.008

0.007

0.006

0.005

0.004

0.003

0.002

0.001

63103



Project Description

Dolores River Subdivision - Existing.SPF

Project Options

CFS
Elevation
SCS TR-55
SCS TR-55
Kinematic Wave
YES
YES

Analysis Options

00:00:00 0:00:00
00:00:00 0:00:00
00:00:00 0:00:00
0 days
0 01:00:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
30 seconds

Number of Elements
Qty
1
4
4
0
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Rainfall Details

SN Rain Gage Data Data Source Rainfall Rain State County Return Rainfall Rainfall
ID Source ID Type Units Period Depth Distribution

(years) (inches)
1 RICO Time Series 100 YR Cumulative inches 0.00

Antecedent Dry Days ................................

File Name .................................................

Flow Units ................................................
Elevation Type ..........................................
Hydrology Method ...................................
Time of Concentration (TOC) Method .......
Link Routing Method ................................
Enable Overflow Ponding at Nodes ..........
Skip Steady State Analysis Time Periods ...

Start Analysis On ......................................
End Analysis On ........................................
Start Reporting On ...................................

        Storage Nodes ..................................

Runoff (Dry Weather) Time Step ..............
Runoff (Wet Weather) Time Step .............
Reporting Time Step .................................
Routing Time Step ....................................

Rain Gages ...............................................
Subbasins..................................................
Nodes........................................................
        Junctions ..........................................
        Outfalls ............................................
        Flow Diversions ................................
        Inlets ................................................

        Outlets .............................................
Pollutants .................................................
Land Uses .................................................

Links..........................................................
        Channels ..........................................
        Pipes ................................................
        Pumps ..............................................
        Orifices .............................................
        Weirs ................................................

64104



Subbasin Summary

SN Subbasin Area Peak Rate Weighted Total Total Total Peak Time of
ID Factor Curve Rainfall Runoff Runoff Runoff Concentration

Number Volume
(ac) (in) (in) (ac-in) (cfs) (days hh:mm:ss)

1 E1 0.71 484.00 57.80 3.70 0.53 0.37 1.39        0  00:11:39
2 E2 0.48 484.00 64.20 3.70 0.82 0.39 1.45        0  00:08:56
3 E3 0.52 484.00 43.40 3.70 0.08 0.04 0.35        0  00:06:43
4 E4 4.81 484.00 46.10 3.70 0.14 0.68 4.05        0  00:09:06

65105



Node Summary

SN Element Element Invert Ground/Rim Initial Surcharge Ponded Peak Max HGL Max Min Time of Total Total Time
ID Type Elevation (Max) Water Elevation Area Inflow Elevation Surcharge Freeboard Peak Flooded Flooded

Elevation Elevation Attained Depth Attained Flooding Volume
Attained Occurrence

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft²) (cfs) (ft) (ft) (ft) (days hh:mm) (ac-in) (min)
1 Out-E1 Outfall 8728.00 0.00 0.00
2 Out-E2 Outfall 8728.00 0.00 0.00
3 Out-E3 Outfall 8730.00 0.00 0.00
4 Out-E4 Outfall 8720.00 0.00 0.00

66106



Subbasin Hydrology

    Subbasin : E1

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.71
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 57.8
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.46 C 41
Gravel roads 0.25 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.71 57.8

          Time of Concentration

TOC Method : SCS TR-55

Sheet Flow Equation :

    Tc = (0.007 * ((n * Lf)^0.8)) / ((P^0.5) * (Sf^0.4))

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    n   = Manning's roughness
    Lf  = Flow Length (ft)
    P   = 2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (inches)
    Sf  = Slope (ft/ft)

Shallow Concentrated Flow Equation :

    V  = 16.1345 * (Sf^0.5) (unpaved surface)
    V  = 20.3282 * (Sf^0.5) (paved surface)
    V  = 15.0 * (Sf^0.5) (grassed waterway surface)
    V  = 10.0 * (Sf^0.5) (nearly bare & untilled surface)
    V  = 9.0 * (Sf^0.5) (cultivated straight rows surface)
    V  = 7.0 * (Sf^0.5) (short grass pasture surface)
    V  = 5.0 * (Sf^0.5) (woodland surface)
    V  = 2.5 * (Sf^0.5) (forest w/heavy litter surface)
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

             Where:

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)

Channel Flow Equation :

    V  = (1.49 * (R^(2/3)) * (Sf^0.5)) / n
    R  = Aq / Wp
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    R  = Hydraulic Radius (ft)
    Aq = Flow Area (ft²)
    Wp = Wetted Perimeter (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)
    n  = Manning's roughness

67107



Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.14 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 11.49 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 5.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.16 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................11.66

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 3.7
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.53
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 1.39
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 57.8
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:11:40 

68108



          Subbasin : E1

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

8.5

8

7.5

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

1.4

1.35

1.3

1.25

1.2

1.15

1.1

1.05

1

0.95

0.9

0.85

0.8

0.75

0.7

0.65

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

69109



    Subbasin : E2

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.48
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 64.2
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.14 C 41
Gravel roads 0.14 C 89
Sagebrush range, Fair 0.19 C 63
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.47 64.2

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 8.71 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 5 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 3.61 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.23 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................8.94

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 3.7
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.82
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 1.45
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 64.2
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:08:56 

70110



          Subbasin : E2

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

9

8.5

8

7.5

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

1.35

1.3

1.25

1.2

1.15

1.1

1.05

1

0.95

0.9

0.85

0.8

0.75

0.7

0.65

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

71111



    Subbasin : E3

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.52
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 43.4
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.49 C 41
Gravel roads 0.03 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.52 43.4

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.13 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 6.6 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 7.22 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.12 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................6.72

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 3.7
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.08
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.35
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 43.4
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:06:43 

72112



          Subbasin : E3

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

9

8.5

8

7.5

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.27

0.26

0.25

0.24

0.23

0.22

0.21

0.2

0.19

0.18

0.17

0.16

0.15

0.14

0.13

0.12

0.11

0.1

0.09

0.08

0.07

0.06

0.05

0.04

0.03

0.02

0.01

73113



    Subbasin : E4

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 4.81
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 46.1
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 2.41 C 41
Sagebrush range, Good 2.16 C 47
Gravel roads 0.24 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 4.81 46.1

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.35 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 30 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.19 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 8.78 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 5.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.33 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................9.11

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 3.7
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.14
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 4.05
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 46.1
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:09:07 

74114



          Subbasin : E4

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

9

8.5

8

7.5

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

3.8

3.6

3.4

3.2

3

2.8

2.6

2.4

2.2

2

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

75115



Autodesk Storm and Sanitary AnalysisAutodesk Storm and Sanitary Analysis

76116



Project Description

Dolores River Subdivision - Proposed.SPF

Project Options

CFS
Elevation
SCS TR-55
SCS TR-55
Kinematic Wave
YES
YES

Analysis Options

00:00:00 0:00:00
00:00:00 0:00:00
00:00:00 0:00:00
0 days
0 01:00:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
30 seconds

Number of Elements
Qty
1
7
8
2
6
0
0
0
2
1
1
0
0
0
0
0
0

Rainfall Details

SN Rain Gage Data Data Source Rainfall Rain State County Return Rainfall Rainfall
ID Source ID Type Units Period Depth Distribution

(years) (inches)
1 RICO Time Series 2 YR Cumulative inches 0.00

Antecedent Dry Days ................................

File Name .................................................

Flow Units ................................................
Elevation Type ..........................................
Hydrology Method ...................................
Time of Concentration (TOC) Method .......
Link Routing Method ................................
Enable Overflow Ponding at Nodes ..........
Skip Steady State Analysis Time Periods ...

Start Analysis On ......................................
End Analysis On ........................................
Start Reporting On ...................................

        Storage Nodes ..................................

Runoff (Dry Weather) Time Step ..............
Runoff (Wet Weather) Time Step .............
Reporting Time Step .................................
Routing Time Step ....................................

Rain Gages ...............................................
Subbasins..................................................
Nodes........................................................
        Junctions ..........................................
        Outfalls ............................................
        Flow Diversions ................................
        Inlets ................................................

        Outlets .............................................
Pollutants .................................................
Land Uses .................................................

Links..........................................................
        Channels ..........................................
        Pipes ................................................
        Pumps ..............................................
        Orifices .............................................
        Weirs ................................................

77117



Subbasin Summary

SN Subbasin Area Peak Rate Weighted Total Total Total Peak Time of
ID Factor Curve Rainfall Runoff Runoff Runoff Concentration

Number Volume
(ac) (in) (in) (ac-in) (cfs) (days hh:mm:ss)

1 P1 0.71 484.00 59.96 1.77 0.03 0.02 0.11        0  00:11:39
2 P2 0.45 484.00 59.40 1.77 0.02 0.01 0.07        0  00:08:56
3 P3 0.52 484.00 44.84 1.77 0.00 0.00 0.00        0  00:06:43
4 P4 1.22 484.00 49.71 1.77 0.00 0.00 0.00        0  00:10:33
5 P5 1.75 484.00 50.15 1.77 0.00 0.00 0.00        0  00:10:27
6 P6 0.26 484.00 57.50 1.77 0.01 0.00 0.03        0  00:06:33
7 P7 1.50 484.00 46.25 1.77 0.00 0.00 0.00        0  00:12:14

78118



Node Summary

SN Element Element Invert Ground/Rim Initial Surcharge Ponded Peak Max HGL Max Min Time of Total Total Time
ID Type Elevation (Max) Water Elevation Area Inflow Elevation Surcharge Freeboard Peak Flooded Flooded

Elevation Elevation Attained Depth Attained Flooding Volume
Attained Occurrence

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft²) (cfs) (ft) (ft) (ft) (days hh:mm) (ac-in) (min)
1 1-Jun Junction 8720.00 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8720.00 0.00 1.50 0  00:00 0.00 0.00
2 2-Jun Junction 8718.00 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8718.00 0.00 1.50 0  00:00 0.00 0.00
3 Out-P1 Outfall 8728.00 0.11 8728.00
4 Out-P2 Outfall 8728.00 0.07 8728.00
5 Out-P3 Outfall 8730.00 0.00 8730.00
6 Out-P4 Outfall 8720.00 0.00 8720.00
7 Out-P5 Outfall 8714.00 0.02 8714.00
8 Out-P6 Outfall 8720.00 0.00 8720.00

79119



Link Summary

SN Element Element From To (Outlet) Length Inlet Outlet Average Diameter or Manning's Peak Design Flow Peak Flow/ Peak Flow Peak Flow Peak Flow Total Time Reported
ID Type (Inlet) Node Invert Invert Slope Height Roughness Flow Capacity Design Flow Velocity Depth Depth/ Surcharged Condition

Node Elevation Elevation Ratio Total Depth
Ratio

(ft) (ft) (ft) (%) (in) (cfs) (cfs) (ft/sec) (ft) (min)
1 Link-01 Pipe 1-Jun 2-Jun 24.00 8720.00 8718.00 8.3300 18.000 0.0150 0.00 26.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Calculated
2 Link-02 Channel 2-Jun Out-P5 31.06 8718.00 8714.00 12.8800 12.000 0.0320 0.00 177.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

80120



Subbasin Hydrology

    Subbasin : P1

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.71
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 59.96
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.44 C 41
Gravel roads 0.21 C 89
Paved parking & roofs 0.06 C 98
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.71 59.96

          Time of Concentration

TOC Method : SCS TR-55

Sheet Flow Equation :

    Tc = (0.007 * ((n * Lf)^0.8)) / ((P^0.5) * (Sf^0.4))

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    n   = Manning's roughness
    Lf  = Flow Length (ft)
    P   = 2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (inches)
    Sf  = Slope (ft/ft)

Shallow Concentrated Flow Equation :

    V  = 16.1345 * (Sf^0.5) (unpaved surface)
    V  = 20.3282 * (Sf^0.5) (paved surface)
    V  = 15.0 * (Sf^0.5) (grassed waterway surface)
    V  = 10.0 * (Sf^0.5) (nearly bare & untilled surface)
    V  = 9.0 * (Sf^0.5) (cultivated straight rows surface)
    V  = 7.0 * (Sf^0.5) (short grass pasture surface)
    V  = 5.0 * (Sf^0.5) (woodland surface)
    V  = 2.5 * (Sf^0.5) (forest w/heavy litter surface)
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

             Where:

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)

Channel Flow Equation :

    V  = (1.49 * (R^(2/3)) * (Sf^0.5)) / n
    R  = Aq / Wp
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    R  = Hydraulic Radius (ft)
    Aq = Flow Area (ft²)
    Wp = Wetted Perimeter (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)
    n  = Manning's roughness

81121



Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.14 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 11.49 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 5.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.16 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................11.66

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 1.77
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.03
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.11
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 59.96
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:11:40 

82122



          Subbasin : P1

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

5

4.8

4.6

4.4

4.2

4

3.8

3.6

3.4

3.2

3

2.8

2.6

2.4

2.2

2

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.115

0.11

0.105

0.1

0.095

0.09

0.085

0.08

0.075

0.07

0.065

0.06

0.055

0.05

0.045

0.04

0.035

0.03

0.025

0.02

0.015

0.01

0.005

83123



    Subbasin : P2

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.45
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 59.4
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.18 C 41
Gravel roads 0.09 C 89
Sagebrush range, Fair 0.18 C 63
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.45 59.4

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 8.71 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 5 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 3.61 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.23 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................8.94

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 1.77
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.02
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.07
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 59.4
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:08:56 

84124



          Subbasin : P2

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

5.2

5

4.8

4.6

4.4

4.2

4

3.8

3.6

3.4

3.2

3

2.8

2.6

2.4

2.2

2

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.075

0.07

0.065

0.06

0.055

0.05

0.045

0.04

0.035

0.03

0.025

0.02

0.015

0.01

0.005

85125



    Subbasin : P3

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.52
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 44.84
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.48 C 41
Gravel roads 0.04 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.52 44.84

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.13 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 6.6 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 7.22 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.12 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................6.72

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 1.77
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 44.84
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:06:43 

86126



          Subbasin : P3

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

5.2

5

4.8

4.6

4.4

4.2

4

3.8

3.6

3.4

3.2

3

2.8

2.6

2.4

2.2

2

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0

0

87127



    Subbasin : P4

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 1.22
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 49.71
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.61 C 41
Sagebrush range, Good 0.45 C 47
Gravel roads 0.1 C 89
Urban commercial, 85% imp 0.06 C 94
Composite Area & Weighted CN 1.22 49.71

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.35 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.16 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 10.33 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 7.22 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.23 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................10.56

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 1.77
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 49.71
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:10:34 

88128



          Subbasin : P4

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

5.2

5

4.8

4.6

4.4

4.2

4

3.8

3.6

3.4

3.2

3

2.8

2.6

2.4

2.2

2

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0

0

89129



    Subbasin : P5

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 1.75
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 50.15
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 1.05 C 41
Sagebrush range, Good 0.44 C 47
Paved parking & roofs 0.09 C 98
Gravel roads 0.18 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 1.76 50.15

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.35 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.16 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 10.33 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 15 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 6.25 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.13 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................10.46

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 1.77
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 50.15
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:10:28 

90130



          Subbasin : P5

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

5.2

5

4.8

4.6

4.4

4.2

4

3.8

3.6

3.4

3.2

3

2.8

2.6

2.4

2.2

2

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0

0

91131



    Subbasin : P6

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.26
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 57.5
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Gravel roads 0.07 C 89
Sagebrush range, Good 0.2 C 47
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.27 57.5

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.25 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 24 0 0
    Slope (%) : 2 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.06 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 6.33 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 5 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 3.61 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.23 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................6.56

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 1.77
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.01
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.03
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 57.5
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:06:34 

92132



          Subbasin : P6

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

5.2

5

4.8

4.6

4.4

4.2

4

3.8

3.6

3.4

3.2

3

2.8

2.6

2.4

2.2

2

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.022

0.021

0.02

0.019

0.018

0.017

0.016

0.015

0.014

0.013

0.012

0.011

0.01

0.009

0.008

0.007

0.006

0.005

0.004

0.003

0.002

0.001

93133



    Subbasin : P7

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 1.5
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 46.25
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 1.35 C 41
Paved parking & roofs 0.08 C 98
Gravel roads 0.08 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 1.51 46.25

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.35 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 150 0 0
    Slope (%) : 30 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.21 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 12.15 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 30 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 8.84 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.09 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................12.24

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 1.77
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 46.25
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:12:14 

94134



          Subbasin : P7

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

5.2

5

4.8

4.6

4.4

4.2

4

3.8

3.6

3.4

3.2

3

2.8

2.6

2.4

2.2

2

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0

0

95135



Junction Input

SN Element Invert Ground/Rim Ground/Rim Initial Initial Surcharge Surcharge Ponded Minimum
ID Elevation (Max) (Max) Water Water Elevation Depth Area Pipe

Elevation Offset Elevation Depth Cover
(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft²) (in)

1 1-Jun 8720.00 6.00 -8714.00 0.00 -8720.00 0.00 -6.00 0.00 0.00
2 2-Jun 8718.00 6.00 -8712.00 0.00 -8718.00 0.00 -6.00 0.00 0.00

96136



Junction Results

SN Element Peak Peak Max HGL Max HGL Max Min Average HGL Average HGL Time of Time of Total Total Time
ID Inflow Lateral Elevation Depth Surcharge Freeboard Elevation Depth Max HGL Peak Flooded Flooded

Inflow Attained Attained Depth Attained Attained Attained Occurrence Flooding Volume
Attained Occurrence

(cfs) (cfs) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (days hh:mm) (days hh:mm) (ac-in) (min)
1 1-Jun 0.00 0.00 8720.00 0.00 0.00 1.50 8720.00 0.00 0  00:00 0  00:00 0.00 0.00
2 2-Jun 0.00 0.00 8718.00 0.00 0.00 1.50 8718.00 0.00 0  00:00 0  00:00 0.00 0.00

97137



Channel Input

SN Element Length Inlet Inlet Outlet Outlet Total Average Shape Height Width Manning's Entrance Exit/Bend Additional Initial Flap
ID Invert Invert Invert Invert Drop Slope Roughness Losses Losses Losses Flow Gate

Elevation Offset Elevation Offset
(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (%) (ft) (ft) (cfs)

1 Link-02 31.06 8718.00 0.00 8714.00 0.00 4.00 12.8800 Trapezoidal 1.000 25.000 0.0320 0.5000 0.5000 0.0000 0.00 No

98138



Channel Results

SN Element Peak Time of Design Flow Peak Flow/ Peak Flow Travel Peak Flow Peak Flow Total Time Froude Reported
ID Flow Peak Flow Capacity Design Flow Velocity Time Depth Depth/ Surcharged Number Condition

Occurrence Ratio Total Depth
Ratio

(cfs) (days hh:mm) (cfs) (ft/sec) (min) (ft) (min)
1 Link-02 0.00 0  00:00 177.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

99139



Pipe Input

SN Element Length Inlet Inlet Outlet Outlet Total Average Pipe Pipe Pipe Manning's Entrance Exit/Bend Additional Initial Flap No. of
ID Invert Invert Invert Invert Drop Slope Shape Diameter or Width Roughness Losses Losses Losses Flow Gate Barrels

Elevation Offset Elevation Offset Height
(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (%) (in) (in) (cfs)

1 Link-01 24.00 8720.00 0.00 8718.00 0.00 2.00 8.3300 CIRCULAR 18.000 18.000 0.0150 0.5000 0.5000 0.0000 0.00 No 1

100140



Pipe Results

SN Element Peak Time of Design Flow Peak Flow/ Peak Flow Travel Peak Flow Peak Flow Total Time Froude Reported
ID Flow Peak Flow Capacity Design Flow Velocity Time Depth Depth/ Surcharged Number Condition

Occurrence Ratio Total Depth
Ratio

(cfs) (days hh:mm) (cfs) (ft/sec) (min) (ft) (min)
1 Link-01 0.00 0  00:00 26.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Calculated

101141



Project Description

Dolores River Subdivision - Proposed.SPF

Project Options

CFS
Elevation
SCS TR-55
SCS TR-55
Kinematic Wave
YES
YES

Analysis Options

00:00:00 0:00:00
00:00:00 0:00:00
00:00:00 0:00:00
0 days
0 01:00:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
30 seconds

Number of Elements
Qty
1
7
8
2
6
0
0
0
2
1
1
0
0
0
0
0
0

Rainfall Details

SN Rain Gage Data Data Source Rainfall Rain State County Return Rainfall Rainfall
ID Source ID Type Units Period Depth Distribution

(years) (inches)
1 RICO Time Series 10 YR Cumulative inches 0.00

Antecedent Dry Days ................................

File Name .................................................

Flow Units ................................................
Elevation Type ..........................................
Hydrology Method ...................................
Time of Concentration (TOC) Method .......
Link Routing Method ................................
Enable Overflow Ponding at Nodes ..........
Skip Steady State Analysis Time Periods ...

Start Analysis On ......................................
End Analysis On ........................................
Start Reporting On ...................................

        Storage Nodes ..................................

Runoff (Dry Weather) Time Step ..............
Runoff (Wet Weather) Time Step .............
Reporting Time Step .................................
Routing Time Step ....................................

Rain Gages ...............................................
Subbasins..................................................
Nodes........................................................
        Junctions ..........................................
        Outfalls ............................................
        Flow Diversions ................................
        Inlets ................................................

        Outlets .............................................
Pollutants .................................................
Land Uses .................................................

Links..........................................................
        Channels ..........................................
        Pipes ................................................
        Pumps ..............................................
        Orifices .............................................
        Weirs ................................................

102142



Subbasin Summary

SN Subbasin Area Peak Rate Weighted Total Total Total Peak Time of
ID Factor Curve Rainfall Runoff Runoff Runoff Concentration

Number Volume
(ac) (in) (in) (ac-in) (cfs) (days hh:mm:ss)

1 P1 0.71 484.00 59.96 2.42 0.15 0.11 0.54        0  00:11:39
2 P2 0.45 484.00 59.40 2.42 0.14 0.06 0.38        0  00:08:56
3 P3 0.52 484.00 44.84 2.42 0.00 0.00 0.00        0  00:06:43
4 P4 1.22 484.00 49.71 2.42 0.02 0.02 0.12        0  00:10:33
5 P5 1.75 484.00 50.15 2.42 0.02 0.03 0.21        0  00:10:27
6 P6 0.26 484.00 57.50 2.42 0.11 0.03 0.21        0  00:06:33
7 P7 1.50 484.00 46.25 2.42 0.00 0.00 0.01        0  00:12:14

103143



Node Summary

SN Element Element Invert Ground/Rim Initial Surcharge Ponded Peak Max HGL Max Min Time of Total Total Time
ID Type Elevation (Max) Water Elevation Area Inflow Elevation Surcharge Freeboard Peak Flooded Flooded

Elevation Elevation Attained Depth Attained Flooding Volume
Attained Occurrence

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft²) (cfs) (ft) (ft) (ft) (days hh:mm) (ac-in) (min)
1 1-Jun Junction 8720.00 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.21 8720.09 0.00 1.41 0  00:00 0.00 0.00
2 2-Jun Junction 8718.00 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.21 8718.09 0.00 1.41 0  00:00 0.00 0.00
3 Out-P1 Outfall 8728.00 0.53 8728.00
4 Out-P2 Outfall 8728.00 0.32 8728.00
5 Out-P3 Outfall 8730.00 0.00 8730.00
6 Out-P4 Outfall 8720.00 0.12 8720.00
7 Out-P5 Outfall 8714.00 0.32 8714.03
8 Out-P6 Outfall 8720.00 0.01 8720.00

104144



Link Summary

SN Element Element From To (Outlet) Length Inlet Outlet Average Diameter or Manning's Peak Design Flow Peak Flow/ Peak Flow Peak Flow Peak Flow Total Time Reported
ID Type (Inlet) Node Invert Invert Slope Height Roughness Flow Capacity Design Flow Velocity Depth Depth/ Surcharged Condition

Node Elevation Elevation Ratio Total Depth
Ratio

(ft) (ft) (ft) (%) (in) (cfs) (cfs) (ft/sec) (ft) (min)
1 Link-01 Pipe 1-Jun 2-Jun 24.00 8720.00 8718.00 8.3300 18.000 0.0150 0.21 26.28 0.01 4.41 0.09 0.06 0.00 Calculated
2 Link-02 Channel 2-Jun Out-P5 31.06 8718.00 8714.00 12.8800 12.000 0.0320 0.20 177.35 0.00 1.45 0.03 0.03 0.00

105145



Subbasin Hydrology

    Subbasin : P1

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.71
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 59.96
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.44 C 41
Gravel roads 0.21 C 89
Paved parking & roofs 0.06 C 98
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.71 59.96

          Time of Concentration

TOC Method : SCS TR-55

Sheet Flow Equation :

    Tc = (0.007 * ((n * Lf)^0.8)) / ((P^0.5) * (Sf^0.4))

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    n   = Manning's roughness
    Lf  = Flow Length (ft)
    P   = 2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (inches)
    Sf  = Slope (ft/ft)

Shallow Concentrated Flow Equation :

    V  = 16.1345 * (Sf^0.5) (unpaved surface)
    V  = 20.3282 * (Sf^0.5) (paved surface)
    V  = 15.0 * (Sf^0.5) (grassed waterway surface)
    V  = 10.0 * (Sf^0.5) (nearly bare & untilled surface)
    V  = 9.0 * (Sf^0.5) (cultivated straight rows surface)
    V  = 7.0 * (Sf^0.5) (short grass pasture surface)
    V  = 5.0 * (Sf^0.5) (woodland surface)
    V  = 2.5 * (Sf^0.5) (forest w/heavy litter surface)
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

             Where:

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)

Channel Flow Equation :

    V  = (1.49 * (R^(2/3)) * (Sf^0.5)) / n
    R  = Aq / Wp
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    R  = Hydraulic Radius (ft)
    Aq = Flow Area (ft²)
    Wp = Wetted Perimeter (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)
    n  = Manning's roughness

106146



Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.14 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 11.49 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 5.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.16 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................11.66

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 2.42
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.15
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.54
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 59.96
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:11:40 

107147



          Subbasin : P1

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.56

0.54

0.52

0.5

0.48

0.46

0.44

0.42

0.4

0.38

0.36

0.34

0.32

0.3

0.28

0.26

0.24

0.22

0.2

0.18

0.16

0.14

0.12

0.1

0.08

0.06

0.04

0.02

108148



    Subbasin : P2

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.45
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 59.4
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.18 C 41
Gravel roads 0.09 C 89
Sagebrush range, Fair 0.18 C 63
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.45 59.4

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 8.71 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 5 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 3.61 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.23 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................8.94

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 2.42
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.14
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.38
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 59.4
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:08:56 

109149



          Subbasin : P2

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.34

0.32

0.3

0.28

0.26

0.24

0.22

0.2

0.18

0.16

0.14

0.12

0.1

0.08

0.06

0.04

0.02

110150



    Subbasin : P3

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.52
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 44.84
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.48 C 41
Gravel roads 0.04 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.52 44.84

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.13 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 6.6 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 7.22 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.12 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................6.72

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 2.42
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 44.84
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:06:43 

111151



          Subbasin : P3

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.001

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

0

0

112152



    Subbasin : P4

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 1.22
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 49.71
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.61 C 41
Sagebrush range, Good 0.45 C 47
Gravel roads 0.1 C 89
Urban commercial, 85% imp 0.06 C 94
Composite Area & Weighted CN 1.22 49.71

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.35 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.16 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 10.33 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 7.22 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.23 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................10.56

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 2.42
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.02
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.12
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 49.71
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:10:34 

113153



          Subbasin : P4

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.125

0.12

0.115

0.11

0.105

0.1

0.095

0.09

0.085

0.08

0.075

0.07

0.065

0.06

0.055

0.05

0.045

0.04

0.035

0.03

0.025

0.02

0.015

0.01

0.005

114154



    Subbasin : P5

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 1.75
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 50.15
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 1.05 C 41
Sagebrush range, Good 0.44 C 47
Paved parking & roofs 0.09 C 98
Gravel roads 0.18 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 1.76 50.15

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.35 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.16 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 10.33 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 15 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 6.25 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.13 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................10.46

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 2.42
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.02
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.21
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 50.15
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:10:28 

115155



          Subbasin : P5

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.22

0.21

0.2

0.19

0.18

0.17

0.16

0.15

0.14

0.13

0.12

0.11

0.1

0.09

0.08

0.07

0.06

0.05

0.04

0.03

0.02

0.01

116156



    Subbasin : P6

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.26
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 57.5
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Gravel roads 0.07 C 89
Sagebrush range, Good 0.2 C 47
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.27 57.5

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.25 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 24 0 0
    Slope (%) : 2 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.06 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 6.33 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 5 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 3.61 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.23 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................6.56

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 2.42
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.11
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.21
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 57.5
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:06:34 

117157



          Subbasin : P6

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.18

0.17

0.16

0.15

0.14

0.13

0.12

0.11

0.1

0.09

0.08

0.07

0.06

0.05

0.04

0.03

0.02

0.01

118158



    Subbasin : P7

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 1.5
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 46.25
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 1.35 C 41
Paved parking & roofs 0.08 C 98
Gravel roads 0.08 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 1.51 46.25

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.35 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 150 0 0
    Slope (%) : 30 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.21 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 12.15 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 30 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 8.84 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.09 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................12.24

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 2.42
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.01
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 46.25
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:12:14 

119159



          Subbasin : P7

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.006

0.006

0.005

0.005

0.005

0.005

0.005

0.004

0.004

0.004

0.004

0.004

0.003

0.003

0.003

0.003

0.003

0.002

0.002

0.002

0.002

0.002

0.001

0.001

0.001

120160



Junction Input

SN Element Invert Ground/Rim Ground/Rim Initial Initial Surcharge Surcharge Ponded Minimum
ID Elevation (Max) (Max) Water Water Elevation Depth Area Pipe

Elevation Offset Elevation Depth Cover
(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft²) (in)

1 1-Jun 8720.00 6.00 -8714.00 0.00 -8720.00 0.00 -6.00 0.00 0.00
2 2-Jun 8718.00 6.00 -8712.00 0.00 -8718.00 0.00 -6.00 0.00 0.00

121161



Junction Results

SN Element Peak Peak Max HGL Max HGL Max Min Average HGL Average HGL Time of Time of Total Total Time
ID Inflow Lateral Elevation Depth Surcharge Freeboard Elevation Depth Max HGL Peak Flooded Flooded

Inflow Attained Attained Depth Attained Attained Attained Occurrence Flooding Volume
Attained Occurrence

(cfs) (cfs) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (days hh:mm) (days hh:mm) (ac-in) (min)
1 1-Jun 0.21 0.21 8720.09 0.09 0.00 1.41 8720.00 0.00 0  01:00 0  00:00 0.00 0.00
2 2-Jun 0.21 0.00 8718.09 0.09 0.00 1.41 8718.00 0.00 0  01:00 0  00:00 0.00 0.00

122162



Channel Input

SN Element Length Inlet Inlet Outlet Outlet Total Average Shape Height Width Manning's Entrance Exit/Bend Additional Initial Flap
ID Invert Invert Invert Invert Drop Slope Roughness Losses Losses Losses Flow Gate

Elevation Offset Elevation Offset
(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (%) (ft) (ft) (cfs)

1 Link-02 31.06 8718.00 0.00 8714.00 0.00 4.00 12.8800 Trapezoidal 1.000 25.000 0.0320 0.5000 0.5000 0.0000 0.00 No

123163



Channel Results

SN Element Peak Time of Design Flow Peak Flow/ Peak Flow Travel Peak Flow Peak Flow Total Time Froude Reported
ID Flow Peak Flow Capacity Design Flow Velocity Time Depth Depth/ Surcharged Number Condition

Occurrence Ratio Total Depth
Ratio

(cfs) (days hh:mm) (cfs) (ft/sec) (min) (ft) (min)
1 Link-02 0.20 0  01:00 177.35 0.00 1.45 0.36 0.03 0.03 0.00

124164



Pipe Input

SN Element Length Inlet Inlet Outlet Outlet Total Average Pipe Pipe Pipe Manning's Entrance Exit/Bend Additional Initial Flap No. of
ID Invert Invert Invert Invert Drop Slope Shape Diameter or Width Roughness Losses Losses Losses Flow Gate Barrels

Elevation Offset Elevation Offset Height
(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (%) (in) (in) (cfs)

1 Link-01 24.00 8720.00 0.00 8718.00 0.00 2.00 8.3300 CIRCULAR 18.000 18.000 0.0150 0.5000 0.5000 0.0000 0.00 No 1

125165



Pipe Results

SN Element Peak Time of Design Flow Peak Flow/ Peak Flow Travel Peak Flow Peak Flow Total Time Froude Reported
ID Flow Peak Flow Capacity Design Flow Velocity Time Depth Depth/ Surcharged Number Condition

Occurrence Ratio Total Depth
Ratio

(cfs) (days hh:mm) (cfs) (ft/sec) (min) (ft) (min)
1 Link-01 0.21 0  01:00 26.28 0.01 4.41 0.09 0.09 0.06 0.00 Calculated

126166



Project Description

Dolores River Subdivision - Proposed.SPF

Project Options

CFS
Elevation
SCS TR-55
SCS TR-55
Kinematic Wave
YES
YES

Analysis Options

00:00:00 0:00:00
00:00:00 0:00:00
00:00:00 0:00:00
0 days
0 01:00:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
0 00:05:00 days hh:mm:ss
30 seconds

Number of Elements
Qty
1
7
8
2
6
0
0
0
2
1
1
0
0
0
0
0
0

Rainfall Details

SN Rain Gage Data Data Source Rainfall Rain State County Return Rainfall Rainfall
ID Source ID Type Units Period Depth Distribution

(years) (inches)
1 RICO Time Series 100 YR Cumulative inches 0.00

Antecedent Dry Days ................................

File Name .................................................

Flow Units ................................................
Elevation Type ..........................................
Hydrology Method ...................................
Time of Concentration (TOC) Method .......
Link Routing Method ................................
Enable Overflow Ponding at Nodes ..........
Skip Steady State Analysis Time Periods ...

Start Analysis On ......................................
End Analysis On ........................................
Start Reporting On ...................................

        Storage Nodes ..................................

Runoff (Dry Weather) Time Step ..............
Runoff (Wet Weather) Time Step .............
Reporting Time Step .................................
Routing Time Step ....................................

Rain Gages ...............................................
Subbasins..................................................
Nodes........................................................
        Junctions ..........................................
        Outfalls ............................................
        Flow Diversions ................................
        Inlets ................................................

        Outlets .............................................
Pollutants .................................................
Land Uses .................................................

Links..........................................................
        Channels ..........................................
        Pipes ................................................
        Pumps ..............................................
        Orifices .............................................
        Weirs ................................................

127167



Subbasin Summary

SN Subbasin Area Peak Rate Weighted Total Total Total Peak Time of
ID Factor Curve Rainfall Runoff Runoff Runoff Concentration

Number Volume
(ac) (in) (in) (ac-in) (cfs) (days hh:mm:ss)

1 P1 0.71 484.00 59.96 3.70 0.62 0.44 1.57        0  00:11:39
2 P2 0.45 484.00 59.40 3.70 0.59 0.27 1.09        0  00:08:56
3 P3 0.52 484.00 44.84 3.70 0.11 0.06 0.44        0  00:06:43
4 P4 1.22 484.00 49.71 3.70 0.24 0.29 1.41        0  00:10:33
5 P5 1.75 484.00 50.15 3.70 0.25 0.44 2.11        0  00:10:27
6 P6 0.26 484.00 57.50 3.70 0.51 0.13 0.65        0  00:06:33
7 P7 1.50 484.00 46.25 3.70 0.15 0.22 1.06        0  00:12:14

128168



Node Summary

SN Element Element Invert Ground/Rim Initial Surcharge Ponded Peak Max HGL Max Min Time of Total Total Time
ID Type Elevation (Max) Water Elevation Area Inflow Elevation Surcharge Freeboard Peak Flooded Flooded

Elevation Elevation Attained Depth Attained Flooding Volume
Attained Occurrence

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft²) (cfs) (ft) (ft) (ft) (days hh:mm) (ac-in) (min)
1 1-Jun Junction 8720.00 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.95 8720.28 0.00 1.22 0  00:00 0.00 0.00
2 2-Jun Junction 8718.00 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.95 8718.28 0.00 1.22 0  00:00 0.00 0.00
3 Out-P1 Outfall 8728.00 1.49 8728.00
4 Out-P2 Outfall 8728.00 0.93 8728.00
5 Out-P3 Outfall 8730.00 0.34 8730.00
6 Out-P4 Outfall 8720.00 1.31 8720.00
7 Out-P5 Outfall 8714.00 2.28 8714.10
8 Out-P6 Outfall 8720.00 1.05 8720.00

129169



Link Summary

SN Element Element From To (Outlet) Length Inlet Outlet Average Diameter or Manning's Peak Design Flow Peak Flow/ Peak Flow Peak Flow Peak Flow Total Time Reported
ID Type (Inlet) Node Invert Invert Slope Height Roughness Flow Capacity Design Flow Velocity Depth Depth/ Surcharged Condition

Node Elevation Elevation Ratio Total Depth
Ratio

(ft) (ft) (ft) (%) (in) (cfs) (cfs) (ft/sec) (ft) (min)
1 Link-01 Pipe 1-Jun 2-Jun 24.00 8720.00 8718.00 8.3300 18.000 0.0150 1.95 26.28 0.07 8.72 0.28 0.18 0.00 Calculated
2 Link-02 Channel 2-Jun Out-P5 31.06 8718.00 8714.00 12.8800 12.000 0.0320 1.94 177.35 0.01 3.24 0.10 0.10 0.00

130170



Subbasin Hydrology

    Subbasin : P1

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.71
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 59.96
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.44 C 41
Gravel roads 0.21 C 89
Paved parking & roofs 0.06 C 98
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.71 59.96

          Time of Concentration

TOC Method : SCS TR-55

Sheet Flow Equation :

    Tc = (0.007 * ((n * Lf)^0.8)) / ((P^0.5) * (Sf^0.4))

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    n   = Manning's roughness
    Lf  = Flow Length (ft)
    P   = 2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (inches)
    Sf  = Slope (ft/ft)

Shallow Concentrated Flow Equation :

    V  = 16.1345 * (Sf^0.5) (unpaved surface)
    V  = 20.3282 * (Sf^0.5) (paved surface)
    V  = 15.0 * (Sf^0.5) (grassed waterway surface)
    V  = 10.0 * (Sf^0.5) (nearly bare & untilled surface)
    V  = 9.0 * (Sf^0.5) (cultivated straight rows surface)
    V  = 7.0 * (Sf^0.5) (short grass pasture surface)
    V  = 5.0 * (Sf^0.5) (woodland surface)
    V  = 2.5 * (Sf^0.5) (forest w/heavy litter surface)
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

             Where:

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)

Channel Flow Equation :

    V  = (1.49 * (R^(2/3)) * (Sf^0.5)) / n
    R  = Aq / Wp
    Tc = (Lf / V) / (3600 sec/hr)

Where :

    Tc = Time of Concentration (hr)
    Lf = Flow Length (ft)
    R  = Hydraulic Radius (ft)
    Aq = Flow Area (ft²)
    Wp = Wetted Perimeter (ft)
    V  = Velocity (ft/sec)
    Sf = Slope (ft/ft)
    n  = Manning's roughness

131171



Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.14 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 11.49 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 5.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.16 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................11.66

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 3.7
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.62
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 1.57
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 59.96
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:11:40 

132172



          Subbasin : P1

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

8.5

8

7.5

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

1.55

1.5

1.45

1.4

1.35

1.3

1.25

1.2

1.15

1.1

1.05

1

0.95

0.9

0.85

0.8

0.75

0.7

0.65

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

133173



    Subbasin : P2

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.45
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 59.4
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.18 C 41
Gravel roads 0.09 C 89
Sagebrush range, Fair 0.18 C 63
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.45 59.4

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 10 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.1 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 8.71 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 5 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 3.61 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.23 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................8.94

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 3.7
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.59
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 1.09
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 59.4
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:08:56 

134174



          Subbasin : P2

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

9

8.5

8

7.5

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

1

0.95

0.9

0.85

0.8

0.75

0.7

0.65

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

135175



    Subbasin : P3

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.52
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 44.84
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.48 C 41
Gravel roads 0.04 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.52 44.84

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.4 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.13 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 6.6 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 7.22 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.12 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................6.72

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 3.7
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.11
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.44
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 44.84
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:06:43 

136176



          Subbasin : P3

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

9

8.5

8

7.5

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.36

0.34

0.32

0.3

0.28

0.26

0.24

0.22

0.2

0.18

0.16

0.14

0.12

0.1

0.08

0.06

0.04

0.02

137177



    Subbasin : P4

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 1.22
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 49.71
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 0.61 C 41
Sagebrush range, Good 0.45 C 47
Gravel roads 0.1 C 89
Urban commercial, 85% imp 0.06 C 94
Composite Area & Weighted CN 1.22 49.71

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.35 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.16 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 10.33 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 7.22 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.23 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................10.56

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 3.7
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.24
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 1.41
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 49.71
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:10:34 

138178



          Subbasin : P4

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

9

8.5

8

7.5

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

1.4

1.35

1.3

1.25

1.2

1.15

1.1

1.05

1

0.95

0.9

0.85

0.8

0.75

0.7

0.65

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

139179



    Subbasin : P5

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 1.75
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 50.15
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 1.05 C 41
Sagebrush range, Good 0.44 C 47
Paved parking & roofs 0.09 C 98
Gravel roads 0.18 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 1.76 50.15

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.35 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 100 0 0
    Slope (%) : 20 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.16 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 10.33 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 15 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 6.25 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.13 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................10.46

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 3.7
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.25
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 2.11
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 50.15
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:10:28 

140180



          Subbasin : P5

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

9

8.5

8

7.5

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

2.1

2

1.9

1.8

1.7

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.1

1

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

141181



    Subbasin : P6

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 0.26
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 57.5
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Gravel roads 0.07 C 89
Sagebrush range, Good 0.2 C 47
Composite Area & Weighted CN 0.27 57.5

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.25 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 24 0 0
    Slope (%) : 2 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.06 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 6.33 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 5 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 3.61 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.23 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................6.56

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 3.7
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.51
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 0.65
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 57.5
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:06:34 

142182



          Subbasin : P6

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

9

8.5

8

7.5

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

0.62

0.6

0.58

0.56

0.54

0.52

0.5

0.48

0.46

0.44

0.42

0.4

0.38

0.36

0.34

0.32

0.3

0.28

0.26

0.24

0.22

0.2

0.18

0.16

0.14

0.12

0.1

0.08

0.06

0.04

0.02

143183



    Subbasin : P7

          Input Data

Area (ac) ............................................................................... 1.5
Peak Rate Factor .................................................................. 484
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 46.25
Rain Gage ID ......................................................................... RICO

          Composite Curve Number
32 Area Soil Curve
Soil/Surface Description (acres) Group Number
Oak & Aspen range, Good 1.35 C 41
Paved parking & roofs 0.08 C 98
Gravel roads 0.08 C 89
Composite Area & Weighted CN 1.51 46.25

          Time of Concentration

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Sheet Flow Computations A B C
    Manning's Roughness : 0.35 0 0
    Flow Length (ft) : 150 0 0
    Slope (%) : 30 0 0
    2 yr, 24 hr Rainfall (in) : 1.77 0 0
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 0.21 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 12.15 0 0

Subarea Subarea Subarea
Shallow Concentrated Flow Computations A B C
    Flow Length (ft) : 50 0 0
    Slope (%) : 30 0 0
    Surface Type : Unpaved Unpaved Unpaved
    Velocity (ft/sec) : 8.84 0 0
    Computed Flow Time (min) : 0.09 0 0
Total TOC (min) ..................12.24

          Subbasin Runoff Results

Total Rainfall (in) .................................................................. 3.7
Total Runoff (in) ................................................................... 0.15
Peak Runoff (cfs) .................................................................. 1.06
Weighted Curve Number ...................................................... 46.25
Time of Concentration (days hh:mm:ss) ............................... 0 00:12:14 

144184



          Subbasin : P7

       Rainfall Intensity Graph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
a
in

fa
ll
 (

in
/h

r)

9

8.5

8

7.5

7

6.5

6

5.5

5

4.5

4

3.5

3

2.5

2

1.5

1

0.5

       Runoff Hydrograph

Time (hrs)

23222120191817161514131211109876543210

R
u
n

o
ff

 (
c
fs

)

1.15

1.1

1.05

1

0.95

0.9

0.85

0.8

0.75

0.7

0.65

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

145185



Junction Input

SN Element Invert Ground/Rim Ground/Rim Initial Initial Surcharge Surcharge Ponded Minimum
ID Elevation (Max) (Max) Water Water Elevation Depth Area Pipe

Elevation Offset Elevation Depth Cover
(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft²) (in)

1 1-Jun 8720.00 6.00 -8714.00 0.00 -8720.00 0.00 -6.00 0.00 0.00
2 2-Jun 8718.00 6.00 -8712.00 0.00 -8718.00 0.00 -6.00 0.00 0.00

146186



Junction Results

SN Element Peak Peak Max HGL Max HGL Max Min Average HGL Average HGL Time of Time of Total Total Time
ID Inflow Lateral Elevation Depth Surcharge Freeboard Elevation Depth Max HGL Peak Flooded Flooded

Inflow Attained Attained Depth Attained Attained Attained Occurrence Flooding Volume
Attained Occurrence

(cfs) (cfs) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (days hh:mm) (days hh:mm) (ac-in) (min)
1 1-Jun 1.95 1.95 8720.28 0.28 0.00 1.22 8720.00 0.00 0  01:00 0  00:00 0.00 0.00
2 2-Jun 1.95 0.00 8718.28 0.28 0.00 1.22 8718.00 0.00 0  01:00 0  00:00 0.00 0.00

147187



Channel Input

SN Element Length Inlet Inlet Outlet Outlet Total Average Shape Height Width Manning's Entrance Exit/Bend Additional Initial Flap
ID Invert Invert Invert Invert Drop Slope Roughness Losses Losses Losses Flow Gate

Elevation Offset Elevation Offset
(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (%) (ft) (ft) (cfs)

1 Link-02 31.06 8718.00 0.00 8714.00 0.00 4.00 12.8800 Trapezoidal 1.000 25.000 0.0320 0.5000 0.5000 0.0000 0.00 No

148188



Channel Results

SN Element Peak Time of Design Flow Peak Flow/ Peak Flow Travel Peak Flow Peak Flow Total Time Froude Reported
ID Flow Peak Flow Capacity Design Flow Velocity Time Depth Depth/ Surcharged Number Condition

Occurrence Ratio Total Depth
Ratio

(cfs) (days hh:mm) (cfs) (ft/sec) (min) (ft) (min)
1 Link-02 1.94 0  01:00 177.35 0.01 3.24 0.16 0.10 0.10 0.00

149189



Pipe Input

SN Element Length Inlet Inlet Outlet Outlet Total Average Pipe Pipe Pipe Manning's Entrance Exit/Bend Additional Initial Flap No. of
ID Invert Invert Invert Invert Drop Slope Shape Diameter or Width Roughness Losses Losses Losses Flow Gate Barrels

Elevation Offset Elevation Offset Height
(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (%) (in) (in) (cfs)

1 Link-01 24.00 8720.00 0.00 8718.00 0.00 2.00 8.3300 CIRCULAR 18.000 18.000 0.0150 0.5000 0.5000 0.0000 0.00 No 1

150190



Pipe Results

SN Element Peak Time of Design Flow Peak Flow/ Peak Flow Travel Peak Flow Peak Flow Total Time Froude Reported
ID Flow Peak Flow Capacity Design Flow Velocity Time Depth Depth/ Surcharged Number Condition

Occurrence Ratio Total Depth
Ratio

(cfs) (days hh:mm) (cfs) (ft/sec) (min) (ft) (min)
1 Link-01 1.95 0  01:00 26.28 0.07 8.72 0.05 0.28 0.18 0.00 Calculated

151191



Dolores River Subdivision
Iron Draw Drainage Calculation
USGS  Analysis of the Magnitude and Frequency of Floods in Colorado

Iron Draw Area = 0.79 square miles
Iron Draw Slope = 48%

Avg Low High
Q2 36.60 21.59 58.41
Q5 44.66 21.70 66.36
Q10 49.44 22.05 71.49
Q25 54.75 23.16 77.91
Q50 59.20 25.04 84.24
Q100 62.06 26.93 89.00
Q200 65.52 29.62 95.14

152192



Channel Report
Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Thursday, Jun 30 2022

Rico - Roadside Ditch - 5% Grade - 0.5 ft depth

Triangular
Side Slopes (z:1) =  2.00, 2.00
Total Depth (ft) =  1.00

Invert Elev (ft) =  8730.00
Slope (%) =  5.00
N-Value =  0.035

Calculations
Compute by: Q vs Depth
No. Increments =  10

Highlighted
Depth (ft) =  0.50
Q (cfs) =  1.748
Area (sqft) =  0.50
Velocity (ft/s) =  3.50
Wetted Perim (ft) =  2.24
Crit Depth, Yc (ft) =  0.55
Top Width (ft) =  2.00
EGL (ft) =  0.69

0 .5 1 1.5 2 2.5 3 3.5 4 4.5 5

Elev (ft) Depth (ft)
Section

8729.50 -0.50

8730.00 0.00

8730.50 0.50

8731.00 1.00

8731.50 1.50

8732.00 2.00

Reach (ft)

153193



Channel Report
Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Thursday, Jun 30 2022

Rico - Roadside Ditch - 10% Grade - 0.5 ft depth

Triangular
Side Slopes (z:1) =  2.00, 2.00
Total Depth (ft) =  1.00

Invert Elev (ft) =  8730.00
Slope (%) =  10.00
N-Value =  0.035

Calculations
Compute by: Q vs Depth
No. Increments =  10

Highlighted
Depth (ft) =  0.50
Q (cfs) =  2.472
Area (sqft) =  0.50
Velocity (ft/s) =  4.94
Wetted Perim (ft) =  2.24
Crit Depth, Yc (ft) =  0.63
Top Width (ft) =  2.00
EGL (ft) =  0.88

0 .5 1 1.5 2 2.5 3 3.5 4 4.5 5

Elev (ft) Depth (ft)
Section

8729.50 -0.50

8730.00 0.00

8730.50 0.50

8731.00 1.00

8731.50 1.50

8732.00 2.00

Reach (ft)

154194



Culvert Report
Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Tuesday, Nov 1 2022

Iron Draw (2) 29 x 42 HERCP - Q2

Invert Elev Dn (ft) =  8754.43
Pipe Length (ft) =  29.00
Slope (%) =  8.00
Invert Elev Up (ft) =  8756.75
Rise (in) =  29.0
Shape =  Elliptical
Span (in) =  45.0
No. Barrels =  2
n-Value =  0.013
Culvert Type =  Horizontal Ellipse Concrete
Culvert Entrance =  Square edge w/headwall (H)
Coeff. K,M,c,Y,k =  0.01, 2, 0.0398, 0.67, 0.5

Embankment
Top Elevation (ft) =  8760.83
Top Width (ft) =  20.00
Crest Width (ft) =  20.00

Calculations
Qmin (cfs) =  58.00
Qmax (cfs) =  58.00
Tailwater Elev (ft) =  (dc+D)/2

Highlighted
Qtotal (cfs) =  58.00
Qpipe (cfs) =  58.00
Qovertop (cfs) =  0.00
Veloc Dn (ft/s) =  4.68
Veloc Up (ft/s) =  7.84
HGL Dn (ft) =  8756.27
HGL Up (ft) =  8758.01
Hw Elev (ft) =  8759.03
Hw/D (ft) =  0.94
Flow Regime =  Inlet Control

155195



Culvert Report
Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Tuesday, Nov 1 2022

Iron Draw (2) 29 x 42 HERCP - Q10

Invert Elev Dn (ft) =  8754.43
Pipe Length (ft) =  29.00
Slope (%) =  8.00
Invert Elev Up (ft) =  8756.75
Rise (in) =  29.0
Shape =  Elliptical
Span (in) =  45.0
No. Barrels =  2
n-Value =  0.013
Culvert Type =  Horizontal Ellipse Concrete
Culvert Entrance =  Square edge w/headwall (H)
Coeff. K,M,c,Y,k =  0.01, 2, 0.0398, 0.67, 0.5

Embankment
Top Elevation (ft) =  8760.83
Top Width (ft) =  25.00
Crest Width (ft) =  20.00

Calculations
Qmin (cfs) =  72.00
Qmax (cfs) =  72.00
Tailwater Elev (ft) =  (dc+D)/2

Highlighted
Qtotal (cfs) =  72.00
Qpipe (cfs) =  72.00
Qovertop (cfs) =  0.00
Veloc Dn (ft/s) =  5.81
Veloc Up (ft/s) =  8.65
HGL Dn (ft) =  8756.31
HGL Up (ft) =  8758.10
Hw Elev (ft) =  8759.43
Hw/D (ft) =  1.11
Flow Regime =  Inlet Control

156196



Culvert Report
Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Tuesday, Nov 1 2022

Iron Draw (2) 29 x 42 HERCP - Q100

Invert Elev Dn (ft) =  8754.43
Pipe Length (ft) =  29.00
Slope (%) =  8.00
Invert Elev Up (ft) =  8756.75
Rise (in) =  29.0
Shape =  Elliptical
Span (in) =  45.0
No. Barrels =  2
n-Value =  0.013
Culvert Type =  Horizontal Ellipse Concrete
Culvert Entrance =  Square edge w/headwall (H)
Coeff. K,M,c,Y,k =  0.01, 2, 0.0398, 0.67, 0.5

Embankment
Top Elevation (ft) =  8760.83
Top Width (ft) =  25.00
Crest Width (ft) =  20.00

Calculations
Qmin (cfs) =  89.00
Qmax (cfs) =  89.00
Tailwater Elev (ft) =  (dc+D)/2

Highlighted
Qtotal (cfs) =  89.00
Qpipe (cfs) =  89.00
Qovertop (cfs) =  0.00
Veloc Dn (ft/s) =  6.91
Veloc Up (ft/s) =  8.93
HGL Dn (ft) =  8756.41
HGL Up (ft) =  8758.30
Hw Elev (ft) =  8759.83
Hw/D (ft) =  1.27
Flow Regime =  Inlet Control

157197



Channel Report
Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Tuesday, Nov 1 2022

IRON DRAW - NATURAL CHANNEL ABOVE CULVERT

User-defined
Invert Elev (ft) =  8766.00
Slope (%) =  25.00
N-Value =  0.055

Calculations
Compute by: Known Q
Known Q (cfs) =  89.00

(Sta, El, n)-(Sta, El, n)...
( 0.00, 8770.00)-(2.00, 8768.00, 0.070)-(7.00, 8767.00, 0.065)-(10.00, 8766.00, 0.050)-(12.00, 8766.00, 0.050)-(15.00, 8767.00, 0.050)-(21.00, 8768.00, 0.065)
-(24.00, 8770.00, 0.070)

Highlighted
Depth (ft) =  1.35
Q (cfs) =  89.00
Area (sqft) =  8.47
Velocity (ft/s) =  10.51
Wetted Perim (ft) =  12.23
Crit Depth, Yc (ft) =  1.89
Top Width (ft) =  11.85
EGL (ft) =  3.07

-5 0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Elev (ft) Depth (ft)
Section

8765.00 -1.00

8766.00 0.00

8767.00 1.00

8768.00 2.00

8769.00 3.00

8770.00 4.00

8771.00 5.00

Sta (ft)

158198



Channel Report
Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Tuesday, Nov 1 2022

IRON DRAW - IMPROVED CHANNEL

User-defined
Invert Elev (ft) =  8766.00
Slope (%) =  25.00
N-Value =  0.062

Calculations
Compute by: Known Q
Known Q (cfs) =  89.00

(Sta, El, n)-(Sta, El, n)...
( 0.00, 8770.00)-(2.00, 8768.00, 0.075)-(9.00, 8767.00, 0.070)-(10.00, 8766.00, 0.035)-(13.00, 8766.00, 0.035)-(14.00, 8767.00, 0.070)-(21.00, 8768.00, 0.075)
-(24.00, 8770.00, 0.050)

Highlighted
Depth (ft) =  1.62
Q (cfs) =  89.00
Area (sqft) =  9.79
Velocity (ft/s) =  9.09
Wetted Perim (ft) =  14.60
Crit Depth, Yc (ft) =  2.04
Top Width (ft) =  13.68
EGL (ft) =  2.90

-5 0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Elev (ft) Depth (ft)
Section

8765.00 -1.00

8766.00 0.00

8767.00 1.00

8768.00 2.00

8769.00 3.00

8770.00 4.00

8771.00 5.00

Sta (ft)

159199



United States
Department of
Agriculture

A product of the National
Cooperative Soil Survey,
a joint effort of the United
States Department of
Agriculture and other
Federal agencies, State
agencies including the
Agricultural Experiment
Stations, and local
participants

Custom Soil Resource 
Report for
Animas-Dolores Area, 
Colorado, Parts of 
Archuleta, Dolores, 
Hinsdale, La Plata, 
Montezuma, San Juan, and 
San Miguel Counties
Dolores River Subdivision

Natural
Resources
Conservation
Service

June 17, 2022

160200



Preface
Soil surveys contain information that affects land use planning in survey areas. 
They highlight soil limitations that affect various land uses and provide information 
about the properties of the soils in the survey areas. Soil surveys are designed for 
many different users, including farmers, ranchers, foresters, agronomists, urban 
planners, community officials, engineers, developers, builders, and home buyers. 
Also, conservationists, teachers, students, and specialists in recreation, waste 
disposal, and pollution control can use the surveys to help them understand, 
protect, or enhance the environment.

Various land use regulations of Federal, State, and local governments may impose 
special restrictions on land use or land treatment. Soil surveys identify soil 
properties that are used in making various land use or land treatment decisions. 
The information is intended to help the land users identify and reduce the effects of 
soil limitations on various land uses. The landowner or user is responsible for 
identifying and complying with existing laws and regulations.

Although soil survey information can be used for general farm, local, and wider area 
planning, onsite investigation is needed to supplement this information in some 
cases. Examples include soil quality assessments (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/
portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/) and certain conservation and engineering 
applications. For more detailed information, contact your local USDA Service Center 
(https://offices.sc.egov.usda.gov/locator/app?agency=nrcs) or your NRCS State Soil 
Scientist (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?
cid=nrcs142p2_053951).

Great differences in soil properties can occur within short distances. Some soils are 
seasonally wet or subject to flooding. Some are too unstable to be used as a 
foundation for buildings or roads. Clayey or wet soils are poorly suited to use as 
septic tank absorption fields. A high water table makes a soil poorly suited to 
basements or underground installations.

The National Cooperative Soil Survey is a joint effort of the United States 
Department of Agriculture and other Federal agencies, State agencies including the 
Agricultural Experiment Stations, and local agencies. The Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS) has leadership for the Federal part of the National 
Cooperative Soil Survey.

Information about soils is updated periodically. Updated information is available 
through the NRCS Web Soil Survey, the site for official soil survey information.

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its 
programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, 
and where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, 
sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or a 
part of an individual's income is derived from any public assistance program. (Not 
all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) Persons with disabilities who require 

2

161201

http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/
https://offices.sc.egov.usda.gov/locator/app?agency=nrcs
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?cid=nrcs142p2_053951
http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?cid=nrcs142p2_053951


alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, 
audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA's TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice 
and TDD). To file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of 
Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or 
call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity 
provider and employer.

3

162202



Contents
Preface.................................................................................................................... 2
Soil Map.................................................................................................................. 5

Soil Map................................................................................................................6
Legend..................................................................................................................7
Map Unit Legend.................................................................................................. 9
Map Unit Descriptions.......................................................................................... 9

Animas-Dolores Area, Colorado, Parts of Archuleta, Dolores, Hinsdale, 
La Plata, Montezuma, San Juan, and San Miguel Counties.................... 11

53—Cryaquolls-Typic Cryaquents complex, 1 to 5 percent slopes............. 11
154—Frisco-Horsethief complex, 30 to 75 percent slopes..........................13
164—Hourglass-Bucklon-Wander complex, 30 to 60 percent slopes......... 15
499—Water................................................................................................. 17

4

163203



Soil Map
The soil map section includes the soil map for the defined area of interest, a list of 
soil map units on the map and extent of each map unit, and cartographic symbols 
displayed on the map. Also presented are various metadata about data used to 
produce the map, and a description of each soil map unit.

5

164204



6

Custom Soil Resource Report
Soil Map

41
75

41
0

41
75

47
0

41
75

53
0

41
75

59
0

41
75

65
0

41
75

71
0

41
75

77
0

41
75

83
0

41
75

89
0

41
75

95
0

41
75

47
0

41
75

53
0

41
75

59
0

41
75

65
0

41
75

71
0

41
75

77
0

41
75

83
0

41
75

89
0

41
75

95
0

761210 761270 761330 761390 761450 761510 761570

761210 761270 761330 761390 761450 761510 761570

37°  41' 37'' N
10

8°
  2

' 1
6'

' W
37°  41' 37'' N

10
8°

  1
' 5

9'
' W

37°  41' 19'' N

10
8°

  2
' 1

6'
' W

37°  41' 19'' N

10
8°

  1
' 5

9'
' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 12N WGS84
0 100 200 400 600

Feet
0 40 80 160 240

Meters
Map Scale: 1:2,700 if printed on A portrait (8.5" x 11") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

165205



MAP LEGEND MAP INFORMATION

Area of Interest (AOI)
Area of Interest (AOI)

Soils
Soil Map Unit Polygons

Soil Map Unit Lines

Soil Map Unit Points

Special Point Features
Blowout

Borrow Pit

Clay Spot

Closed Depression

Gravel Pit

Gravelly Spot

Landfill

Lava Flow

Marsh or swamp

Mine or Quarry

Miscellaneous Water

Perennial Water

Rock Outcrop

Saline Spot

Sandy Spot

Severely Eroded Spot

Sinkhole

Slide or Slip

Sodic Spot

Spoil Area

Stony Spot

Very Stony Spot

Wet Spot

Other

Special Line Features

Water Features
Streams and Canals

Transportation
Rails

Interstate Highways

US Routes

Major Roads

Local Roads

Background
Aerial Photography

The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at 
1:24,000.

Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

Enlargement of maps beyond the scale of mapping can cause 
misunderstanding of the detail of mapping and accuracy of soil 
line placement. The maps do not show the small areas of 
contrasting soils that could have been shown at a more detailed 
scale.

Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map 
measurements.

Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service
Web Soil Survey URL: 
Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857)

Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator 
projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts 
distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the 
Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more 
accurate calculations of distance or area are required.

This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as 
of the version date(s) listed below.

Soil Survey Area: Animas-Dolores Area, Colorado, Parts of 
Archuleta, Dolores, Hinsdale, La Plata, Montezuma, San Juan, 
and San Miguel Counties
Survey Area Data: Version 16, Sep 2, 2021

Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 
1:50,000 or larger.

Date(s) aerial images were photographed: Aug 23, 2021—Sep 
10, 2021

The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines were 
compiled and digitized probably differs from the background 

Custom Soil Resource Report

7

166206



MAP LEGEND MAP INFORMATION

imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor 
shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.

Custom Soil Resource Report

8

167207



Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

53 Cryaquolls-Typic Cryaquents 
complex, 1 to 5 percent 
slopes

2.9 10.7%

154 Frisco-Horsethief complex, 30 
to 75 percent slopes

8.5 31.7%

164 Hourglass-Bucklon-Wander 
complex, 30 to 60 percent 
slopes

13.8 51.3%

499 Water 1.7 6.3%

Totals for Area of Interest 26.8 100.0%

Map Unit Descriptions
The map units delineated on the detailed soil maps in a soil survey represent the 
soils or miscellaneous areas in the survey area. The map unit descriptions, along 
with the maps, can be used to determine the composition and properties of a unit.

A map unit delineation on a soil map represents an area dominated by one or more 
major kinds of soil or miscellaneous areas. A map unit is identified and named 
according to the taxonomic classification of the dominant soils. Within a taxonomic 
class there are precisely defined limits for the properties of the soils. On the 
landscape, however, the soils are natural phenomena, and they have the 
characteristic variability of all natural phenomena. Thus, the range of some 
observed properties may extend beyond the limits defined for a taxonomic class. 
Areas of soils of a single taxonomic class rarely, if ever, can be mapped without 
including areas of other taxonomic classes. Consequently, every map unit is made 
up of the soils or miscellaneous areas for which it is named and some minor 
components that belong to taxonomic classes other than those of the major soils.

Most minor soils have properties similar to those of the dominant soil or soils in the 
map unit, and thus they do not affect use and management. These are called 
noncontrasting, or similar, components. They may or may not be mentioned in a 
particular map unit description. Other minor components, however, have properties 
and behavioral characteristics divergent enough to affect use or to require different 
management. These are called contrasting, or dissimilar, components. They 
generally are in small areas and could not be mapped separately because of the 
scale used. Some small areas of strongly contrasting soils or miscellaneous areas 
are identified by a special symbol on the maps. If included in the database for a 
given area, the contrasting minor components are identified in the map unit 
descriptions along with some characteristics of each. A few areas of minor 
components may not have been observed, and consequently they are not 
mentioned in the descriptions, especially where the pattern was so complex that it 
was impractical to make enough observations to identify all the soils and 
miscellaneous areas on the landscape.

Custom Soil Resource Report

9

168208



The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way diminishes the 
usefulness or accuracy of the data. The objective of mapping is not to delineate 
pure taxonomic classes but rather to separate the landscape into landforms or 
landform segments that have similar use and management requirements. The 
delineation of such segments on the map provides sufficient information for the 
development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, however, 
onsite investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous 
areas.

An identifying symbol precedes the map unit name in the map unit descriptions. 
Each description includes general facts about the unit and gives important soil 
properties and qualities.

Soils that have profiles that are almost alike make up a soil series. Except for 
differences in texture of the surface layer, all the soils of a series have major 
horizons that are similar in composition, thickness, and arrangement.

Soils of one series can differ in texture of the surface layer, slope, stoniness, 
salinity, degree of erosion, and other characteristics that affect their use. On the 
basis of such differences, a soil series is divided into soil phases. Most of the areas 
shown on the detailed soil maps are phases of soil series. The name of a soil phase 
commonly indicates a feature that affects use or management. For example, Alpha 
silt loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is a phase of the Alpha series.

Some map units are made up of two or more major soils or miscellaneous areas. 
These map units are complexes, associations, or undifferentiated groups.

A complex consists of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas in such an intricate 
pattern or in such small areas that they cannot be shown separately on the maps. 
The pattern and proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat similar 
in all areas. Alpha-Beta complex, 0 to 6 percent slopes, is an example.

An association is made up of two or more geographically associated soils or 
miscellaneous areas that are shown as one unit on the maps. Because of present 
or anticipated uses of the map units in the survey area, it was not considered 
practical or necessary to map the soils or miscellaneous areas separately. The 
pattern and relative proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat 
similar. Alpha-Beta association, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example.

An undifferentiated group is made up of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas 
that could be mapped individually but are mapped as one unit because similar 
interpretations can be made for use and management. The pattern and proportion 
of the soils or miscellaneous areas in a mapped area are not uniform. An area can 
be made up of only one of the major soils or miscellaneous areas, or it can be made 
up of all of them. Alpha and Beta soils, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example.

Some surveys include miscellaneous areas. Such areas have little or no soil 
material and support little or no vegetation. Rock outcrop is an example.

Custom Soil Resource Report

10

169209



Animas-Dolores Area, Colorado, Parts of Archuleta, Dolores, Hinsdale, 
La Plata, Montezuma, San Juan, and San Miguel Counties

53—Cryaquolls-Typic Cryaquents complex, 1 to 5 percent slopes

Map Unit Setting
National map unit symbol: srmf
Elevation: 8,500 to 10,000 feet
Mean annual precipitation: 20 to 40 inches
Mean annual air temperature: 34 to 38 degrees F
Frost-free period: 50 to 75 days
Farmland classification: Not prime farmland

Map Unit Composition
Cryaquolls and similar soils: 50 percent
Typic cryaquents and similar soils: 35 percent
Minor components: 15 percent
Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of the mapunit.

Description of Cryaquolls

Setting
Landform: Flood plains, valley floors
Landform position (three-dimensional): Tread
Down-slope shape: Linear
Across-slope shape: Linear
Parent material: Alluvium derived from mixed sources

Typical profile
A1 - 0 to 7 inches: loam
A2 - 7 to 12 inches: loam
C - 12 to 60 inches: stratified extremely gravelly loam to extremely gravelly sandy 

loam

Properties and qualities
Slope: 1 to 5 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Drainage class: Poorly drained
Runoff class: Low
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Moderately high to high 

(0.20 to 2.00 in/hr)
Depth to water table: About 6 to 20 inches
Frequency of flooding: NoneOccasional
Frequency of ponding: None
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Moderate (about 6.7 inches)

Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified
Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 6w
Hydrologic Soil Group: B/D
Ecological site: R048AY241CO - Mountain Meadow
Hydric soil rating: Yes

Custom Soil Resource Report

11

170210



Description of Typic Cryaquents

Setting
Landform: Flood plains, valley floors
Landform position (three-dimensional): Tread
Down-slope shape: Linear
Across-slope shape: Linear
Parent material: Alluvium derived from mixed sources

Typical profile
Oi - 0 to 3 inches: slightly decomposed plant material
A - 3 to 11 inches: loam
C - 11 to 63 inches: stratified very gravelly loamy sand to very gravelly sandy 

loam

Properties and qualities
Slope: 1 to 5 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Drainage class: Poorly drained
Runoff class: Low
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Moderately high to high 

(0.60 to 2.00 in/hr)
Depth to water table: About 6 to 20 inches
Frequency of flooding: NoneOccasional
Frequency of ponding: None
Maximum salinity: Nonsaline to very slightly saline (0.0 to 2.0 mmhos/cm)
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Low (about 4.6 inches)

Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified
Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 6w
Hydrologic Soil Group: B/D
Ecological site: R048AY241CO - Mountain Meadow
Hydric soil rating: Yes

Minor Components

Quazar
Percent of map unit: 10 percent
Hydric soil rating: No

Howardsville
Percent of map unit: 4 percent
Landform: Flood plains
Hydric soil rating: No

Riverwash
Percent of map unit: 1 percent
Landform: Flood plains
Hydric soil rating: Yes

Custom Soil Resource Report

12

171211



154—Frisco-Horsethief complex, 30 to 75 percent slopes

Map Unit Setting
National map unit symbol: k0nw
Elevation: 8,400 to 11,500 feet
Mean annual precipitation: 25 to 45 inches
Mean annual air temperature: 34 to 38 degrees F
Frost-free period: 50 to 70 days
Farmland classification: Not prime farmland

Map Unit Composition
Frisco and similar soils: 60 percent
Horsethief and similar soils: 25 percent
Minor components: 15 percent
Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of the mapunit.

Description of Frisco

Setting
Landform: Mountain slopes
Landform position (three-dimensional): Mountainflank
Down-slope shape: Convex
Across-slope shape: Convex
Parent material: Outwash, colluvium, and slope alluvium derived from granitic, 

volcanic, and sedimentary rocks

Typical profile
Oi - 0 to 2 inches: slightly decomposed plant material
A - 2 to 5 inches: loam
E1 - 5 to 11 inches: loam
E2 - 11 to 19 inches: cobbly loam
Bt1 - 19 to 48 inches: extremely stony sandy clay loam
Bt2 - 48 to 62 inches: extremely stony loam

Properties and qualities
Slope: 30 to 70 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Drainage class: Well drained
Runoff class: High
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Moderately high to high 

(0.60 to 2.00 in/hr)
Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Maximum salinity: Nonsaline to very slightly saline (0.0 to 2.0 mmhos/cm)
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Moderate (about 6.2 inches)

Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified

Custom Soil Resource Report

13

172212



Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 7e
Hydrologic Soil Group: B
Ecological site: F048AY918CO - Spruce-Fir Woodland
Other vegetative classification: Subalpine fir - Engelmann spruce/myrtle 

whortleberry (ABLA-PIEN/VAMY2) (C0320)
Hydric soil rating: No

Description of Horsethief

Setting
Landform: Mountain slopes
Landform position (three-dimensional): Mountainflank
Down-slope shape: Linear
Across-slope shape: Linear
Parent material: Colluvium and slope alluvium derived from sandstone, volcanic 

and igneous rocks

Typical profile
Oi - 0 to 2 inches: slightly decomposed plant material
A - 2 to 5 inches: loam
E1 - 5 to 16 inches: fine sandy loam
E2 - 16 to 24 inches: fine sandy loam
E/B - 24 to 32 inches: sandy clay loam
Bt - 32 to 49 inches: very stony clay loam
BC - 49 to 62 inches: very stony clay loam

Properties and qualities
Slope: 30 to 75 percent
Surface area covered with cobbles, stones or boulders: 2.0 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Drainage class: Well drained
Runoff class: High
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Moderately high (0.20 

to 0.60 in/hr)
Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Maximum salinity: Nonsaline to very slightly saline (0.0 to 2.0 mmhos/cm)
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Moderate (about 7.4 inches)

Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified
Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 7e
Hydrologic Soil Group: C
Ecological site: F048AY918CO - Spruce-Fir Woodland
Other vegetative classification: Subalpine fir - Engelmann spruce/myrtle 

whortleberry (ABLA-PIEN/VAMY2) (C0320)
Hydric soil rating: No

Minor Components

Snowdon
Percent of map unit: 10 percent

Quazar
Percent of map unit: 5 percent
Hydric soil rating: Unranked

Custom Soil Resource Report

14

173213



164—Hourglass-Bucklon-Wander complex, 30 to 60 percent slopes

Map Unit Setting
National map unit symbol: k0p7
Elevation: 8,000 to 10,600 feet
Mean annual precipitation: 30 to 45 inches
Mean annual air temperature: 32 to 36 degrees F
Frost-free period: 40 to 60 days
Farmland classification: Not prime farmland

Map Unit Composition
Hourglass and similar soils: 50 percent
Bucklon and similar soils: 25 percent
Wander and similar soils: 15 percent
Minor components: 10 percent
Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of the mapunit.

Description of Hourglass

Setting
Landform: Mountain slopes
Landform position (three-dimensional): Mountainflank
Down-slope shape: Concave
Across-slope shape: Concave
Parent material: Slope alluvium derived from limestone, sandstone, and shale

Typical profile
A - 0 to 11 inches: loam
Bt1 - 11 to 18 inches: clay loam
Bt2 - 18 to 31 inches: gravelly clay loam
Bt3 - 31 to 46 inches: very stony clay loam
C - 46 to 60 inches: very stony clay loam

Properties and qualities
Slope: 30 to 60 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Drainage class: Well drained
Runoff class: Very high
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Moderately high (0.20 

to 0.60 in/hr)
Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: High (about 9.3 inches)

Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified
Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 7e
Hydrologic Soil Group: C

Custom Soil Resource Report

15

174214



Ecological site: F048AY449CO - Aspen Woodland
Other vegetative classification: Quaking aspen/mountain snowberry (POTR5/

SYOR2) (D0511)
Hydric soil rating: No

Description of Bucklon

Setting
Landform: Mountain slopes
Landform position (three-dimensional): Mountainflank
Down-slope shape: Linear
Across-slope shape: Linear
Parent material: Residuum weathered from sandstone and shale

Typical profile
A1 - 0 to 1 inches: loam
A2 - 1 to 12 inches: loam
Cr - 12 to 22 inches: weathered bedrock

Properties and qualities
Slope: 30 to 60 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: 10 to 20 inches to paralithic bedrock
Drainage class: Well drained
Runoff class: Very high
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Very low to moderately 

low (0.00 to 0.06 in/hr)
Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Very low (about 2.2 inches)

Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified
Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 7e
Hydrologic Soil Group: D
Ecological site: F048AY449CO - Aspen Woodland
Other vegetative classification: Quaking aspen/mountain snowberry (POTR5/

SYOR2) (D0511)
Hydric soil rating: No

Description of Wander

Setting
Landform: Mountain slopes
Landform position (three-dimensional): Mountainflank
Down-slope shape: Linear
Across-slope shape: Linear
Parent material: Colluvium and slope alluvium derived from sandstone and shale

Typical profile
A - 0 to 14 inches: very cobbly loam
Bt1 - 14 to 27 inches: very cobbly clay loam
Bt2 - 27 to 40 inches: very cobbly clay loam
C - 40 to 60 inches: very cobbly clay loam

Properties and qualities
Slope: 30 to 60 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches

Custom Soil Resource Report

16

175215



Drainage class: Well drained
Runoff class: Very high
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Moderately high (0.20 

to 0.60 in/hr)
Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Low (about 5.2 inches)

Interpretive groups
Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified
Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 7e
Hydrologic Soil Group: C
Ecological site: F048AY449CO - Aspen Woodland
Other vegetative classification: Quaking aspen/mountain snowberry (POTR5/

SYOR2) (D0511)
Hydric soil rating: No

Minor Components

Clayburn
Percent of map unit: 5 percent
Hydric soil rating: No

Frisco
Percent of map unit: 4 percent

Tamarron
Percent of map unit: 1 percent

499—Water

Map Unit Composition
Water: 100 percent
Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of the mapunit.

Custom Soil Resource Report

17

176216



177217

arapi
Callout
PROJECT LOCATION



712 Eagle- Pass
Durango, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

2021-002

C000

ABR

11/1/22

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 N

O
T

E
S

D
O

LO
R

E
S

 R
IV

E
R

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

R
IC

O
, C

O

1 10

DOLORES RIVER SUBDIVISION
INSTRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT

PLANS
PRELIMINARY PLAT SUBMITTAL

11/1/22

 

11/1/22

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTOIN

178218



S
A

M
 P

A
T

C
H

S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

BLOCK 36 TOWN OF RICO

ED
ER

 STREET

B
L
O

C
K

 3
4
 T

O
W

N
O

F
 R

IC
O

Y
A

N
K

Y
 B

O
Y

  M
S

. 6
9
6
9

H
IL

L
 S

ID
E
 2

  M
S
. 7

9
9
4

S
A
M

 P
A
T
C

H
M

S
. 8

0
3

1

H
IL

L
 S

ID
E
  M

S
. 7

9
9
4

H
O
M

E

M
S
. 8

0
3
1

T
R

A
C

T
 H

TRACT A TRACT B

T
R

A
C

T
 D

TRACT C

L
O

T
 1

L
O

T
 2

L
O

T
 3

L
O

T
 4

L
O

T
 5

L
O

T
 6

T
R

A
C

T
 F

712 EAGLE PASS
DURANGO, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

 

FO
R 

RE
VI

EW
 O

NL
Y

NO
T 

FO
R

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

D
O

LO
R

E
S

 R
IV

E
R

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T

S
IT

E
 A

N
D

 O
V

E
R

A
LL

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 P

LA
N

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

R
IC

O
, C

O

C100

2021-002

11/1/22

ABR
ABR

2 10

11/1/22

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTOIN

179219



S
H

A
M

R
O

C
K

BLOCK 36 TOWN OF RICO

ED
ER

 STREET

ELEVATIO
N

 PO
IN

T

Y
A
N

K
Y
 B

O
Y
  M

S
. 6

9
6

9

H
IL

L
 S

ID
E
 2

  M
S
. 7

9
9
4

S
A
M

 P
A
T
C

H
M

S
. 8

0
3
1

H
IL

L
 S

ID
E
  M

S
. 7

9
9
4

H
O
M

E

M
S
. 8

0
3
1

 

FO
R 

RE
VI

EW
 O

NL
Y

NO
T 

FO
R

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

D
O

LO
R

E
S

 R
IV

E
R

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T

S
LO

P
E

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

S
T

R
A

IN
T

S
 M

A
P

R
IC

O
, C

O

C101

2021-002

10/31/22

ABR
ABR

712 EAGLE PASS
DURANGO, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of3 10

11/1/22

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTOIN

180220



BLOCK 36 TOWN OF RICO

ED
ER

 STREET

S
A

M
 P

A
T

C
H

S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

ED
ER

 STREET

TRACT A
TRACT B

T
R

A
C

T
 DTRACT C

L
O

T
 1

L
O

T
 2

L
O

T
 3

T
R

A
C

T
 F

712 EAGLE PASS
DURANGO, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

 

FO
R 

RE
VI

EW
 O

NL
Y

NO
T 

FO
R

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

D
O

LO
R

E
S

 R
IV

E
R

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

A
C

C
E

S
S

 A
N

D
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

P
LA

N
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
FI

LE
T

O
W

N
 O

F 
R

IC
O

, C
O

C200

2021-002

11/1/22

ABR
ABR

4 10

11/1/22

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTOIN

181221



BLOCK 36 TOWN OF RICO

ED
ER

 STREET

712 EAGLE PASS
DURANGO, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

 

FO
R 

RE
VI

EW
 O

NL
Y

NO
T 

FO
R

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

D
O

LO
R

E
S

 R
IV

E
R

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

A
C

C
E

S
S

 A
N

D
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

P
LA

N
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
FI

LE
T

O
W

N
 O

F 
R

IC
O

, C
O

C201

2021-002

11/1/22

ABR
ABR

5 10

11/1/22

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTOIN

182222



S
A

M
 P

A
T

C
H

S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N S

H
A

M
R

O
C

K

BLOCK 36 TOWN OF RICO

ED
ER

 STREET

B
L
O

C
K

 3
4
 T

O
W

N
O

F
 R

IC
O

Y
A

N
K

Y
 B

O
Y

  M
S

. 6
9
6
9

H
IL

L
 S

ID
E
 2

  M
S
. 7

9
9
4

S
A
M

 P
A
T
C

H

H
IL

L
 S

ID
E
  M

S
. 7

9
9
4

H
O
M

E

M
S
. 8

0
3
1

T
R

A
C

T
 H

TRACT A TRACT B

T
R

A
C

T
 D

TRACT C

L
O

T
 1

L
O

T
 2

L
O

T
 3

L
O

T
 4

L
O

T
 5

L
O

T
 6

T
R

A
C

T
 F

S
A

M
 P

A
T

C
H

S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

BLOCK 36 TOWN OF RICO

ED
ER

 STREET

ELEVATIO
N

 PO
IN

T

H
O
M

E

M
S
. 8

0
3
1

712 EAGLE PASS
DURANGO, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

 

FO
R 

RE
VI

EW
 O

NL
Y

NO
T 

FO
R

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

D
O

LO
R

E
S

 R
IV

E
R

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 P
LA

N
T

O
W

N
 O

F 
R

IC
O

, C
O

C300

2021-002

11/1/22

ABR
ABR

6 10

11/1/22

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTOIN

183223



712 Eagle- Pass
Durango, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

2021-002

C400

ABR

11/1/22

C
IV

IL
 D

E
T

A
IL

S
D

O
LO

R
E

S
 R

IV
E

R
 S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

R
IC

O
, C

O

7 10

FOR REVIEW ONLY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

11/1/22

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTOIN

184224



712 Eagle- Pass
Durango, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

2021-002

C401

ABR

11/1/22

C
IV

IL
 D

E
T

A
IL

S
D

O
LO

R
E

S
 R

IV
E

R
 S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

B
A

Y
FI

E
LD

, C
O

8 10

FOR REVIEW ONLY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

11/1/22

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTOIN

185225



712 Eagle- Pass
Durango, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

2021-012

C402

ABR

11/1/22

C
IV

IL
 D

E
T

A
IL

S
D

O
LO

R
E

S
 R

IV
E

R
 S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

R
IC

O
, C

O

9 10

FOR REVIEW ONLY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

11/1/22

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTOIN

186226



712 Eagle- Pass
Durango, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

PLAN NO.

# 
   

D
AT

E
   

  D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

Project:

Date:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Sheet of

2021-012

C403

ABR

11/1/22

C
IV

IL
 D

E
T

A
IL

S
D

O
LO

R
E

S
 R

IV
E

R
 S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

R
IC

O
, C

O

10 10

FOR REVIEW ONLY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

11/1/22

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTOIN

187227



0 100 200

Feet

Document Path: \\SERVER2\Shared\Projects\210027 Rico Subdivision\GIS\Rico Subdivision ArcPro\Rico Subdivision ArcPro.aprx"Figure 4 Delineation Map- Overall Site"; Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Colorado South FIPS 0503 Feet

So
ur

ce
s: 

A
er

ia
l I

m
ag

er
y 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

M
ic

ro
so

ft 
(a

cq
ui

sit
io

n 
da

te
: S

ep
te

m
be

r 8
, 2

01
1)

, W
or

ld
 I

m
ag

er
y:

 M
ax

ar
, M

ic
ro

so
ft

679 East 2nd Ave. Unit E2
Durango, Colorado 81301

www.sme-env.com
(970) 259-9595

Proj. No.: Drawn By: Rvwd. By:

KZ

Date: Rvsd. Date: Scale: FIGUREAQUATIC RESOURCES
ASSESSMENT

RICO SUBDIVISION
DOLORES COUNTY, COLORADO

1. Survey area boundary created by SME, based on plat sheets and plan data provided by Mountain Civil, a site walk
through with the project manager, and property boundary data collected by SME in the field.
2. SME Environmental, Inc. (SME) staff originally visited the site on May 5, 2021 to assess and delineate the
boundaries of wetlands and other Waters of the U.S. (WOUS) in the project area. Due to May 2021 site conditions
(prior to the main portion of growing season) and climatic conditions (Dolores County was in extreme drought- U.S.
Drought Monitor), SME was not able to accurately assess hydrology within the project area. Therefore, it was
determined that an additional site visit should be conducted to recheck/reassess WOUS boundaries. SME revisited
the site on June 27, 2022 during the growing season after the area had received some precipitation and site
conditions were closer to "normal". This map reflects the boundaries as assessed during the June 2022 site visit.
Both site visits were conducted using the methodology defined in the Routine Determination procedure set forth in
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual (USACE 1987), the Regional Supplement to the
Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Western Mountains Region (USACE 2010), and A Guide to

Ordinary High Water Mark (OHWM) Delineation for Non-Perennial Streams in the Western Mountains, Valleys,
and Coast Region of the United States (USACE 2014.
3. Wetland boundaries were defined based on presence of hydrophytic vegetation, hydric soils, and hydrologic
indicators that under normal conditions would indicate wetland conditions. Where wetland conditions did not
occur adjacent to surface water, the jurisdictional boundary was identified based on evidence of the OHWM.
4. The boundaries of WOUS were survey-located using a Trimble R1 GNSS Receiver (real-time sub-meter accuracy).
5. Areas which likely satisfy the USACE criteria as WOUS are labeled. Note that WOUS continue beyond the
survey area boundary.
6. All WOUS boundaries, depicted hereon, are subject to modification until jurisdictional verification has been
completed the USACE.
7. Please be aware that impacts to WOUS may require authorization from Local, State and/or Federal regulatory
agencies.G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 N
O

T
E

S

1
1:1,600

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
KK
K

Culvert

Property Boundary
Stakes/Posts

2022 Survey Area

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

KK
KK
KK
KK
K

Constructed Ponds

Aquatic Resources
PEM/PSS mix

PSS

R3UBH

R4SB

AQUATIC RESOURCES DELINEATION MAP
210027 SB

7/3/2022 NA

188228



189229



Dear Rico Planning Commission and Dolores River Trail Applicants,


Since my first visit to Rico, CO it’s pretty much been love at first sight. I liked the sparse 
downtown, the modest development low down in the valley, the raw recreation opportunities — 
a mix of old mining roads and network of official and unofficial trails, and the friendly and 
outdoor nature of long-time locals. It’s my kind of place — semi forgotten compared to too 
many places in this state that wanted to be the next big thing and then got more than they 
bargained for 1. 


The mindset that Rico is great the way it is shapes my comments on the subdivision Rebecca 
Adams and Gordon Mortensen (the applicants) have proposed. I have no expectations for Rico 
to remain unchanged, but I don’t wish to see development be the cause of material change to 
the character of Rico. The small town mountain “hamlet” character, referenced in the 2004 Rico 
Master Plan, is at the heart of what I hope to be preserved as development takes place. 


Rico was born from the mining rush and even though active mining is a distant legacy, the rush 
for riches is still repeated in the race to acquire scarce physical assets, aka homes and 
property. The human emotions involved in anticipation of striking it rich are no different for 
finding silver or flipping property. Having felt it myself I can fault no one else for feeling it. This 
characterization is of the time period we find ourselves in and not specific to the applicants, 
but it’s the trend towards commodifying and financializing a “small mountain hamlet” that has 
me worried. 


Rico has dodged undergoing intense development several times and the benefit to that is 
getting the experience of watching the growing pains mountain towns most analogous to Rico 
have experienced. It’s a situation that laissez-faire free market capitalism has gotten us into, 
and only protective/protectionist type behavior can solve 2. I’m not introducing a new concept 
but one that has already caught on with the ordinance limiting the total number of short-term 
rentals in Rico.


With only the design criteria for PUD lots and knowledge of the physical setting in mind I’m left 
to speculate on what will be built on each lot. There are no certainties, only probable 
outcomes, but typically the nicest land gets the biggest houses and it’s no secret, the land 
proposed for development is quite nice. 


Looking around Rico there are very few houses that exceed the 3250 sq ft size that can be built 
on city lots and perhaps only one topping 4000. Since 1998 Ordinance 334 has prevented 
development on PUD areas, essentially preventing any new housing over 3250 sq ft from being 
built and sheltering Rico from the trend of bigger housing in mountain towns. With the repeal of 
this ordinance last year, this development marks the first chance see what a 4500 sq ft house 
looks like in town and but I think we can turn to other analogous towns to form our opinion.  


The concept of increasing housing supply to meet demand is basic economics but I’d argue 
that all housing cannot be created equal. Creating a new type of housing supply can 
simultaneously create a new type of housing demand, solving nothing of the current shortage 
or tight market 3. In a global real estate market the larger the size and higher the price the 
greater the chance the buyer isn’t a resident but rather a collector of scarce real assets 4,5. 


190230



To consolidate and summarize my views related to this proposed development, I would like to 
see the following actions taken. 


1. I hope the applicants explore the possibility of deed restrictions, and any potential incentive 
programs for providing local housing. The benefits it will offer people living and working in 
Rico will be far greater than taking a market based approach to selling the lots/homes. 


2. I urge the planning commission to adopt a housing size limitation of 3250 sq ft if this 
development is passed. This mirrors the existing housing and helps to maintain the historic 
feel of the town and natural surroundings versus imposing upon them. 


3. I warn that embracing free market capitalism and expecting the nature and character of 
Rico to remain unchanged has been disproven many times over in similar mountain towns. 
It’s time to get protective of Rico’s uniqueness and a key to that is ensuring that the market 
price for for a significant portion of housing is set by those that live and work in town.


I believe the best fate for Rico is to continue to attract and keep people that love what they see 
at first sight, don’t require it to change for them to be happy, and realize the high quality life 
they can live here. They’re not looking to “cash in” or “cash out” but truly love and care about 
the place. In an indirect way, I believe the actions I’ve proposed support this vision. 


Thanks for your consideration of these comments,


Matt Schiff

1/8 time resident of North River

but dreamer of more


1. https://www.denverpost.com/2022/08/07/colorado-mountain-town-housing-safe-parking-salida/


2. https://www.vaildaily.com/news/no-vacancy-deed-restrictions-are-the-weapon-of-choice-for-
governments-in-the-fight-against-vacant-homes/ 


3. https://aperturecb.com/about


4. https://mix1043fm.com/tommy-hilfiger-aspen-colorado/


5. https://coloradosun.com/2021/05/11/colorado-resort-towns-real-estate-records-pricing-out-locals/

191231

https://www.denverpost.com/2022/08/07/colorado-mountain-town-housing-safe-parking-salida/
https://www.vaildaily.com/news/no-vacancy-deed-restrictions-are-the-weapon-of-choice-for-governments-in-the-fight-against-vacant-homes/
https://www.vaildaily.com/news/no-vacancy-deed-restrictions-are-the-weapon-of-choice-for-governments-in-the-fight-against-vacant-homes/
https://www.vaildaily.com/news/no-vacancy-deed-restrictions-are-the-weapon-of-choice-for-governments-in-the-fight-against-vacant-homes/
https://aperturecb.com/about
https://mix1043fm.com/tommy-hilfiger-aspen-colorado/


TOWN OF RICO 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-12 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO AMENDING 
THE RICO LAND USE CODE FEE SCHEDULE AND ADOPTING THE 
UBC 97 TABLE NO. 1-A – BUILDING PERMIT FEES   

WHEREAS, the Town of Rico, Colorado (“Town”) is a Colorado home rule municipality 
organized pursuant to Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and with the authority of the Rico 
Home Rule Charter; and 

WHEREAS, The Board of Trustees of the Town (“Board”) recognizes the need to amend 
the Rico Land Use Code (“RLUC”) so that the Town recover the related costs and expenses of 
administer a building department and contracting plan review; and 

WHEREAS, Section 3.1 of the Town of Rico Home Rule Charter provides that 
enactments of the Board imposing fees shall be made by ordinance; and  

 
WHEREAS, The Rico Planning Commission may propose changes and amendments to 

the RLUC which are in the public interest pursuant to RLUC Sec. 412; and  

WHEREAS, The RLUC may be amended by adoption of an ordinance by the Board of 
Trustees of the Town of Rico (“Board”) after a public hearing and after the Rico Planning 
Commission conducts a public hearing on the amendments and makes a recommendation to the 
Board of Trustees; and 

 WHEREAS, the Rico Planning Commission has considered the amendments to the 
RLUC contained in this Ordinance, conducted a duly noticed public hearing regarding the 
amendments at its December 14 meeting, and recommended the Board adopt the amendments; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the amendments contained in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and incorporated by reference, meet the standards for review contained in Sec. 418 
of the RLUC because the amendments will serve a community need and thereby promote the 
public health, safety, or welfare of the Rico community and the public services and infrastructure 
are adequate to meet the needs of the proposed amendments; and the proposed Amendment is 
consistent with the purposes of the RLUC and the goals and objectives of the Rico Regional Master 
Plan; and  

WHEREAS, the Board finds and declares that the amendments to the RLUC set forth 
herein are proper in light of the needs and desires of the Town and in the promotion of the public 
health, safety, and welfare of the Town’s residents.   

232



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF RICO THAT: 

Section 1. The recitals hereinabove are hereby adopted as findings and incorporated 
herein. 

Section 2. The Rico Land Use Code shall be and is hereby amended as set forth in 
Exhibit A to this Ordinance, incorporated by reference hereto.  

Section 3. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately on final adoption.  

THIS ORDINANCE WAS, FOLLOWING PUBLIC NOTICE, INTRODUCED, READ, 
AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY 
THIS 21ST DAY OF DECEMBER 2022. 

TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO 
 

___________________________________ 
Nicole Pieterse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Anna Wolf, Town Clerk 
 

THIS ORDINANCE WAS, FOLLOWING PUBLIC NOTICE, INTRODUCED, READ 
ON SECOND READING, PASSED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY TO BE 
EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY THIS 18 DAY OF JANUARY 2023. 

 
 

TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
ATTEST: Nicole Pieterse, Mayor 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Anna Wolf, Town Clerk 
 

Effective Date:     January 18, 2023 

233



 

EXHIBIT A 

AMENDMENTS TO THE RICO LAND USE CODE 

Additions shown in double underline; deletions shown in strikethrough.  

Rico Land Use Code         APPENDIX A – FEE SCHEDULE 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 
Building Permits (new construction) = $25.00 minimum; 15 cents per square foot of construction 
for structures up to and including 2,500 sq.ft.; 20 cents per square foot of construction for 
structures over 2,500 square feet. 
 
Electronic Copy of Rico Land Use Code      $  25.00 
Hard Copy of Rico Land Use Code       $  100.00 
Formal Interpretation of Rico Land Use Code - §408    $  200.00 
Amendments to Code and Plans * - §410      $  500.00 
Special Use Permit * - §420        $  300.00 
All Variance Applications - §430       $  300.00 
Development Permit for Areas of State and Local Interest * - § 804  $  400.00 
Road Building * - §470        $  350.00 
Road Vacation * - §480        $  350.00 
Utility Improvements - §490        $  100.00 
Excavation Permits - §494        $  100.00 
Minor Subdivision * - Article V       $  750.00 
Subdivision * - Article V        $  1,800.00 
Planned Unit Development * - Article III      $  1,000.00 
Annexation * - Article VI        $  2,000.00 
Encroachment Permit * - Ord. No. 2019-02     $ 200.00 
HC District Fence Permit - §243.2      $ 100.00 
Special Sign Design Permit - §206.12     $ 100.00 
Septic Permit * - §405.6 & Ord. No. 2017-01    $ 400.00 
Extension of Subdivision Approval - §570     $ 200.00  
 
Hourly rate charged for any other approved contractual Town Employee review shall be 
determined by the Board of Trustees. 
 

234



* These applications shall be treated as pass-through accounts whereby the Applicant shall be 
liable for all costs of review. Additional review fees will be paid by the Applicant where the 
application requires review by an approved contractual Town employee.  
 
Building Permit Fees (Schedule Pursuant to 1997 UBC Table No. 1-A)  
 

TOTAL 
VALUATION 

FEE 

$1.00 to $500.00 
 
$501.00 to $2,000.00 

 
 
$2,001.00 to $25,000.00 

 
 
$25,001.00 to $50,000.00 

 
 
$50,001.00 to $100,000.00 

 
 
$100,001.00 to 
$500,000.00 

 
$500,001.00 to 
$1,000,000.00 

 
$1,000,001.00 and up 

$23.00 
 
$23.50 for the first $500.00 plus $3.05 for each additional 
$100.00, or fraction thereof, to and including $2,000.00 

 
$69.25 for the first $2,000.00 plus $14.00 for each additional 
$1,000.00, or fraction thereof, to and including $25,000.00 

 
$391.25 for the first $25,000.00 plus $10.10 for each additional 
$1,000.00, or fraction thereof, to and including $50,000.00 

 
$643.75 for the first $50,000.00 plus $7.00 for each additional 
$1,000.00, or fraction thereof, to and including $100,000.00 

 
$993.75 for the first $100,000.00 plus $5.60 for each additional 
$1,000.00, or fraction thereof, to and including $500,000.00 

 
$3,233.75 for the first $500,000.00 plus $4.75 for each 
additional $1,000.00, or fraction thereof, to and including 
$1,000,000.00 

 
$5,608.75 for the first $1,000,000.00 plus $3.15 for each 
additional $1,000.00, or fraction thereof 

Other Inspections and Fees: 
1. Plan review fee shall be 65% of the permit fee. 
2. Inspections outside of normal business hours ..................................... $47.00 per hour ^ 
3. Reinspection fees assessed under provisions of 

Section 305.8 ........................................................................................ $47.00 per hour ^ 
4. Inspections for which no fee is specifically indicated .......................... $47.00 per hour ^ 

(minimum charge – one-half hour) 
5. Additional plan review required by changes, additions 

or revisions to plans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $47.00 per hour ^ 
6. For use of outside consultants for plan checking and 

inspections, or both ................................................................................... Actual costs ̂ ^ 
 

235



 
^Or the total hourly cost to the jurisdiction, whichever is the greatest. This cost shall include 
supervision, overhead, equipment, hourly wages and fringe benefits of the employees involved. 

^^ Actual costs include administrative and overhead costs. 
 
Valuation of work  
The determination of value or valuation shall be established by the Building Official utilizing the 
most recent valuation schedule printed in the Building Safety Journal, published by the 
International Code Council, as a guide using a modifier of one (1). Or, the applicant for a permit 
shall provide an estimated permit value at time of application. Permit valuations shall include 
total value of work, including materials and labor, for which the permit is being issued, such as 
electrical, gas, mechanical, plumbing equipment and permanent systems. If, in the opinion of the 
Building Official, the valuation is underestimated on the application, the permit shall be denied, 
unless the applicant can show detailed estimates to meet the approval of the Building Official. 
Final building permit valuation shall be set by the Building Official. 
 
  

236



Jurisdiction I-Codes IECC Solar-Ready
Electric-Ready/Electric 

Requirement EV-Ready
Adams County 2018 2018 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Aguilar 2006 2003
Akron 2009 None
Alamosa 2015 2009 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Alamosa County 2012 2009
Alma 2012 2012
Antonito None None
Arapahoe County 2021 2021
Archuleta County 2015 2015
Arriba 2006 2003
Arvada 2018 2018 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Aspen 2015 2015 X *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Ault 2018 2012
Aurora 2021 2021
Avon 2015 2015 X X *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Baca County None None
Bailey 2012 2012
Basalt 2015 2015 X Electric-ready X *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Bayfield 2015 2009
Bennett 2018 2018
Bent County 1998 None
Berthoud 2018 2018 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Bethune None None
Blackhawk 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Blanca None None
Blue River 2018 2012
Boulder County 2015 2015 X X *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Boulder, City of 2018 2018 X X *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Bow Mar 2015 2006
Branson 2009 None
Breckenridge 2018 2018 X
Brighton 2018 2018 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Brookside 2003 2006
Broomfield, City and County of 2018 2018 X *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Brush 2003 2003
Buena Vista 2015 2006
Burlington None None
Calhan 2006 2006
Campo None None
Canon City 2018 2018
Carbondale 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Castle Pines 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Castle Rock 2018 2018 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Cedaredge 2018 2018
Centennial 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Center 2018 2018
Central City 2015 2015
Chaffee County 2015 2006 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Cheraw 2006 2006
Cherry Hills Village 2018 2018
Cheyenne County None None
Cheyenne Wells None None
Clear Creek County 2015 2009
Coal Creek 2006 None
Cokedale 2009 2009
Collbran 2018 2009
Colorado Dept of Local Affairs, Division of Housing2018 2015
Colorado Springs 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Columbine 2015 2015
Commerce City 2018 2018 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Como 2012 2012
Conejos County None None
Cortez 2015 2009
Costilla County None None
Craig 2018 2018
Crawford 2006 2006
Creede 2003 None
Crested Butte 2021 2021 X All Electric X
Crestone None None
Cripple Creek 2018 2018
Crook 2006 2006
Crowley County 2018 None
Crowley, Town of None None
Custer County None None
Dacono 2018 2012
De Beque 2018 2009
Deer Trail 2012 2009
Del Norte 2006 1977
Delta 2018 2012
Delta County None None
Denver, City & County of 2018 2018 X X *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Dillon 2018 2018 X
Dinosaur 2006 2009
Dolores 1997 None

237



Jurisdiction I-Codes IECC Solar-Ready
Electric-Ready/Electric 

Requirement EV-Ready
Dolores County None None
Douglas County 2018 2018
Dove Creek None None
Durango 2018 2018 X
Eads 2012 2012
Eagle County 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Eagle, Town of 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Eaton 2018 2012
Eckley None None
Edgewater 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Edwards 2015 2015
El Jebel 2015 2015
El Paso County (PPRBD) 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Elbert County 2018 2018
Elizabeth 2018 2018
Empire 2009 2009
Englewood 2018 2018 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Erie 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Estes Park 2015 2015
Evans 2018 2012
Fairplay 2012 2012
Federal Heights 2015 2015
Firestone 2012 2009
Flagler None None
Flemming 2006 2006
Florence 2006 2006
Fort Collins 2021 2021 X Electric-ready X
Fort Lupton 2012 2006 X
Fort Morgan 2018 2018
Fountain (PPRBD) 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Fowler 2006 None
Foxfield 2015 2015
Franktown 2018 2018
Fraser 2015 2015
Frederick 2018 2018
Fremont County 2018 2018
Frisco 2018 2018 X
Fruita 2018 2009
Garden City 2012 2009
Garfield County 2015 2009 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Genoa 2006 2003
Georgetown 2015 2015
Gilcrest 2018 2012
Gilpin County 2015 2015
Glendale 2018 2018
Glenwood Springs 2015 2009 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Golden 2021 2021 X
Granada None None
Granby 2015 2015
Grand County 2015 2015
Grand Junction 2018 2009
Grand Lake 2015 2015
Greeley 2018 2018
Green Mountain Falls (PPRBD) 2015 2015
Greenwood Village 2018 2018
Grover 2012 2006
Guffey 2012 2012
Gunnison 2015 2015
Gunnison County 2015 2015
Gypsum 2015 None
Hartman None None
Hartsel 2012 2012
Haswell 2012 2012
Haxtun None None
Hayden 2018 2018
Hillrose 2009 None
Hinsdale County 2015 2018
Holly 2006 2006
Holyoke None None
Hooper 2012 2009
Hot Sulphur Springs 2009 2009
Hotchkiss 2018 2018
Hudson 2018 2012
Huerfano County 2015 2015
Hugo 2006 None
Idaho Springs 2018 2018
Ignacio 2003 None
Iliff 2006 2006
Jackson County 1994 1977
Jamestown 2015 2015
Jefferson County 2018 2018
Jefferson, Town of 2012 2012
Johnstown 2018 2012
Julesburg None None

238



Jurisdiction I-Codes IECC Solar-Ready
Electric-Ready/Electric 

Requirement EV-Ready
Keenesburg 2018 2018
Kersey 2018 2012
Kim 2009 None
Kiowa 2012 2012
Kiowa County 2018 2018
Kit Carson None None
Kit Carson County None None
Kremmling 2009 2006
La Jara 2012 None
La Junta 2006 None
La Plata County 2015 2009
La Veta 2006 2006
Lafayette 2015 2015 X X *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Lake City 2015 2018
Lake County 2012 2006
Lakeside None None
Lakewood 2015 2015 X *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Lamar 2006 2006
Larimer County 2021 2021
Larkspur 2012 2009
Las Animas County 2018 2018 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Las Animas, City of 2006 2006
LaSalle 1991 UBC None
Leadville 2012 2006
Limon 2006 2006
Lincoln County 2006 None
Littleton 2012 2012
Lochbuie 2018 2018
Log Lane Village 2009 None
Logan County 2006 2006
Lone Tree 2018 2018
Longmont 2021 2021 X
Louisville 2021 2021 X Electric-ready X
Loveland 2018 2018 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Lyons 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Manassa None None
Mancos 2006 2006
Manitou Springs (PPRBD) 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Manzanola None None
Marble None None
Mead 2018 2012
Meeker 2003 2006 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Merino 2006 2006
Mesa County 2018 2009
Milliken 2012 2009 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Mineral County None None
Minturn 2015 2015
Moffat None None
Moffat County 2018 2018
Monte Vista 2006 2006
Montezuma County 1997 None
Montrose 2003 2003
Montrose County 2009 2009
Monument (PPRBD) 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Morgan County 2009 2009
Morrison 2015 2015
Mount Crested Butte 2015 2015
Mountain View 2015 2015
Mountain Village 2018 2018
Naturita None None
Nederland 2012 2012 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
New Castle 2015 2009
Northglenn 2018 2018 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Norwood 2009 2009
Nucla 2003 2003
Nunn 2018 2012
Oak Creek 2018 2018
Olathe 2006 2006
Olney Springs 2009 None
Ophir 1979 1979
Orchard City 2018 2018
Ordway 1994 None
Otero County 2006 2006
Otis None None
Ouray (City) 2009 2009
Ouray County 2018 2018
Ovid None None
Pagosa Springs 2015 2015
Palisade 2018 2009
Palmer Lake (PPRBD) 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Paoli None None
Paonia 2003 2003
Parachute 2018 2018
Park County 2012 2012 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress

239



Jurisdiction I-Codes IECC Solar-Ready
Electric-Ready/Electric 

Requirement EV-Ready
Parker 2021 2021
Peetz None None
Phillips County None None
Pierce 2018 2012
Pikes Peak RBD 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Pitkin County 2015 2015 X
Platteville 2018 2012
Poncha Springs 2015 2006
Pritchett None None
Prowers County None None
Pueblo County 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Pueblo RBD 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Ramah None None
Rangely 2006 None
Raymer 2012 2006
Red Cliff 2009 2009
Rico 2006 2006
Ridgway 2018 2018
Rifle 2015 2009
Rio Blanco County 2006 2006
Rio Grande County 2006 2006
Rockvale 1994 2006
Rocky Ford 2012 1977
Romeo None None
Routt County 2018 2018 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Rye None None
Saguache County None None
Salida 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
San Juan County 2006 2006
San Luis None None
San Miguel County 2009 2009
Sanford None None
Sawpit 2009 2009
Sedgwick County None None
Seibert None None
Severance 2018 2012
Sheridan 2015 2015
Silt 2015 2009
Silver Cliff 2006 None
Silverplume None None
Silverthorne 2018 2018
Silverton 2006 2006
Simla 1994 None
Snowmass Village 2015 2015
South Fork 2006 2006
Springfield None None
Starkville 2009 2009
Steamboat Springs 2018 2018
Sterling 2006 2006
Stratton None None
Sugar City 2009 None
Summit County 2018 2018 X *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Superior 2021 2021 X Electric-preferred X
Swink 2006 2006
Teller County 2015 2009
Telluride 2018 2018
Thornton 2018 2018 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Timnath 2018 2012
Trinidad 2018 2018
Two Buttes None None
Vail 2021 2021 X Electric-ready X
Victor 2012 2009
Vilas None None
Vona None None
Walden 2018 2018
Walsenburg 2015 2015
Walsh None None
Ward None None
Washington County 2006 2006
Weld County 2018 2018
Wellington 2018 2018
Westcliffe 2006 2006
Westminster 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Wheat Ridge 2018 2018 Partial *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Wiggins 2003 None
Wiley None None
Williamsburg None None
Windsor 2018 2018
Winter Park 2015 2015
Wolcott 2015 2015
Woodland Park (PPRBD) 2015 2015 *adoption of 2021 IECC in progress
Wray 1967 1977
Yampa 2018 2018
Yuma 2015 2015

240



Jurisdiction I-Codes IECC Solar-Ready
Electric-Ready/Electric 

Requirement EV-Ready
Yuma County None None

IECC = International Energy Conservation Code, a model energy code that sets out minimum efficiency standards for new construction for a structure’s walls, floors, ceilings, lighting, windows, doors, duct leakage and air leakage.
The International Codes (I-Codes), developed by the International Code Council, are a family of fifteen coordinated, modern building safety codes that help ensure the engineering of safe, sustainable, affordable and resilient structures.
Last updated October 26, 2022

241



242



243



244


	Board of Trustees November 16 2022 Agenda
	Board of Trustees November 16 2022 Memo
	RICO TOWN BOARD MINUTES October docx
	Boulder City Mixology LLC
	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget
	Cover Sheet
	2023 Budget Summary 
	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget
	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget GF Rev
	GF Operating Revs

	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget GF Employees
	GF Employee & Contractors

	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget GF Admin
	GF-Admin 

	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget GF Cap,Special
	GF-Capital, Special Proj

	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget Water Revenue
	Water-Revenues

	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget Water Expenses
	Water-Expenses

	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget Street Revenue
	Street-Revenues

	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget Street Expenses
	Street-Expenses

	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget Sewer
	Sewer

	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget CTF
	CTF

	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget Staff
	2023


	Town of Rico 2023 Proposed Budget Park.pdf
	Park


	RICO TOWN Planning Commision Meeting November
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Cover Letter - Doloroes River Trail Preplat (002)
	Dolores River Trail subdivision Preliminary Plat Completion memo 8.27.2022
	21013 sub plat 1-Layout2-24X36 words
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2-24X36 words


	21013 sub plat 6 22 final-24X36 VERT
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 VERT


	2022-10-07 Dolores River Sub review memo

	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	20221101_Dolores River Subdivision - Prelim Plat -Comment Response Letter - Town Engineer

	2022-11-07 Dolores River Sub review memo 2
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Clipboard Data(1)
	20221101_Dolores River Subdivision - Prelim Plat -Comment Response Letter - Forest Service
	20221101_Dolores River Subdivision - Drainage Report- Preliminary Plat V2_Optimized

	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	20221101_Dolores River Subdivision - Drainage Report- Preliminary Plat V2_Optimized
	Sheets and Views
	C100

	Sheets and Views
	C300



	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	20221101_Dolores River Subdivision - Drainage Report- Preliminary Plat V2_Optimized
	Sheets and Views
	DR01

	Sheets and Views
	DR02



	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	20221101_Dolores River Subdivision - Drainage Report- Preliminary Plat V2_Optimized
	Cover
	Preface
	Contents
	Soil Map
	Soil Map
	Legend
	Map Unit Legend
	Map Unit Descriptions
	Animas-Dolores Area, Colorado, Parts of Archuleta, Dolores, Hinsdale, La Plata, Montezuma, San Juan, and San Miguel Counties
	53—Cryaquolls-Typic Cryaquents complex, 1 to 5 percent slopes





	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	20221101_Dolores River Subdivision - Drainage Report- Preliminary Plat V2_Optimized
	Soil Map
	Map Unit Descriptions
	Animas-Dolores Area, Colorado, Parts of Archuleta, Dolores, Hinsdale, La Plata, Montezuma, San Juan, and San Miguel Counties
	154—Frisco-Horsethief complex, 30 to 75 percent slopes
	164—Hourglass-Bucklon-Wander complex, 30 to 60 percent slopes
	499—Water




	20221101_Dolores River Subdivision_Prelim Plat_Civil_V2_Optimized
	Sheets and Views
	C000-COVER AND NOTES

	Sheets and Views
	C100

	Sheets and Views
	C101

	Sheets and Views
	C200 -Access and Utility P and P

	Sheets and Views
	C201 -Access and Utility P and P

	Sheets and Views
	C300

	Sheets and Views
	C400-SITE DETAILS

	Sheets and Views
	C401 - SITE DETAILS



	Planning Commission Packet November 2022
	20221101_Dolores River Subdivision_Prelim Plat_Civil_V2_Optimized
	Sheets and Views
	C402 - SITE DETAILS

	Sheets and Views
	C403 - SITE DETAILS


	Figure 1 Delineation Map- Rico Subdivision Overall Site (1) copy
	Clipboard Data(2)
	rico dolores river developent comments

	Ordinance 2022-12 RLUC Amendments UBC 97
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE Town of rico, colorado AMENDINg the Rico Land Use code fee schedule And ADOPTING the UBC 97 table no. 1-a – building permit fees
	Section 1. The recitals hereinabove are hereby adopted as findings and incorporated herein.
	Section 2. The Rico Land Use Code shall be and is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit A to this Ordinance, incorporated by reference hereto.
	Section 3. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately on final adoption.


	Colorado Building and Energy Codes by Jurisdiction - Sheet1
	Harris Memo



